
Page 1 of 2 

VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

Meeting Announcement & Agenda at 7:00 p.m. 
Monday, December 16, 2019 

Village Hall, 810 Shorewood Boulevard 
 

 

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Statement of Public Notice 

4. Procedures Orientation 

5. Appearances and Communications  

6. Board Matters 

A. Payment of Bills 

B. Consent Agenda 

i) November 18 meeting minutes 

ii) Set 2020 compensation plan for regular Village employees  

iii) Set interim compensation for Pool Manager and Pool Manager consultant  

iv) Name Mark (Mort) Moyer Interim Crew Chief and set hourly rate at 

$32.24 

v) Set seasonal DPW pay rate for James Fahien at $15.00 per hour 

vi) Set crossing guard wages at $13.00 per hour 

vii) Set part-time police officer wages at $20.50 per hour 

viii) Approve Employee Assistance program and proposal from HealthyMinds, 

LLC for regular employees  

ix) Approve Wellness check program for Police Department personnel and 

proposal from HealthyMinds, LLC 

x) Approve purchase of copiers through State contract 

C. Ordinances  

D. New Business Resolutions and Motions 

i) Resolution R-2019-17 Thanking Crew Chief John Mitmoen and wishing 

him well in his retirement 

ii) Resolution R-2019-18 International Migratory Bird Day (Bird City) 

iii) Consider three party contract for design/engineering of Lake Mendota 

Drive bridge (WI DOT, VOSH, KL Engineering) (Recommended by 

Public Works) 

iv) Approve Administrative office floor replacement and cubicle 

reconfiguration (Recommended by Services) 

v) Approve 2020-2024 participation in Madison Area Municipal Stormwater 

Partnership Education plan (MAMSWAP) 

vi) Set Village Caucus for January 21, 2020 at 7:00 pm and 2020 Board 

meeting dates  

  



              
 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, that any person who has a qualifying disability as defined by the Americans with Disability Act that requires the meeting 
or materials at the meeting to be in an accessible location or format, should contact the Municipal Clerk, 810 Shorewood Boulevard, or phone 
267-2680, during regular business hours at least 48 hours before the meeting so that reasonable arrangements can be made to accommodate 
each request. 
 
It is possible that members of, and possibly a quorum of members of other governmental bodies of the Village of Shorewood Hills who are not 
members of the above committee may be in attendance at the above stated meeting to gather information. However, no formal action will be 
taken by any governmental body at the above meeting other than the committee identified in the caption of this notice. 
 

Page 2 of 2 

E. Appointments 

i) Personnel Committee–Laura Stephenson  

ii) Poll workers  

7. Reports of Officials and Committees 

A. Village President  

i) Arbor Day Proclamation  

B. Village Administrator 

C. Ad hoc Recognition Committee 

D. Personnel Committee 

E. Finance Committee 

F. Plan Commission  

G. Public Works Committee 

H. Services Committee 

I. Public Health & Safety Committee 

J. Recreation Committee 

K. Ad hoc Sustainability Committee 

L. Ad hoc Disaster Preparedness Committee 

M. Ad hoc Stormwater Committee 

i) Committee support for proposed 96" stormwater pipe between Shorewood 

Blvd and Grand Ave as part of 2021/2022 University Ave reconstruction 

N. Ad hoc Heiden Haus Committee 

O. Parks Committee 

P. Blackhawk Liaison Committee 

Q. Pool Committee 

R. Waterfront Committee 

S. Joint Campus Committee 

8. Next Village Board meeting: Tuesday, January 21, 2020 (immediately following the 

Annual Village Caucus) 

9. Adjourn 



Page 1 of 3 

NOTES TO THE AGENDA – DECEMBER 16, 2019 
 

Payment of Bills: November Pre-paid Bills ..........$ 43,154.90 

  December Bills............$ 162,908.40 

  Total............$ 206,063.30 

 

Consent Agenda 

November 18 meeting minutes – Draft minutes are enclosed. 

 

Set 2020 compensation plan for regular Village employees – The Personnel Committee 

recommended adjustment to the Village pay plan for employees in the Village Grade and step 

plan is enclosed, including the Police Chief and Administrator. The Personnel Committee has 

recommended and the budget includes a 2% across the board adjustment and a step increase for 

those employees eligible for a step adjustment. Steps range from 2.86% from the first to the 

second step and then step-by-step descend down to 2.25 % at the top step for an average across 

all steps of 2.55%.  

 

Set interim compensation for Pool Manager and Pool Manager consultant – The Pool 

Manager EJ Johnson and Chris Carbon who assists him (and was a prior manager of the pool) 

have agreed to continue to serve as the search for a new manager continues. This is very good 

news. The next few months are critical in terms of hiring over 100 seasonal staff for the summer 

as well as creating and mailing the pool registration packet. The Pool Committee has 

recommended this course of action. Supporting documentation is enclosed. The salaries shown 

include a 2% adjustment over 2019.  

 

Set crossing guard wages at $13.00 per hour – The Personnel Committee has recommended 

this budgeted adjustment. A memo from the Police Chief is also enclosed. These are very 

difficult positions to fill and we are fortunate to have two individuals, Teresa Whitehead and 

Jimmy Fahien who have worked here for many years. When they are not available our CSO 

often performs this work as well as the Police Officer on duty. 

 

Set part-time police officer wages at $20.50 per hour – The Personnel Committee has 

recommended this budgeted adjustment of .50 per hour. A memo from the Police Chief is also 

enclosed. The Village relies heavily on part time police officers and it is important to stay 

competitive in the market.  

 

Set pay rate for seasonal DPW employee James Fahien - Village policy is to start seasonal 

DPW and Forestry employees at $13.00 per hour with a $1.00 increase each year for returning 

employees up to a maximum of $15.00 per hour. Mr. Fahien has worked for the Village in 

seasonal capacities for DPW since 2006 and his pay rate of $13.00 should be taken to the 

maximum of $15.00 per hour. 

 

Approve Employee Assistance program and proposal from HealthyMinds, LLC for regular 

employees – The Personnel Committee has recommended Village participation in this program. 

The program will be made available to our regular work force of approximately 25 employees. 

The cost is $21.00 per year per employee. A packet enclosure outlines the resource that will be 



              
 
 

Page 2 of 3 

available to staff that may have unmet needs on a variety of issues. Services provided include up 

to five face-to-face counseling sessions or telephonic support. The Police Chief spearheaded this 

effort at the time he was exploring the mandatory wellness check program for Police staff. It is a 

program that I had often thought the Village should consider and the Chief was able to do the 

footwork. More than one provider was contacted and this appeared to be the best choice for the 

Village while also coincidentally being the least expensive. 

 

Approve Wellness check program for Police Department personnel and proposal from 

HealthyMinds, LLC - The Personnel Committee has recommended that the Village participate 

in this program for Police Department personnel who will be required to attend one annual 

wellness check. An outline of the program from the provider. The annual cost will be 

approximately $125 per employee and is budgeted. 

 

Approve purchase of copiers through State contract – The Village administrative offices and 

Police Department copiers are in need of replacement. The administrative and police offices 

copiers are eight years old. The administrative copier has 949,528 copies on it (after Friday’s 

packet!) and the Police copier has 318,135.  

 

The Village is able to purchase copiers through the state contract. The State solicits bids for 

various widely used products periodically and awards a state contract to the best bidder. 

Municipalities are able to purchase off of this contract ensuring we get good pricing while 

minimizing the work need to spec out, obtain and evaluate competing bids on our own. The State 

contract price through Gordon Flesch for the administrative offices copier is $7,929.00. The 

police copier is $4,795. This is actually less expensive than the copiers were eight years ago. 

These items were budgeted in the capital fund and were included as a part of the short term 

borrowing. These are Cannon copiers. The spec sheets are enclosed.  

 

New Business Resolutions and Motions 

Resolution R-2019-19 Thanking Crew Chief John Mitmoen and wishing him well in his 

retirement – John Mitmoen will be retiring effective January 8. He has been employed by the 

Village for 28 years and has been a great employee and asset to the Village. He brought us a 

wealth of knowledge and skills in mechanics and fabrication skills performing a lot of work that 

otherwise the Village would have had to farm out at much more expense. His prior work 

experience included managing a swimming pool and his knowledge of the mechanical operations 

of a pool and ability to open and close it also saved us large sums of money. John also has a B.S 

in Recreation and a minor in Biology. He will be missed by the Village. I know I always slept 

easy knowing he was nearby and ready to respond to the big storm, water main break or sewer 

back up, the leaves would be picked up, the streets swept, the grass mowed and the resident 

request answered promptly, and that water came out of the faucet and then made it down the 

drain.  

 

Resolution R-2019-18 International Migratory Bird Day (Bird City) – This annual resolution 

is required to maintain our Bird City status. 

 

Consider three party contract for design/engineering of Lake Mendota Drive bridge (WI 

DOT, VOSH, KL Engineering) (Recommended by Public Works) – Approval of this contract 



              
 
 

Page 3 of 3 

is the next phase in this project that is 80% funded by the State of Wisconsin Bridge replacement 

program. The Village previously agreed to the scope and cost share limits of the project through 

approval of a State Municipal Agreement which is also enclosed in your packet for reference. 

The Village then engaged in a state regulated process to select an engineering firm for the project 

and the State and Village previously approved the Village selection of KL Engineering. Before 

the Board tonight is approval of the three contract between KL, the State and the Village for 

design of the project including three public information meetings. The Village may engage KL 

for additional meetings at our cost. This three party contract has been jointly negotiated by Marc 

Westerveld from DOT and the Village Administrator. The expense was reduced by about 

$16,000, mostly things that the DOT refused to fund related to aesthetics and additional meetings 

with the public. The Public Works Committee recommends approval.  

 

Approve Administrative office floor replacement and cubicle reconfiguration 

(Recommended by Services) – The Admin staff is recommending replacing the office flooring 

while reconfiguring the workstations. A memo detailing this is included in your packet with 

quotes for the work. The new office configuration would allow the account clerk direct access to 

the front counter. Our two part-time (10 hours/week) office assistants would share a desk and 

computer saving ~$700 by not replacing one of the two computers they use. It will also save 

$67/month on IT support costs by reducing the number of our desktop computers.  

 

Approve 2020-2024 participation in Madison Area Municipal Stormwater Partnership 

Education plan (MAMSWAP) – As part of our federally (DNR administered) issued joint 

municipal stormwater discharge permit there is a public education component. Dane County 

municipalities working under this permit previously decided that a jointly funded public 

education component would give us the best return on our dollars as well as more cohesive, 

efficient and effective outreach. The proposed education plan is enclosed in your packet as well 

as the cost share being borne by each municipality This will be the third cycle that the Village 

has participated. You may have noticed the yard signage with the Village logo this year as well 

as the mural on the storm drain by the pool, occasional television ads and be familiar with the 

“don’t leaf our streets” trademarks. These were provided to us as part of that program. Most of 

our bulletin article son this subject as well as website information is coming through 

MAMSWAP. In upcoming meeting, s the Public Works Committee will be discussing elements 

of the education plan and implementation. Our fee is $2,093 in 2020, $2,197 in 2021, $2,307 in 

2022, $2, 423 in 2023 and $2,544 in 2024. These amounts are expensed in the stormwater fund. 

Supporting documentation including all of the cost shares from the various municipalities are 

included in the packet. 

 

Set 2020 Board meeting dates and Village Caucus for January 21, 2020 at 7:00 – A schedule 

of next years planned Board meetings is enclosed. The Village Board must also set the caucus 

date at a publicly noticed meeting.  

 

Minutes from various Committees are enclosed including information from the Joint Campus 

Committee. There are a lot ongoing and pending projects on campus including the Vet School 

addition and the new Recreation facility across from the Vet school and new ramp on the west 

side of campus. 



VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS Payment Approval Report - by GL - Dept Heads (VOSH) Page:     1

Report dates: 11/30/2019-11/30/2019 Dec 13, 2019  02:56PM

Report Criteria:

Detail report.

Invoices with totals above $0 included.

Paid and unpaid invoices included.

Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice Number Invoice Date Net Inv Amount Amount Paid Date Paid

100-52-5210-322  POLICE: TRAINING EXPENSES

4036 DANE CO TREASURER FIRE ARMS TRAINING 4194 10/11/2019 185.00 185.00 11/30/2019

          Total 100-52-5210-322  POLICE: TRAINING EXPENSES: 185.00 185.00

100-45-4511-000  COURT FINES

4038 DANE CO TREASURER SHARED COURT FINES 4193 10/19/2019 400.00 400.00 11/30/2019

          Total 100-45-4511-000  COURT FINES: 400.00 400.00

100-51-5130-210  LEGAL: GEN. ADVICE & COUNSEL

21750 U.S. BANK GEN MUNI ADVICE/STAFFRD &  113019 11/30/2019 3,978.00 3,978.00 11/30/2019

          Total 100-51-5130-210  LEGAL: GEN. ADVICE & COUNSEL: 3,978.00 3,978.00

100-51-5130-211  LEGAL: ORDINANCE PROSECUTIONS

21750 U.S. BANK ORDINANCE/STAFFD & ROSNB 113019 11/30/2019 1,311.50 1,311.50 11/30/2019

          Total 100-51-5130-211  LEGAL: ORDINANCE PROSECUTIONS: 1,311.50 1,311.50

100-51-5141-380  ADMIN: STAFF SUNSHINE FUND

21750 U.S. BANK SODA FOR ADMIN & PD/PICNSA 113019 11/30/2019 54.82 54.82 11/30/2019

          Total 100-51-5141-380  ADMIN: STAFF SUNSHINE FUND: 54.82 54.82

100-51-5142-310  CLERK: SUP & EXPENSES

21750 U.S. BANK OFF SUPPL/STAPLS 113019 11/30/2019 51.26 51.26 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK ADMIN/US CELLULAR 113019 11/30/2019 2.00 2.00 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK LAMINATING MAP/BPI 113019 11/30/2019 32.20 32.20 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK CALCULATOR RIBBONS/STPLS 113019 11/30/2019 7.42 7.42 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK RECORD STORAGE BOXES/DO 113019 11/30/2019 41.11 41.11 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK DATE STAMP/STAPLS 113019 11/30/2019 26.95 26.95 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK PORTFOLIO/STAPLS 113019 11/30/2019 43.11 43.11 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK EXPANDING FOLDERS/STAPLS 113019 11/30/2019 8.02 8.02 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK DATA SGRED/PELITERI 113019 11/30/2019 12.48 12.48 11/30/2019

          Total 100-51-5142-310  CLERK: SUP & EXPENSES: 224.55 224.55

100-51-5145-210  D.P.: CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

21750 U.S. BANK G SUITE/GOOGLE 113019 11/30/2019 244.04 244.04 11/30/2019

          Total 100-51-5145-210  D.P.: CONTRACTUAL SERVICES: 244.04 244.04

100-51-5145-340  D.P.: OPERATIONS EXPENSE

21750 U.S. BANK MONTHLY SER/AT&T 113019 11/30/2019 519.20 519.20 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK TV & INTERNET/SPECTRUM 113019 11/30/2019 101.16 101.16 11/30/2019

          Total 100-51-5145-340  D.P.: OPERATIONS EXPENSE: 620.36 620.36

100-51-5160-222  BLDGS & PLANT: TELEPHONE

21750 U.S. BANK TIME WARNER CABLE/SPECTR 113019 11/30/2019 420.95 420.95 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK BUS INTERNET/SPECTRUM 113019 11/30/2019 394.57 394.57 11/30/2019



VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS Payment Approval Report - by GL - Dept Heads (VOSH) Page:     2

Report dates: 11/30/2019-11/30/2019 Dec 13, 2019  02:56PM

Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice Number Invoice Date Net Inv Amount Amount Paid Date Paid

          Total 100-51-5160-222  BLDGS & PLANT: TELEPHONE: 815.52 815.52

100-51-5160-240  BLDGS & PLANT: CONTRACTUAL

21750 U.S. BANK QUARTERLY INSP/MONONA PL 113019 11/30/2019 165.00 165.00 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK MATS/MOPS/TOWELS/BAY TOW 113019 11/30/2019 77.40 77.40 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK MATS/MOPS/TOWELS/BAY TOW 113019 11/30/2019 77.45 77.45 11/30/2019

          Total 100-51-5160-240  BLDGS & PLANT: CONTRACTUAL: 319.85 319.85

100-52-5210-310  POLICE: OFFICE SUPPLIES & EXP

21750 U.S. BANK OFFICE SUPPLIES/STAPLES 113019 11/30/2019 56.14 56.14 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK CALENDAR/LABEL TAPE/STAPL 113019 11/30/2019 75.57 75.57 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK SHARPS/NAMETAGS/STAPLES 113019 11/30/2019 38.48 38.48 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK DATA SHRED PELITE/ 113019 11/30/2019 12.48 12.48 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK MARKERS/PENS/KLEENEX/STA 113019 11/30/2019 76.15 76.15 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK ENVELOPES/STAPLS 113019 11/30/2019 59.17 59.17 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK PLANNER/BINDER REFILL/BIND 113019 11/30/2019 52.51 52.51 11/30/2019

          Total 100-52-5210-310  POLICE: OFFICE SUPPLIES & EXP: 370.50 370.50

100-52-5210-322  POLICE: TRAINING EXPENSES

21750 U.S. BANK HILTON/IACP CONFERENCE 113019 11/30/2019 1,232.76 1,232.76 11/30/2019

          Total 100-52-5210-322  POLICE: TRAINING EXPENSES: 1,232.76 1,232.76

100-52-5210-340  POLICE: OPERATING EXPENSE

21750 U.S. BANK MED DROP BAGS/PICNSAVE 113019 11/30/2019 3.78 3.78 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK PD US CELLULR 113019 11/30/2019 375.02 375.02 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK COPIES PD/GORDN FLSH 113019 11/30/2019 67.32 67.32 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK SHIP BWC RETURN/UPS 113019 11/30/2019 18.63 18.63 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK MAIL CITATIONS/PATCHES/USP 113019 11/30/2019 11.65 11.65 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK IL TOLLWAY/IACP 113019 11/30/2019 14.60 14.60 11/30/2019

          Total 100-52-5210-340  POLICE: OPERATING EXPENSE: 491.00 491.00

100-52-5210-341  POLICE: UNIFORM EXPENSE

21750 U.S. BANK CREDIT FOR DOUBLE CHARGE 113019 11/30/2019 536.75- 536.75- 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK UNIFORMS JP/JACKET NB/TOP  113019 11/30/2019 1,073.50 1,073.50 11/30/2019

          Total 100-52-5210-341  POLICE: UNIFORM EXPENSE: 536.75 536.75

100-52-5210-350  POLICE: VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT

21750 U.S. BANK OIL CHANGE/KAYSER 113019 11/30/2019 35.00 35.00 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK OIL CHANGE/TIRE ROTATION 2 113019 11/30/2019 56.95 56.95 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK TIRE REPLACEMENT/2017/GOO 113019 11/30/2019 172.75 172.75 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK 2015 HEADLAMP BULB/KAYSER 113019 11/30/2019 24.94 24.94 11/30/2019

          Total 100-52-5210-350  POLICE: VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT: 289.64 289.64

100-52-5240-340  INSPECTIONS: OPERATIONS

21750 U.S. BANK INSPECTIONS SUPPLIES/STAP 113019 11/30/2019 15.49 15.49 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK WI PERMIT SEALS/DOA E PAY D 113019 11/30/2019 433.54 433.54 11/30/2019

          Total 100-52-5240-340  INSPECTIONS: OPERATIONS: 449.03 449.03

100-53-5300-340  AIDABLE WORK: OPERATING EXP.

21750 U.S. BANK BATTERIES/COFFEE/FARM & FL 113019 11/30/2019 24.96 24.96 11/30/2019



VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS Payment Approval Report - by GL - Dept Heads (VOSH) Page:     3

Report dates: 11/30/2019-11/30/2019 Dec 13, 2019  02:56PM

Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice Number Invoice Date Net Inv Amount Amount Paid Date Paid

21750 U.S. BANK TIRES SNO REMOVAL/REINDER 113019 11/30/2019 297.87 297.87 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK NO PARKING SIGNS/DECKER 113019 11/30/2019 301.20 301.20 11/30/2019

          Total 100-53-5300-340  AIDABLE WORK: OPERATING EXP.: 624.03 624.03

100-53-5320-350  GARAGE: VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT

21750 U.S. BANK OIL FILTER FOR LEAF TRUCK/N 113019 11/30/2019 14.45 14.45 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK LAMP ASSEMBLY/MIDDLETON  113019 11/30/2019 43.35 43.35 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK 310 SG REPAIR CPU/BROOKS 113019 11/30/2019 1,978.95 1,978.95 11/30/2019

          Total 100-53-5320-350  GARAGE: VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT: 2,036.75 2,036.75

100-53-5362-290  REFUSE COLL: CONTRACTUAL SERVC

21750 U.S. BANK WASTE PICK UP/PELITERI 113019 11/30/2019 8,176.71 8,176.71 11/30/2019

          Total 100-53-5362-290  REFUSE COLL: CONTRACTUAL SERVC: 8,176.71 8,176.71

100-53-5365-340  RECYCLING/YARDWASTE: SUP EXP

21750 U.S. BANK BACK UP CAMP/AMAZON 113019 11/30/2019 57.99 57.99 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK CHIPPER TRUCK/MIDDLTN MO 113019 11/30/2019 308.85 308.85 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK LEAF PICKER BOLT/ACE 113019 11/30/2019 8.07 8.07 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK OIL LEAF PICKER/AMSOIL 113019 11/30/2019 309.49 309.49 11/30/2019

          Total 100-53-5365-340  RECYCLING/YARDWASTE: SUP EXP: 684.40 684.40

100-55-5500-340  NON-AIDABLE: OPERATING EXPENSE

21750 U.S. BANK OFFICE SUPPLYS DPW/STAPLS 113019 11/30/2019 5.34 5.34 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK PAPER TOWLS/CAN LINRS/DOC  113019 11/30/2019 48.05 48.05 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK BATTERIES/INTRSTATE BATERI 113019 11/30/2019 115.96 115.96 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK RODENT CONTROL/WILKIL 113019 11/30/2019 55.00 55.00 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK WAX VIL HALL/ACE 113019 11/30/2019 6.59 6.59 11/30/2019

          Total 100-55-5500-340  NON-AIDABLE: OPERATING EXPENSE: 230.94 230.94

100-55-5520-340  PARKS:OPERATING EXPENSE

21750 U.S. BANK OFF SUPPL FORRSTRY/STAPL 113019 11/30/2019 28.70 28.70 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK FORESTER/US CELLULAR 113019 11/30/2019 44.50 44.50 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK CHIPPER TRK/MIDLTN POWER  113019 11/30/2019 80.00 80.00 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL WAA/ 113019 11/30/2019 300.00 300.00 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK FORESTER WORK BOOTS/INSE 113019 11/30/2019 204.00 204.00 11/30/2019

          Total 100-55-5520-340  PARKS:OPERATING EXPENSE: 657.20 657.20

100-55-5520-342  VILLAGE TREE SALES COSTS

21750 U.S. BANK PRIVATE TREE SALES/JOHNSO 113019 11/30/2019 522.00 522.00 11/30/2019

          Total 100-55-5520-342  VILLAGE TREE SALES COSTS: 522.00 522.00

100-55-5523-343  HORTICULTURE: REFORESTATION

21750 U.S. BANK VILLAGE TREE SALES/JOHNSO 113019 11/30/2019 1,352.00 1,352.00 11/30/2019

          Total 100-55-5523-343  HORTICULTURE: REFORESTATION: 1,352.00 1,352.00

100-55-5538-340  OUTDOOR SOCCER: OPERATNG EXPEN

21750 U.S. BANK JERSEYS/SOCCER BALLS/STE 113019 11/30/2019 2,845.00 2,845.00 11/30/2019

          Total 100-55-5538-340  OUTDOOR SOCCER: OPERATNG EXPEN: 2,845.00 2,845.00



VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS Payment Approval Report - by GL - Dept Heads (VOSH) Page:     4

Report dates: 11/30/2019-11/30/2019 Dec 13, 2019  02:56PM

Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice Number Invoice Date Net Inv Amount Amount Paid Date Paid

200-53-5361-340  OPERATING SUPPLIES EXPENSE

21750 U.S. BANK SEWER US CELLULAR 113019 11/30/2019 42.78 42.78 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK CALIBRATOR TEST/DINGES 113019 11/30/2019 11.56- 11.56- 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK METER TRAINING/MIDWEST MT 113019 11/30/2019 2,350.00 2,350.00 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK METR READR/MIDWST METER 113019 11/30/2019 2,600.00 2,600.00 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK CALIBRATION/DINGES FIRE 113019 11/30/2019 121.33 121.33 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK OCT BILL/AT&T 113019 11/30/2019 226.05 226.05 11/30/2019

          Total 200-53-5361-340  OPERATING SUPPLIES EXPENSE: 5,328.60 5,328.60

210-51-5160-222  BLDG/PLANT: TELEPHONE

21750 U.S. BANK 5NINES DATA/NETWRK MGNT 113019 11/30/2019 150.00 150.00 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK MAIL CHMP/EMAIL 113019 11/30/2019 34.99 34.99 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK INTERNT/AT&T 113019 11/30/2019 42.80 42.80 11/30/2019

          Total 210-51-5160-222  BLDG/PLANT: TELEPHONE: 227.79 227.79

210-51-5160-350  BLDG/PLANT: REPAIR/MAINT EXP.

21750 U.S. BANK NEW H2O HEATER/STOPPLWR 113019 11/30/2019 1,224.98 1,224.98 11/30/2019

          Total 210-51-5160-350  BLDG/PLANT: REPAIR/MAINT EXP.: 1,224.98 1,224.98

210-55-5542-340  POOL: OPERATING SUPLY & EXP.

21750 U.S. BANK STAFF SCHEDULING/WHNIWRK 113019 11/30/2019 99.00 99.00 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK SHPKP/FRONT DESK/POS 113019 11/30/2019 89.68 89.68 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK POOL PART /ACE 113019 11/30/2019 1.39 1.39 11/30/2019

          Total 210-55-5542-340  POOL: OPERATING SUPLY & EXP.: 190.07 190.07

210-55-5542-343  CONCESSIONS EXPENSE

21750 U.S. BANK CONC POS/SHPKP 113019 11/30/2019 89.68 89.68 11/30/2019

          Total 210-55-5542-343  CONCESSIONS EXPENSE: 89.68 89.68

400-53-5330-820  FOUR CORNERS BATHROOMS

21750 U.S. BANK CAPITL NEWSPAPER/4 CORNR 113019 11/30/2019 144.43 144.43 11/30/2019

          Total 400-53-5330-820  FOUR CORNERS BATHROOMS: 144.43 144.43

400-59-5920-850  DISCOUNT & DEBT ISSUE COSTS

21750 U.S. BANK UPS VOSH GEN OBLI ROM NOT 113019 11/30/2019 38.44 38.44 11/30/2019

          Total 400-59-5920-850  DISCOUNT & DEBT ISSUE COSTS: 38.44 38.44

450-51-5141-120  PLANNING, LEGAL & ADMINISTRATN

21750 U.S. BANK RONALD MCDON HOUS/STAFF 113019 11/30/2019 130.00 130.00 11/30/2019

          Total 450-51-5141-120  PLANNING, LEGAL & ADMINISTRATN: 130.00 130.00

450-53-5320-320  DITCH CLEAN OUT & BIKE PATH

21750 U.S. BANK PARKING SIGNS/RR UBD/DECK 113019 11/30/2019 120.25 120.25 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK SIGN HRDWR 446.45/BIKE PATH  113019 11/30/2019 546.85 546.85 11/30/2019

          Total 450-53-5320-320  DITCH CLEAN OUT & BIKE PATH: 667.10 667.10

470-51-5141-119  PLANING LEGAL ADMIN-WALNUT GRV

21750 U.S. BANK GARDN HOMES/STAFFRD & RO 113019 11/30/2019 598.00 598.00 11/30/2019



VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS Payment Approval Report - by GL - Dept Heads (VOSH) Page:     5

Report dates: 11/30/2019-11/30/2019 Dec 13, 2019  02:56PM

Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice Number Invoice Date Net Inv Amount Amount Paid Date Paid

          Total 470-51-5141-119  PLANING LEGAL ADMIN-WALNUT GRV: 598.00 598.00

600-53-0630-340  SUPPLIES AND EXPENSE

21750 U.S. BANK VLV BOX COVER 1ST SUPPLY 113019 11/30/2019 147.00 147.00 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK BLB BOX & COVER/1ST SUP 113019 11/30/2019 260.68 260.68 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK DPW/US CELLULAR 113019 11/30/2019 42.78 42.78 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK REPAIR CLAMP/1ST SUPPLY 113019 11/30/2019 276.00 276.00 11/30/2019

          Total 600-53-0630-340  SUPPLIES AND EXPENSE: 726.46 726.46

600-53-0682-210  OUTSIDE SERVICES

21750 U.S. BANK METER TRAINING/MIDWEST M 113019 11/30/2019 2,350.00 2,350.00 11/30/2019

21750 U.S. BANK METER READER/MIDWST MET 113019 11/30/2019 2,600.00 2,600.00 11/30/2019

          Total 600-53-0682-210  OUTSIDE SERVICES: 4,950.00 4,950.00

100-45-4511-000  COURT FINES

2000122 ALTAWEEL, WILLIAM REFUND 5Q80DPGFC2 4195 11/22/2019 187.00 187.00 11/30/2019

          Total 100-45-4511-000  COURT FINES: 187.00 187.00

          Grand Totals:  43,154.90 43,154.90

Report Criteria:

Detail report.

Invoices with totals above $0 included.

Paid and unpaid invoices included.



VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS Payment Approval Report - by GL - Dept Heads (VOSH) Page:     1

Report dates: 12/16/2019-12/16/2019 Dec 13, 2019  03:08PM

Report Criteria:

Detail report.

Invoices with totals above $0 included.

Paid and unpaid invoices included.

Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice Number Invoice Date Net Inv Amount Amount Paid Date Paid

600-53-0630-340  SUPPLIES AND EXPENSE

1045 ABT MAILCOM INC BILL PROCESSING -NOV 35352 12/02/2019 407.22 .00

          Total 600-53-0630-340  SUPPLIES AND EXPENSE: 407.22 .00

100-211535  AFLAC INSURANCE

1210 AFLAC INSURANCE PREMIUM 041319 04/13/2019 463.55 463.55 12/17/2019

          Total 100-211535  AFLAC INSURANCE: 463.55 463.55

100-51-5153-210  ASSESSOR: CONTRACTUAL EXPENSE

1730 ASSOCIATED APPRAISAL CONSULT PROF ASSESSMENT/INTERNET  145700 12/01/2019 678.56 .00

          Total 100-51-5153-210  ASSESSOR: CONTRACTUAL EXPENSE: 678.56 .00

100-51-5154-511  LIABILITY INS (LEAGUE)

2049 BAER INSURANCE SERVICES LLC BLANKET CRIME POLICY 1099 12/02/2019 1,895.00 .00

          Total 100-51-5154-511  LIABILITY INS (LEAGUE): 1,895.00 .00

100-53-5365-340  RECYCLING/YARDWASTE: SUP EXP

2602 BOBCAT OF MADISON TOOL KAT REPAIR 0181169 11/21/2019 1,421.12 .00

          Total 100-53-5365-340  RECYCLING/YARDWASTE: SUP EXP: 1,421.12 .00

500-53-5364-340  OPERATING SUPPLIES AND EXPENSE

2602 BOBCAT OF MADISON TOOL KAT REPAIR 0181169 11/21/2019 1,421.13 .00

          Total 500-53-5364-340  OPERATING SUPPLIES AND EXPENSE: 1,421.13 .00

100-51-5160-222  BLDGS & PLANT: TELEPHONE

3220 CENTURY LINK CENTREX LINES 1481611454 11/30/2019 11.37 .00

          Total 100-51-5160-222  BLDGS & PLANT: TELEPHONE: 11.37 .00

100-44-4422-000  LICENSES: DOG & CAT

4036 DANE CO TREASURER DOG LICENSE 2019 SHARE 4196 12/04/2019 35.00 35.00 12/17/2019

          Total 100-44-4422-000  LICENSES: DOG & CAT: 35.00 35.00

100-45-4511-000  COURT FINES

4038 DANE CO TREASURER SHARED COURT FINES 111919 11/19/2019 300.00 .00

          Total 100-45-4511-000  COURT FINES: 300.00 .00

450-53-5320-230  MARSHALL CT,UNIV AVE IMPROVNTS

4205 DECKER SUPPLY COMPANY INC PARKING POSTS 908197 11/18/2019 444.60 .00

          Total 450-53-5320-230  MARSHALL CT,UNIV AVE IMPROVNTS: 444.60 .00

200-53-5361-340  OPERATING SUPPLIES EXPENSE

4215 DELUXE DISTRIBUTORS LIFT STATION DEGREASER 5089 11/13/2019 770.00 .00



VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS Payment Approval Report - by GL - Dept Heads (VOSH) Page:     2

Report dates: 12/16/2019-12/16/2019 Dec 13, 2019  03:08PM

Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice Number Invoice Date Net Inv Amount Amount Paid Date Paid

          Total 200-53-5361-340  OPERATING SUPPLIES EXPENSE: 770.00 .00

100-51-5144-340  ELECTIONS: OPERATING SUPPLIES

5465 ELECTION SYSTEMS & SOFTWARE lICENSE & MAINTENANCE 1102841 10/07/2019 225.00 .00

          Total 100-51-5144-340  ELECTIONS: OPERATING SUPPLIES: 225.00 .00

600-53-0682-210  OUTSIDE SERVICES

8950 HYDROCORP HYDROCORP 55343 11/30/2019 128.00 .00

          Total 600-53-0682-210  OUTSIDE SERVICES: 128.00 .00

100-51-5142-322  CLERK: TRAINING/SEMINARS

9577 INTL INSTITUTE MUNICIPAL CLERK MEMBERSHIP DUES: ENDRES 121619 12/16/2019 170.00 .00

          Total 100-51-5142-322  CLERK: TRAINING/SEMINARS: 170.00 .00

500-56-5620-210  CONTRACTUAL SERVCES

11540 ADVANCED ENG & ENVIRONMENT PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 66168 12/10/2019 1,089.50 .00

          Total 500-56-5620-210  CONTRACTUAL SERVCES: 1,089.50 .00

100-51-5160-220  BLDGS & PLANT: GAS & ELECTRIC

13040 MADISON GAS & ELECTRIC 810 SHOREWOOD BLVD AND 10 120919 12/09/2019 2,782.64 .00

          Total 100-51-5160-220  BLDGS & PLANT: GAS & ELECTRIC: 2,782.64 .00

100-53-5300-340  AIDABLE WORK: OPERATING EXP.

13040 MADISON GAS & ELECTRIC 4502 OLD MIDDLETON 120919 12/09/2019 163.54 .00

          Total 100-53-5300-340  AIDABLE WORK: OPERATING EXP.: 163.54 .00

100-53-5342-220  STREET LIGHTING: POWER

13040 MADISON GAS & ELECTRIC 900 SHOREWOOD BLVD 120919 12/09/2019 46.65 .00

13040 MADISON GAS & ELECTRIC STREET LIGHTING 120919 12/09/2019 1,464.83 .00

          Total 100-53-5342-220  STREET LIGHTING: POWER: 1,511.48 .00

100-55-5500-340  NON-AIDABLE: OPERATING EXPENSE

13040 MADISON GAS & ELECTRIC 3302 BLACKHAWK/3100 HARVA 120919 12/09/2019 125.22 .00

          Total 100-55-5500-340  NON-AIDABLE: OPERATING EXPENSE: 125.22 .00

200-51-5160-220  BLDG/PLANT: GAS & ELECTRIC

13040 MADISON GAS & ELECTRIC 3336 LMD 120919 12/09/2019 84.55 .00

          Total 200-51-5160-220  BLDG/PLANT: GAS & ELECTRIC: 84.55 .00

210-51-5160-220  BLDG/PLANT: GAS & ELECTRIC

13040 MADISON GAS & ELECTRIC 901 SWARTHMORE CT 120919 12/09/2019 140.04 .00

          Total 210-51-5160-220  BLDG/PLANT: GAS & ELECTRIC: 140.04 .00

220-51-5160-220  BLDG/PLANT: GAS & ELECTRIC

13040 MADISON GAS & ELECTRIC 3400/3700 LMD 120919 12/09/2019 72.52 .00



VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS Payment Approval Report - by GL - Dept Heads (VOSH) Page:     3

Report dates: 12/16/2019-12/16/2019 Dec 13, 2019  03:08PM

Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice Number Invoice Date Net Inv Amount Amount Paid Date Paid

          Total 220-51-5160-220  BLDG/PLANT: GAS & ELECTRIC: 72.52 .00

600-53-0620-220  POWER FOR PUMPING

13040 MADISON GAS & ELECTRIC 3302 BLACKHAWK/3561 TALLY  120919 12/09/2019 1,024.45 .00

          Total 600-53-0620-220  POWER FOR PUMPING: 1,024.45 .00

100-53-5352-300  BUS SERVICE  

13082 MADISON CITY TREASURER INVESTMENT PARTNER SHARE 26004 12/09/2019 30,000.00 .00

          Total 100-53-5352-300  BUS SERVICE : 30,000.00 .00

100-53-5344-350  STORM SEWERS: DISCHARGE PERMIT

13085 MADISON TREASURER, CITY OF STORM H2O 6722000-12 12/03/2019 19.29 .00

          Total 100-53-5344-350  STORM SEWERS: DISCHARGE PERMIT: 19.29 .00

100-55-5500-340  NON-AIDABLE: OPERATING EXPENSE

13085 MADISON TREASURER, CITY OF FIRE PROTECTION H20 1708101-12 12/03/2019 37.42 .00

          Total 100-55-5500-340  NON-AIDABLE: OPERATING EXPENSE: 37.42 .00

600-53-0610-601  PURCHASED WATER

13085 MADISON TREASURER, CITY OF FLAT RATE H2O 1706600-12 12/03/2019 1,326.17 .00

13085 MADISON TREASURER, CITY OF PIT LMD 1706700-12 12/03/2019 2,592.65 .00

13085 MADISON TREASURER, CITY OF PIT SW BLVD @ RR TRACKS 1706800-12 12/03/2019 4,629.27 .00

13085 MADISON TREASURER, CITY OF PIT UBD & TRACKS 1706900-12 12/03/2019 294.98 .00

          Total 600-53-0610-601  PURCHASED WATER: 8,843.07 .00

210-51-5160-350  BLDG/PLANT: REPAIR/MAINT EXP.

13095 MASSE'S FLOOR COATINGS LLC LOCKER ROOOM FLOOR REPAI 13152-1 05/01/2019 2,400.00 .00

          Total 210-51-5160-350  BLDG/PLANT: REPAIR/MAINT EXP.: 2,400.00 .00

100-211532  LIFE INSURANCE - EMPLOYEE

13397 SECURIAN FINANCIAL GROUP INC. PREMIUM 121219 12/12/2019 563.50 .00

          Total 100-211532  LIFE INSURANCE - EMPLOYEE: 563.50 .00

100-51-5120-310  JUDICIAL: OFFC. SUP & EXPENSE

16700 PRAXIS CONSULTING- QUICK CLE QUICK CLERK MAINT (COURT) 20100626 11/11/2019 1,100.00 .00

          Total 100-51-5120-310  JUDICIAL: OFFC. SUP & EXPENSE: 1,100.00 .00

100-51-5160-221  BLDGS & PLANT: WATER

19337 SHOREWOOD HILLS WATER & SE 1008 SHOREWOOD BLVD 10580 113019 11/30/2019 89.32 .00

19337 SHOREWOOD HILLS WATER & SE 810 SHOREWOOD H20/SEWER  113019 11/30/2019 45.42 .00

19337 SHOREWOOD HILLS WATER & SE GARDENS H20/SEWER 3403200 113019 11/30/2019 17.71 .00

19337 SHOREWOOD HILLS WATER & SE COM CNTR/POOL/H20/SEWR/34 113019 11/30/2019 301.23 .00

19337 SHOREWOOD HILLS WATER & SE HEIDEN H20/SEWER 3589000 113019 11/30/2019 38.88 .00

19337 SHOREWOOD HILLS WATER & SE RINK H20.SEWER 1058300 113019 11/30/2019 138.16 .00

          Total 100-51-5160-221  BLDGS & PLANT: WATER: 630.72 .00

100-51-5160-223  BLDGS & PLANT:STORMWATER  CHRG

19337 SHOREWOOD HILLS WATER & SE 1008 SHOREWOOD STRMH20 1 113019 11/30/2019 13.00 .00



VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS Payment Approval Report - by GL - Dept Heads (VOSH) Page:     4

Report dates: 12/16/2019-12/16/2019 Dec 13, 2019  03:08PM

Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice Number Invoice Date Net Inv Amount Amount Paid Date Paid

19337 SHOREWOOD HILLS WATER & SE GARDENS STRMH20 3403200 113019 11/30/2019 13.00 .00

19337 SHOREWOOD HILLS WATER & SE STRMH2O/810 SW BLVD/LOT #2 113019 11/30/2019 19.50 .00

19337 SHOREWOOD HILLS WATER & SE STRMH2O TALLY HO BOSTR/10 113019 11/30/2019 13.00 .00

19337 SHOREWOOD HILLS WATER & SE STRMH2O ENTRYWAY PARKS/1 113019 11/30/2019 26.00 .00

19337 SHOREWOOD HILLS WATER & SE STRMH2O/UNIV AVE LOT/90870 113019 11/30/2019 13.00 .00

19337 SHOREWOOD HILLS WATER & SE STRMH2O/KOVAL WOODS/2285 113019 11/30/2019 13.00 .00

19337 SHOREWOOD HILLS WATER & SE STRMH2O BIG FOOT PARK/230 113019 11/30/2019 13.00 .00

19337 SHOREWOOD HILLS WATER & SE STRMH2O 1008 SHWD/1058500 113019 11/30/2019 72.80 .00

19337 SHOREWOOD HILLS WATER & SE STRMH2O 4 CORNERS/2237500 113019 11/30/2019 26.00 .00

19337 SHOREWOOD HILLS WATER & SE STRMH2O/POST FARM/3403100 113019 11/30/2019 430.30 .00

19337 SHOREWOOD HILLS WATER & SE STRMH2O 810 SW BLVD LOT #1 113019 11/30/2019 109.20 .00

19337 SHOREWOOD HILLS WATER & SE STRMH2O/MCKENNA PK/23314 113019 11/30/2019 52.00 .00

19337 SHOREWOOD HILLS WATER & SE STRMH20/1001 EDGEHILL/1112 113019 11/30/2019 13.00 .00

19337 SHOREWOOD HILLS WATER & SE STRMH202700 OXFORD /34775 113019 11/30/2019 13.00 .00

19337 SHOREWOOD HILLS WATER & SE STRMH20 QUARRY/1126300 113019 11/30/2019 78.00 .00

19337 SHOREWOOD HILLS WATER & SE STRMH2O/OAK WAY/1128500 113019 11/30/2019 39.00 .00

19337 SHOREWOOD HILLS WATER & SE STRMH2O/BRADLEY PARK/3378 113019 11/30/2019 13.00 .00

19337 SHOREWOOD HILLS WATER & SE HEIDEN STRMH20 3589000 113019 11/30/2019 13.00 .00

19337 SHOREWOOD HILLS WATER & SE COM CNTR/POOL/H2O/SEWR 3 113019 11/30/2019 13.00 .00

          Total 100-51-5160-223  BLDGS & PLANT:STORMWATER  CHRG: 995.80 .00

210-51-5160-221  BLDG/PLANT: WATER

19337 SHOREWOOD HILLS WATER & SE COM CNTR/POOL H2O/SEWR/3 113019 11/30/2019 67.50 .00

19337 SHOREWOOD HILLS WATER & SE CONCESSIONS H20/SEWER 34 113019 11/30/2019 34.83 .00

          Total 210-51-5160-221  BLDG/PLANT: WATER: 102.33 .00

210-51-5160-223  BLDGS & PLANT:STORMWATER  CHRG

19337 SHOREWOOD HILLS WATER & SE STRMH20/CONCESSIONS 3402 113019 11/30/2019 13.00 .00

          Total 210-51-5160-223  BLDGS & PLANT:STORMWATER  CHRG: 13.00 .00

100-53-5365-370  RECYCLING/YARDWASTE:FUEL & OIL

19841 STOP-N-GO DPW GAS DPW - GAS 112019 11/19/2019 774.18 .00

          Total 100-53-5365-370  RECYCLING/YARDWASTE:FUEL & OIL: 774.18 .00

100-53-5365-370  RECYCLING/YARDWASTE:FUEL & OIL

19845 STOP-N-GO DPW DIESEL DIESEL-DPW 112019 11/17/2019 565.68 .00

          Total 100-53-5365-370  RECYCLING/YARDWASTE:FUEL & OIL: 565.68 .00

400-53-5330-820  FOUR CORNERS BATHROOMS

20670 TOWN & COUNTRY ENGINEERING I 2019 4 CORNERS 91 12/05/2019 709.30 .00

          Total 400-53-5330-820  FOUR CORNERS BATHROOMS: 709.30 .00

450-53-5320-230  MARSHALL CT,UNIV AVE IMPROVNTS

20670 TOWN & COUNTRY ENGINEERING I BLACKHAWK PATH EXTENSION 79 12/05/2019 603.75 .00

20670 TOWN & COUNTRY ENGINEERING I UNIV AVE RECONSTRUCTION 82 12/05/2019 668.75 .00

20670 TOWN & COUNTRY ENGINEERING I 2019 MARSHALL COURT STREE 85 12/05/2019 1,537.70 .00

          Total 450-53-5320-230  MARSHALL CT,UNIV AVE IMPROVNTS: 2,810.20 .00

470-51-5141-119  PLANING LEGAL ADMIN-WALNUT GRV

20670 TOWN & COUNTRY ENGINEERING I BURBANK PL REDEVELOPMEN 87 12/05/2019 420.00 .00



VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS Payment Approval Report - by GL - Dept Heads (VOSH) Page:     5

Report dates: 12/16/2019-12/16/2019 Dec 13, 2019  03:08PM

Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice Number Invoice Date Net Inv Amount Amount Paid Date Paid

          Total 470-51-5141-119  PLANING LEGAL ADMIN-WALNUT GRV: 420.00 .00

500-56-5620-210  CONTRACTUAL SERVCES

20670 TOWN & COUNTRY ENGINEERING I 2020 FLOOD H20 & STORM H20 92 12/05/2019 1,141.15 .00

          Total 500-56-5620-210  CONTRACTUAL SERVCES: 1,141.15 .00

470-51-5141-119  PLANING LEGAL ADMIN-WALNUT GRV

22040 VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES INC GARDEN HOMES 201911052 11/18/2019 3,677.00 .00

          Total 470-51-5141-119  PLANING LEGAL ADMIN-WALNUT GRV: 3,677.00 .00

450-51-5141-120  PLANNING, LEGAL & ADMINISTRATN

22360 VIERBICHER ASSOCIATES INC TID 3 MRO 81 11/14/2019 245.00 .00

          Total 450-51-5141-120  PLANNING, LEGAL & ADMINISTRATN: 245.00 .00

450-53-5320-230  MARSHALL CT,UNIV AVE IMPROVNTS

22360 VIERBICHER ASSOCIATES INC MARSHALL CT. - PHASE 4 00006-1 11/14/2019 60.00 .00

          Total 450-53-5320-230  MARSHALL CT,UNIV AVE IMPROVNTS: 60.00 .00

470-51-5141-120  PLANNING LEGAL & ADMIN-PYARE

22360 VIERBICHER ASSOCIATES INC ANNUAL UPDATES TID 4 68 11/14/2019 183.75 .00

          Total 470-51-5141-120  PLANNING LEGAL & ADMIN-PYARE: 183.75 .00

480-51-5141-120  PLANNING, LEGAL & ADMIN

22360 VIERBICHER ASSOCIATES INC ANNUAL UPDATES TID 5 11 11/14/2019 220.50 .00

          Total 480-51-5141-120  PLANNING, LEGAL & ADMIN: 220.50 .00

100-211534  UNION DUES

23342 WI PROFESSIONAL POLICE ASSOC UNION DUES DEC 120119 12/01/2019 168.00 .00

          Total 100-211534  UNION DUES: 168.00 .00

100-45-4511-000  COURT FINES

23350 WI DEPT ADMINISTRATION: COURT  SHARED COURT FINES 111919 11/19/2019 932.33 .00

          Total 100-45-4511-000  COURT FINES: 932.33 .00

100-211531  HEALTH INSURANCE - EMPLOYEE

23370 WI DEPT OF EMPLOYE TRUST FUN HEALTH CAR PREMIUM 12122019 12/12/2019 15,423.44 15,423.44 12/17/2019

          Total 100-211531  HEALTH INSURANCE - EMPLOYEE: 15,423.44 15,423.44

400-53-5330-818  HEIDEN HAUS RENOVATIONS

42030 DESTREE DESIGN ARCHITECTS IN PROFESSIONAL DESIGN SERVI 9945 12/01/2019 1,160.00 .00

          Total 400-53-5330-818  HEIDEN HAUS RENOVATIONS: 1,160.00 .00

400-53-5363-200  STORMWATER IMPROVEMENTS

191020 SCHMIDT LANDSACAPE SERVICES GRAVEL PATH CONSTRUCTION  13502 11/24/2019 4,444.91 .00

          Total 400-53-5363-200  STORMWATER IMPROVEMENTS: 4,444.91 .00



VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS Payment Approval Report - by GL - Dept Heads (VOSH) Page:     6

Report dates: 12/16/2019-12/16/2019 Dec 13, 2019  03:08PM

Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice Number Invoice Date Net Inv Amount Amount Paid Date Paid

100-52-5210-322  POLICE: TRAINING EXPENSES

198520 SUNSET LAW ENFORCEMENT .223 AMMO 3297-IN 11/12/2019 580.00 .00

          Total 100-52-5210-322  POLICE: TRAINING EXPENSES: 580.00 .00

100-52-5210-370  POLICE: FUEL & OIL

232040 WEX BANK SQUAD FUEL 62616986 12/06/2019 585.65 .00

          Total 100-52-5210-370  POLICE: FUEL & OIL: 585.65 .00

400-53-5344-870  DPW EQUIPMENT

999768 REINDERS DISTRIBUTION COMPAN TORO 7210 POLARTRACK WITH  1811689-00 12/09/2019 49,100.70 .00

          Total 400-53-5344-870  DPW EQUIPMENT: 49,100.70 .00

100-51-5145-210  D.P.: CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

1000688 COMPUTER MAGIC INC SERVER MANAGED SUPPOR P 4707 11/30/2019 600.00 .00

1000688 COMPUTER MAGIC INC WORKSTATION MANAGEMENT  4707 11/30/2019 2,144.00 .00

1000688 COMPUTER MAGIC INC BACKUP SERV W/CLOUD RETE 4707 11/30/2019 331.00 .00

          Total 100-51-5145-210  D.P.: CONTRACTUAL SERVICES: 3,075.00 .00

100-55-5523-341  HORTICULTURE: CONSULTANT

1000852 MURRAY, SUSAN B LANDSCAPE DESIGN SERVICE 239418 12/09/2019 140.00 .00

          Total 100-55-5523-341  HORTICULTURE: CONSULTANT: 140.00 .00

100-46-4674-100  COMMUNITY CENTER RENTALS

2000123 GLICK, EMILY COMMUNITY CENTER RENTAL  4197 12/09/2019 250.00 250.00 12/17/2019

          Total 100-46-4674-100  COMMUNITY CENTER RENTALS: 250.00 250.00

          Grand Totals:  146,736.41 16,171.99

Report Criteria:

Detail report.

Invoices with totals above $0 included.

Paid and unpaid invoices included.



VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS EXPENSE AND REVENUE COMPARISON TO BUDGET (YEAR-OVER-YEAR) Page:  1

12/11/2019

Account No. Account Title CY YTD Actual CY Budget Variance % of Budget PY Actual PY Budget % of Budget

REVENUES

TAXES

100-41-4111-000 GENERAL PROPERTY TAXES 0 2,840,159 (2,840,159) 0.00% 0 2,770,440 0.00%

100-41-4131-000 PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAX 0 62,000 (62,000) 0.00% 0 62,000 0.00%

100-41-4181-000 INTEREST & PENALTIES ON TAXES 299 20 279 1494.25% 30 0 0.00%

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE

100-43-4330-000 FED/STATE DISASTER RELIEF 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-43-4341-000 STATE SHARED REVENUE 3,133 20,888 (17,755) 15.00% 20,889 20,888 100.00%

100-43-4342-000 FIRE INSURANCE PREMIUM-2% DUES 0 20,773 (20,773) 0.00% 20,773 21,217 97.91%

100-43-4351-000 STATE AID: EXEMPT COMPUTERS 18,055 20,000 (1,945) 90.27% 17,628 46,000 38.32%

100-43-4352-100 LAW ENFORCEMENT TRAINING AIDS 1,600 1,920 (320) 83.33% 1,600 1,800 88.89%

100-43-4352-105 PUBLIC SAFETY EQUIPMENT AIDS 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-43-4352-110 GRANTS TO POLICE DEPARTMENT 0 1,000 (1,000) 0.00% 0 1,000 0.00%

100-43-4353-000 STATE AID: HIGHWAY 220,447 294,065 (73,618) 74.97% 309,721 309,366 100.11%

100-43-4353-100 LOCAL ROADS GRANT 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-43-4353-300 STATE FEMA GRANT 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-43-4358-000 FORESTRY GRANTS 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-43-4360-000 DANE CTY GRANT: LAND CONS DEPT 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

LICENSES & PERMITS

100-44-4411-000 LICENSES: LIQUOR/MALT BEVERAGE 4,780 5,450 (670) 87.71% 4,905 5,000 98.10%

100-44-4412-000 LICENSES: OTHER BUS/OCCUPATION 2,225 2,700 (475) 82.41% 2,103 2,800 75.09%

100-44-4421-000 LICENSES: BICYCLE 0 0 0 0.00% 0 60 0.00%

100-44-4422-000 LICENSES: DOG & CAT 2,932 3,600 (668) 81.45% 2,198 2,600 84.52%

100-44-4423-000 LICENSES: MISC 1,140 1,150 (10) 99.13% 1,244 1,000 124.42%

100-44-4431-000 PERMIT/INSPCTN FEES: BUILDINGS 27,033 16,500 10,533 163.84% 34,658 15,000 231.06%

100-44-4432-000 PERMIT/INSPCTN FEES: HVAC 5,255 6,300 (1,045) 83.42% 5,401 5,000 108.02%

100-44-4433-000 PERMIT/INSPCTN FEES: ELECTRICL 6,553 6,400 153 102.40% 8,470 5,000 169.39%

100-44-4434-000 PERMIT/INSPCTN FEES: PLUMBING 7,170 5,200 1,970 137.88% 8,140 4,000 203.49%

November 30, 2019 November 30, 2018Percent of year elapsed = 91.67%



VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS EXPENSE AND REVENUE COMPARISON TO BUDGET (YEAR-OVER-YEAR) Page:  2

12/11/2019

Account No. Account Title CY YTD Actual CY Budget Variance % of Budget PY Actual PY Budget % of Budget

November 30, 2019 November 30, 2018Percent of year elapsed = 91.67%

100-44-4435-000 PERMIT/INSPCTN FEES: SIGNS 1,984 800 1,184 247.94% 1,279 600 213.16%

100-44-4436-000 PERMIT/INSPCTN FEES:SPRNK/FIRE 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-44-4439-000 PERMIT/INSPCTN FEES: MISC. 1,028 1,315 (287) 78.19% 1,295 400 323.75%

100-44-4441-000 ZONING FEES 2,450 3,600 (1,150) 68.06% 4,650 3,000 155.00%

100-44-4491-000 CABLE TV FRANCHISE FEES 28,156 29,000 (844) 97.09% 29,046 31,000 93.70%

100-44-4492-000 % SURCHARGE FOR RECREATION 0 9,200 (9,200) 0.00% 8,340 7,500 111.20%

FINES, FOREITS & PENALTIES

100-45-4511-000 COURT FINES 35,479 29,000 6,479 122.34% 29,563 32,000 92.38%

100-45-4513-000 PARKING VIOLATIONS 48,076 50,000 (1,924) 96.15% 50,626 43,000 117.73%

100-45-4514-000 POLICE DONATIONS/MISC REVENUES 9,047 2,200 6,847 411.25% 2,372 3,000 79.06%

PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICE

100-46-4611-000 CLERK: MATERIAL & SUPPLY SALES 85 0 85 0.00% 0 25 0.00%

100-46-4612-000 CLERK: EMPLOYEE SUNSHINE FUND 406 400 6 101.44% 873 400 218.14%

100-46-4613-000 CLERK: PARKING PERMITS 571 600 (29) 95.17% 565 700 80.71%

100-46-4621-000 LAW ENFORCEMENT FEES 532 500 32 106.44% 663 400 165.85%

100-46-4642-000 WIS MUNICIPAL RECYCLING GRANT 14,912 14,885 27 100.18% 14,886 15,000 99.24%

100-46-4642-100 RECYCLING PROCEEDS 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-46-4645-000 DISPOSAL REPAIR FEES 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-46-4670-000 BOOK PUBLISHING REVENUES 60 60 (0) 99.70% 60 60 99.70%

100-46-4670-100 RESALE BOOK PUBLISHING REVENUE 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-46-4671-000 BOOK SHIPPING INCOME 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-46-4672-000 CONTRIBUTIONS:PARKS & FORESTRY 7,064 5,000 2,064 141.28% 8,568 0 -

100-46-4672-100 GARDEN PLOT REVENUES 2,760 2,750 10 100.36% 2,675 2,660 100.56%

100-46-4672-110 CONTRIBUTIONS: GARDEN CLUB 5,530 2,500 3,030 221.20% 2,500 2,500 100.00%

100-46-4672-130 CONTRIBUTIONS: HORT CONSULTANT 0 0 0 0.00% 1,000 1,000 100.00%

100-46-4673-100 RECREATION: FOUR CORNERS 22,063 19,000 3,063 116.12% 16,775 15,135 110.84%

100-46-4673-200 RECREATION: LAND REC 24,925 26,500 (1,575) 94.06% 26,075 17,000 153.38%

100-46-4673-210 RECREATION: LAND REC GRANT 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%



VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS EXPENSE AND REVENUE COMPARISON TO BUDGET (YEAR-OVER-YEAR) Page:  3

12/11/2019

Account No. Account Title CY YTD Actual CY Budget Variance % of Budget PY Actual PY Budget % of Budget

November 30, 2019 November 30, 2018Percent of year elapsed = 91.67%

100-46-4673-300 RECREATION: TENNIS 28,191 23,135 5,056 121.85% 23,135 25,500 90.73%

100-46-4673-400 RECREATION: BASEBALL 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-46-4673-500 RECREATION: BASKETBALL 1,990 2,760 (770) 72.10% 2,760 2,200 125.45%

100-46-4673-600 RECREATION: GOLF 5,066 4,000 1,066 126.66% 3,933 3,824 102.84%

100-46-4673-700 RECREATION: KAYAK/CANOE 525 560 (35) 93.75% 595 850 70.00%

100-46-4673-800 RECREATION: INDOOR SOCCER 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-46-4673-900 RECREATION: OUTDOOR SOCCER 10,652 10,346 306 102.96% 10,634 9,700 109.62%

100-46-4674-100 COMMUNITY CENTER RENTALS 416 2,400 (1,984) 17.33% 2,402 2,200 109.18%

100-46-4674-210 JULY 4th FAMILY PICNIC 964 1,200 (236) 80.33% 910 1,500 60.67%

100-46-4674-220 JULY 4th FIREWORKS 9,464 9,500 (36) 99.62% 7,587 8,000 94.84%

INTERGOVERNMENTAL SERVICE CHARGES

100-47-4741-000 WATER DEPT: REIMB FOR SERVICES 0 13,764 (13,764) 0.00% 0 13,494 0.00%

100-47-4742-000 SEWER DIV: REIMB FOR SERVICES 0 11,142 (11,142) 0.00% 0 10,924 0.00%

100-47-4743-000 WATERFRONT: REIMB FOR SERVICES 0 17,375 (17,375) 0.00% 0 17,034 0.00%

100-47-4744-000 STORMWATER:REIMB FOR SERVICES 0 9,364 (9,364) 0.00% 0 9,180 0.00%

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE

100-48-4810-000 INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 82,875 18,000 64,875 460.41% 53,695 15,000 357.97%

100-48-4810-100 BUILD AMERICA BOND SUBSIDY 7,042 7,500 (458) 93.89% 3,781 7,746 48.81%

100-48-4812-000 CAPITAL PROJECT BOND INTEREST 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-48-4815-000 REPAYMENT: WATER UTILTY ADVANC 0 0 0 0.00% 0 18,465 0.00%

100-48-4821-000 RENT: DUE FROM POOL 0 38,500 (38,500) 0.00% 0 38,500 0.00%

100-48-4822-000 RENT: BLACKHAWK C.C. 91,663 100,000 (8,337) 91.66% 83,330 100,300 83.08%

100-48-4823-000 BCC INSURANCE REIMBURSEMENT 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-48-4825-000 RENT: PARKING SPACES 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-48-4827-000 DEVELPR SHARE MAD FIRE EXPENSE 56,068 60,000 (3,932) 93.45% 40,067 39,612 101.15%

100-48-4830-000 MISCELLANEOUS SALES 0 0 0 0.00% 334 0 0.00%

100-48-4831-000 POLICE/ FIRE SALES 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-48-4833-000 VILLAGE TREE SALES 2,225 5,000 (2,775) 44.50% 5,666 6,000 94.44%



VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS EXPENSE AND REVENUE COMPARISON TO BUDGET (YEAR-OVER-YEAR) Page:  4

12/11/2019

Account No. Account Title CY YTD Actual CY Budget Variance % of Budget PY Actual PY Budget % of Budget

November 30, 2019 November 30, 2018Percent of year elapsed = 91.67%

100-48-4836-000 DPW VEHICLE SALES 0 0 0 0.00% 284 0 0.00%

100-48-4838-000 DANE CTY CALENDARS 0 700 (700) 0.00% 708 800 88.48%

100-48-4840-000 INSURANCE DIVIDENDS 5,633 0 5,633 0.00% 14,098 0 0.00%

100-48-4845-000 INSURANCE PREMIUM REFUNDS 1,804 0 1,804 0.00% 1,519 0 0.00%

100-48-4850-000 INSURANCE CLAIMS 9,129 0 9,129 0.00% 2,047 0 0.00%

100-48-4851-000 2018 FLOOD INSURANCE REIMB 32,631 0 32,631 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-48-4855-000 SHWD LEAGUE/FOUNDATN RECEIPTS 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-48-4895-000 REPAYMENT: TIF ADVANCE 0 42,038 (42,038) 0.00% 0 48,602 0.00%

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

100-49-4941-000 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES 1,802 17,000 (15,198) 10.60% 16,230 17,000 95.47%

100-49-4944-000 FUND BALANCE APPLIED 0 0 0 0.00% 0 133,334 0.00%

EXPENSES

VILLAGE BOARD

100-51-5111-310 VILLAGE BOARD: SUP & EXPENSE 2,301 3,200 (899) 71.91% 3,844 1,500 256.24%

100-51-5111-720 VILLAGE BOARD: DONATIONS 0 0 0 0.00% 400 0 0.00%

100-51-5112-310 COMMITTEES: SUP & EXPENSE 1,885 300 1,585 628.40% 425 300 141.57%

100-51-5120-110 JUDICIAL: SALARY & ALLOWANCES 2,736 3,054 (318) 89.59% 2,679 2,965 90.35%

100-51-5120-120 JUDICIAL: COURT CLERK WAGES 23,170 23,319 (149) 99.36% 20,989 22,341 93.95%

100-51-5120-150 JUDICIAL: BENEFITS 6,394 6,596 (202) 96.93% 5,976 6,437 92.84%

100-51-5120-310 JUDICIAL: OFFC. SUP & EXPENSE 1,110 1,700 (590) 65.30% 1,706 1,700 100.36%

100-51-5120-321 JUDICIAL: DUES 145 140 5 103.57% 140 140 100.00%

100-51-5120-322 JUDICIAL: SEMINARS & TRAINING 932 1,800 (868) 51.78% 1,716 1,665 103.08%

100-51-5130-210 LEGAL: GEN. ADVICE & COUNSEL 9,454 17,000 (7,547) 55.61% 14,105 18,000 78.36%

100-51-5130-211 LEGAL: ORDINANCE PROSECUTIONS 25,304 29,000 (3,696) 87.25% 16,418 29,000 56.62%

100-51-5141-120 ADMIN: WAGES 89,957 89,176 780 100.88% 81,093 85,246 95.13%

100-51-5141-150 ADMIN: BENEFITS 27,422 25,592 1,830 107.15% 25,508 23,079 110.52%

100-51-5141-320 ADMIN: DUES & SEMINARS 1,346 1,700 (354) 79.16% 2,347 1,700 138.05%

100-51-5141-340 ADMIN: MONTHLY BULLETIN 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%



VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS EXPENSE AND REVENUE COMPARISON TO BUDGET (YEAR-OVER-YEAR) Page:  5

12/11/2019

Account No. Account Title CY YTD Actual CY Budget Variance % of Budget PY Actual PY Budget % of Budget

November 30, 2019 November 30, 2018Percent of year elapsed = 91.67%

100-51-5141-380 ADMIN: STAFF SUNSHINE FUND 749 400 349 187.21% 655 400 163.80%

100-51-5142-120 CLERK: WAGES 55,185 74,329 (19,144) 74.24% 54,865 70,608 77.70%

100-51-5142-130 EXTRA OFFICE HELP 16,646 19,011 (2,365) 87.56% 17,979 18,366 97.89%

100-51-5142-150 CLERK: BENEFITS 16,543 26,430 (9,887) 62.59% 16,324 20,689 78.90%

100-51-5142-310 CLERK: SUP & EXPENSES 4,262 3,500 762 121.78% 6,673 3,900 171.10%

100-51-5142-322 CLERK: TRAINING/SEMINARS 1,936 2,200 (264) 87.99% 1,326 1,600 82.90%

100-51-5142-340 CLERK: POSTAL EXPENSES 2,540 2,100 440 120.96% 2,383 3,000 79.42%

100-51-5142-500 CLERK: DANE CTY CALENDARS 0 600 (600) 0.00% 599 600 99.75%

100-51-5142-700 CLERK: LICENSE COSTS 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-51-5143-158 PERSONNEL: UNEMPLOYMENT COMP 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-51-5143-160 PERSONNEL: WORKMAN'S COMP INS 41,784 44,000 (2,216) 94.96% 47,080 44,000 107.00%

100-51-5143-190 PERSONNEL: PROVIDED FOR EVALS 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-51-5143-200 PERSONNEL: RECRUITMENT 0 200 (200) 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-51-5143-210 PERSONNEL: MEDICAL EVALUATIONS 0 300 (300) 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-51-5143-300 PERSONNEL: RETIREES INS PREM 16,241 29,131 (12,890) 55.75% 29,834 48,954 60.94%

100-51-5144-140 ELECTIONS: PER DIEM WAGES 1,738 2,750 (1,013) 63.18% 3,186 4,000 79.66%

100-51-5144-340 ELECTIONS: OPERATING SUPPLIES 652 8,100 (7,448) 8.06% 1,584 1,000 158.36%

100-51-5145-210 D.P.: CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 49,378 51,200 (1,822) 96.44% 48,016 40,000 120.04%

100-51-5145-340 D.P.: OPERATIONS EXPENSE 7,962 8,400 (438) 94.79% 2,250 2,700 83.34%

100-51-5145-350 WEBSITE COSTS 671 620 51 108.25% 670 570 117.57%

100-51-5151-210 FINANCE: AUDIT SERVICES 43,521 26,000 17,521 167.39% 38,179 25,000 152.72%

100-51-5151-290 LIFE QUEST FEES/OTHER PAYMENTS 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-51-5151-300 BOND ISSUE EXPENSES 3,750 3,425 325 109.49% 3,900 0 0.00%

100-51-5152-340 TREASURY: OPERATIONS 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-51-5152-390 TREASURY: WRITE-OFF EXPENSE 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-51-5153-210 ASSESSOR: CONTRACTUAL EXPENSE 9,655 10,190 (535) 94.75% 9,472 10,190 92.95%

100-51-5154-511 LIABILITY INS (LEAGUE) 46,604 44,609 1,995 104.47% 48,266 43,729 110.38%

100-51-5154-512 PROPERTY INS (LGPIF) 18,579 14,163 4,416 131.18% 13,619 14,708 92.60%



VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS EXPENSE AND REVENUE COMPARISON TO BUDGET (YEAR-OVER-YEAR) Page:  6

12/11/2019

Account No. Account Title CY YTD Actual CY Budget Variance % of Budget PY Actual PY Budget % of Budget

November 30, 2019 November 30, 2018Percent of year elapsed = 91.67%

100-51-5160-220 BLDGS & PLANT: GAS & ELECTRIC 33,333 42,000 (8,667) 79.37% 31,579 42,000 75.19%

100-51-5160-221 BLDGS & PLANT: WATER 5,529 6,000 (471) 92.15% 4,039 8,000 50.48%

100-51-5160-222 BLDGS & PLANT: TELEPHONE 6,679 0 6,679 0.00% 4,634 4,000 115.85%

100-51-5160-223 BLDGS & PLANT:STORMWATER  CHRG 5,779 6,560 (781) 88.09% 5,154 6,600 78.09%

100-51-5160-240 BLDGS & PLANT: CONTRACTUAL 4,554 5,000 (446) 91.08% 5,594 3,410 164.06%

100-51-5160-530 BLDGS & PLANT: RENTAL EXPENSE 0 0 0 0.00% 4,387 2,500 175.49%

PUBLIC SERVICES

100-52-5210-110 POLICE: SALARIES & ALLOWANCES 90,938 98,654 (7,717) 92.18% 86,116 95,326 90.34%

100-52-5210-120 POLICE: CLERICAL WAGES 64,396 73,210 (8,814) 87.96% 66,817 73,638 90.74%

100-52-5210-121 POLICE: OFFICER WAGE & HOLIDAY 329,092 369,913 (40,821) 88.96% 313,703 322,202 97.36%

100-52-5210-122 POLICE: OVERTIME WAGES 8,434 9,000 (566) 93.72% 22,915 9,000 254.61%

100-52-5210-124 POLICE: PART-TIME DUTY WAGES 54,548 23,000 31,548 237.16% 64,475 48,000 134.32%

100-52-5210-125 POLICE: DIFFERENTIAL 2,195 2,000 195 109.73% 2,174 2,000 108.71%

100-52-5210-128 POLICE: COM SERVICE OFFICERS 1,590 4,400 (2,810) 36.14% 0 4,400 0.00%

100-52-5210-129 POLICE: CROSSING GUARD WAG 3,422 6,000 (2,578) 57.04% 4,983 5,000 99.66%

100-52-5210-130 POLICE: EMPLOYMENT BONUS 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-52-5210-150 POLICE: BENEFITS 172,089 190,976 (18,888) 90.11% 186,529 196,549 94.90%

100-52-5210-170 POLICE: EDUCATION REIMB 0 0 0 0.00% 0 1,000 0.00%

100-52-5210-210 POLICE: CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 11,555 15,000 (3,445) 77.03% 9,457 14,000 67.55%

100-52-5210-310 POLICE: OFFICE SUPPLIES & EXP 2,035 3,000 (965) 67.82% 4,791 3,000 159.71%

100-52-5210-321 POLICE: DUES & SEMINARS 1,767 2,500 (733) 70.69% 2,267 2,000 113.36%

100-52-5210-322 POLICE: TRAINING EXPENSES 14,654 9,000 5,654 162.82% 7,712 9,000 85.69%

100-52-5210-340 POLICE: OPERATING EXPENSE 14,588 16,000 (1,412) 91.18% 17,753 16,000 110.96%

100-52-5210-341 POLICE: UNIFORM EXPENSE 7,331 6,000 1,331 122.19% 6,459 5,000 129.18%

100-52-5210-345 POLICE: PROMOTION 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-52-5210-350 POLICE: VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT 6,542 5,000 1,542 130.84% 10,331 5,000 206.62%

100-52-5210-370 POLICE: FUEL & OIL 8,592 10,000 (1,408) 85.92% 9,044 7,000 129.20%

100-52-5210-380 POLICE: DRUG PREVENTION 1,000 1,000 0 100.00% 0 0 0.00%



VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS EXPENSE AND REVENUE COMPARISON TO BUDGET (YEAR-OVER-YEAR) Page:  7

12/11/2019

Account No. Account Title CY YTD Actual CY Budget Variance % of Budget PY Actual PY Budget % of Budget

November 30, 2019 November 30, 2018Percent of year elapsed = 91.67%

100-52-5210-390 POLICE: INSURANCE COSTS 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-52-5220-210 FIRE: CONTRACTUAL EXPENSE 560,101 575,475 (15,374) 97.33% 0 570,119 0.00%

100-52-5220-215 FIRE: 2% DUES TO MAD FIRE DEPT 22,587 20,773 1,814 108.73% 20,773 21,217 97.91%

100-52-5220-590 FIRE: HYDRANT RENTAL 0 0 0 0.00% 0 168,281 0.00%

100-52-5240-150 INSPECTIONS: BENEFITS 2,154 2,303 (149) 93.54% 2,306 2,180 105.77%

100-52-5240-211 INSPECTIONS: BUILDINGS 14,779 14,500 279 101.92% 17,141 14,000 122.43%

100-52-5240-212 INSPECTIONS: HVAC 5,329 5,500 (171) 96.88% 4,621 5,000 92.42%

100-52-5240-213 INSPECTIONS: ELECTRICAL 5,911 7,500 (1,589) 78.82% 5,953 7,000 85.04%

100-52-5240-214 INSPECTIONS: PLUMBING 1,957 2,600 (643) 75.25% 2,373 2,500 94.93%

100-52-5240-340 INSPECTIONS: OPERATIONS 707 100 607 707.40% 181 0 0.00%

100-52-5260-290 DANE COUNTY RADIO CONTRACT 4,277 6,061 (1,784) 70.57% 7,794 7,058 110.43%

PUBLIC WORKS

100-53-5300-121 AIDABLE WORK: LABOR 68,604 70,214 (1,610) 97.71% 61,655 72,262 85.32%

100-53-5300-150 AIDABLE WORK: BENEFITS 14,336 12,084 2,252 118.63% 11,981 12,560 95.39%

100-53-5300-340 AIDABLE WORK: OPERATING EXP. 11,839 18,000 (6,161) 65.77% 18,853 18,000 104.74%

100-53-5300-450 SCHOOL SAFE ZONE 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-53-5300-600 AIDABLE: INSURANCE REPAIRS 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-53-5320-350 GARAGE: VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT 16,647 15,000 1,647 110.98% 12,388 18,000 68.82%

100-53-5320-370 GARAGE: FUEL & OIL 10,742 12,000 (1,258) 89.52% 12,523 8,000 156.53%

100-53-5330-210 STR MAINT/REPAIR: ENGINEERING 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-53-5330-230 STR MAINT/REPAIR: ANNUAL CNTCT 850 0 850 0.00% 10,000 0 0.00%

100-53-5342-220 STREET LIGHTING: POWER 16,415 18,000 (1,586) 91.19% 15,300 16,000 95.62%

100-53-5342-340 STREET LIGHTING: CONTRACTUAL 2,019 15,000 (12,981) 13.46% 3,393 20,000 16.97%

100-53-5344-350 STORM SEWERS: DISCHARGE PERMIT 192 175 17 109.56% 149 85 175.41%

100-53-5352-300 BUS SERVICE 0 30,000 (30,000) 0.00% 0 30,000 0.00%

100-53-5362-290 REFUSE COLL: CONTRACTUAL SERVC 81,535 96,289 (14,754) 84.68% 104,766 94,360 111.03%

100-53-5363-290 METRO LANDFILL EXPENSE 10,250 10,250 0 100.00% 10,750 10,750 100.00%

100-53-5365-121 RECYCLING/YARDWASTE:LABOR 36,999 45,115 (8,115) 82.01% 37,066 50,931 72.78%



VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS EXPENSE AND REVENUE COMPARISON TO BUDGET (YEAR-OVER-YEAR) Page:  8

12/11/2019

Account No. Account Title CY YTD Actual CY Budget Variance % of Budget PY Actual PY Budget % of Budget

November 30, 2019 November 30, 2018Percent of year elapsed = 91.67%

100-53-5365-150 RECYCLING/YARDWASTE:BENEFITS 6,973 7,764 (792) 89.80% 5,897 8,852 66.62%

100-53-5365-340 RECYCLING/YARDWASTE: SUP EXP 1,375 4,100 (2,725) 33.54% 5,756 4,100 140.39%

100-53-5365-370 RECYCLING/YARDWASTE:FUEL & OIL 3,401 2,800 601 121.45% 3,457 2,800 123.47%

VILLAGE HALL

100-54-5400-130 VILLAGE HALL: CLEANING 4,195 4,819 (624) 87.05% 4,157 5,668 73.35%

100-54-5400-150 VILLAGE HALL: BENEFITS 1,274 829 445 153.64% 540 985 54.86%

NON-AIDABLE SERVICES

100-55-5500-121 NON-AIDABLE WORK: LABOR 102,988 105,700 (2,712) 97.43% 99,998 105,083 95.16%

100-55-5500-150 NON-AIDABLE WORK: BENEFITS 20,338 18,191 2,147 111.80% 17,066 18,265 93.44%

100-55-5500-340 NON-AIDABLE: OPERATING EXPENSE 28,027 25,000 3,027 112.11% 20,372 28,000 72.76%

100-55-5500-600 NON-AIDABLE: INSURANCE COSTS 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-55-5500-700 COMMUNITY GARDENS 990 500 490 198.00% 458 500 91.60%

100-55-5510-340 2018 FLOOD EXPENSES 16,069 0 16,069 0.00% 38,313 0 0.00%

100-55-5514-121 COMMUNITY CTR: WAGES 232 811 (579) 28.59% 1,341 578 232.01%

100-55-5514-150 COMMUNITY CTR: WAGE BENEFITS 55 140 (84) 39.68% 196 100 196.22%

100-55-5514-220 COMMUNITY CTR: GAS & ELECTRIC 2,460 7,400 (4,940) 33.25% 5,099 7,400 68.90%

100-55-5520-121 FORESTER:  WAGES 55,832 64,191 (8,359) 86.98% 52,876 62,956 83.99%

100-55-5520-122 GRANT FUNDED HORT WAGES 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-55-5520-125 HORT ASSISTANT WAGES 14,285 23,000 (8,715) 62.11% 11,364 15,000 75.76%

100-55-5520-150 FORESTER: WAGE BENEFITS 15,776 17,581 (1,805) 89.73% 14,956 17,461 85.65%

100-55-5520-320 PARKS:PROJECTS 15,463 12,500 2,963 123.70% 11,264 7,000 160.91%

100-55-5520-340 PARKS:OPERATING EXPENSE 4,375 4,800 (425) 91.15% 4,899 4,400 111.34%

100-55-5520-342 VILLAGE TREE SALES COSTS 2,031 5,000 (2,970) 40.61% 5,281 6,000 88.02%

100-55-5520-350 McKENNA PARK 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-55-5520-370 FORESTER: FUEL & OIL 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-55-5523-341 HORTICULTURE: CONSULTANT 840 0 840 0.00% 847 1,000 84.70%

100-55-5523-343 HORTICULTURE: REFORESTATION 8,854 14,000 (5,146) 63.24% 13,323 9,000 148.04%

100-55-5523-350 HORTICULTURE:PLANTINGS 1,015 3,000 (1,985) 33.83% 2,570 2,000 128.51%



VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS EXPENSE AND REVENUE COMPARISON TO BUDGET (YEAR-OVER-YEAR) Page:  9

12/11/2019

Account No. Account Title CY YTD Actual CY Budget Variance % of Budget PY Actual PY Budget % of Budget

November 30, 2019 November 30, 2018Percent of year elapsed = 91.67%

100-55-5523-550 FORESTRY GRANTS 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-55-5523-600 TREE MAINTENANCE 34,324 40,000 (5,676) 85.81% 26,119 30,000 87.06%

100-55-5523-650 TREE REMOVALS 29,146 30,000 (855) 97.15% 23,363 25,000 93.45%

100-55-5531-121 FOUR CORNERS: WAGES 13,785 13,000 785 106.04% 12,581 12,000 104.85%

100-55-5531-150 FOUR-CORNERS: BENEFITS 1,055 1,000 55 105.45% 962 900 106.94%

100-55-5531-340 FOUR CORNERS: OPERATING EXPNSE 1,502 1,500 2 100.10% 3,271 650 503.22%

100-55-5532-121 LAND RECREATION: WAGES 15,108 12,500 2,608 120.87% 11,867 13,300 89.23%

100-55-5532-150 LAND RECREATION: BENEFITS 1,156 1,000 156 115.58% 908 1,017 89.27%

100-55-5532-340 LAND RECREATION: OPERATING EXP 1,520 1,700 (180) 89.39% 4,096 1,700 240.94%

100-55-5533-121 TENNIS: WAGES 16,206 18,000 (1,794) 90.04% 17,652 16,000 110.33%

100-55-5533-150 TENNIS: BENEFITS 1,240 1,400 (160) 88.56% 1,350 1,300 103.88%

100-55-5533-340 TENNIS: OPERATING EXPENSES 6,205 3,000 3,205 206.83% 6,441 1,000 644.07%

100-55-5534-140 BASEBALL: UMPIRE PER DIEM EXP 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-55-5534-340 BASEBALL: OPERATING EXPENSES 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-55-5535-121 BASKETBALL: WAGES 2,151 1,300 851 165.49% 1,250 1,000 124.95%

100-55-5535-150 BASKETBALL: BENEFITS 165 100 65 164.56% 96 77 124.17%

100-55-5535-340 BASKETBALL: OPERATING EXPENSE 688 750 (62) 91.71% 835 750 111.35%

100-55-5536-121 INDOOR SOCCER: WAGES 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-55-5536-150 INDOOR SOCCER: BENEFITS 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-55-5536-340 INDOOR SOCCER: OPERATING EXPEN 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-55-5537-340 SPEC EVENTS: JULY 4th EXPENSE 1,624 1,350 274 120.29% 1,304 1,375 94.82%

100-55-5537-341 SPEC EVENTS: FIREWORKS EXPENSE 9,464 9,000 464 105.16% 8,772 9,000 97.46%

100-55-5537-342 SPEC EVENTS: RECOGNITION NIGHT 4,970 4,750 220 104.62% 4,637 4,450 104.21%

100-55-5538-340 OUTDOOR SOCCER: OPERATNG EXPEN 5,942 7,000 (1,058) 84.88% 6,577 7,000 93.96%

100-55-5540-340 GOLF: OPERATING EXPENSES 5,275 4,500 775 117.22% 4,733 4,000 118.33%

100-55-5550-390 KAYAK/CANOE RENTAL EXPENSES 0 550 (550) 0.00% 560 550 101.82%

CONSERVATION & DEVELOPMENT

100-56-5630-150 PLANNER 792 800 (8) 99.00% 1,400 800 175.00%



VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS EXPENSE AND REVENUE COMPARISON TO BUDGET (YEAR-OVER-YEAR) Page:  10

12/11/2019

Account No. Account Title CY YTD Actual CY Budget Variance % of Budget PY Actual PY Budget % of Budget

November 30, 2019 November 30, 2018Percent of year elapsed = 91.67%

100-56-5640-210 PROF CONSULTANT:PLAN REVIEW 6,597 800 5,797 824.63% 1,207 800 150.93%

CAPITAL OUTLAY: GENERAL

100-57-5735-775 CAP OUTLAY: CREW MOWER UNIT 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-57-5751-800 CAP OUTLAY: COMPUTERS 7,038 10,000 (2,962) 70.38% 0 0 0.00%

100-57-5751-810 CAP OUTLAY: GEN ADM EQUIPMENT 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-57-5751-825 CAP OUTLAY: ADMIN DP SOFTWARE 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-57-5751-850 CAP OUTLAY:DPW CAPITAL EQUIPMT 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-57-5752-811 CAP OUTLAY: PD COMMNCTNS EQPT 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-57-5752-813 CAP OUTLAY: PD VEHICLE REPL 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-57-5752-815 CAP OUTLAY: PD SAFETY EQPT 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-57-5752-817 CAP OUTLAY: PD EQUIPMENT 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-57-5752-821 CAP OUTLAY: FD COMMNCTNS EQPT 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-57-5752-825 CAP OUTLAY: FD SAFETY EQPT 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

*** DELETED A FEW EXTINCT CAPITAL OUTLAY ACCOUNTS

OTHER FINANCING USES

100-59-5910-900 CONTINGENT ACCOUNT 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

100-59-5920-900 DUE TO DEBT SERVICE (7,710) 958,205 (965,915) -0.80% 609,134 926,422 65.75%

TOTAL REVENUES 853,892 3,899,719 (3,045,827) 21.90% 913,281 3,978,316 22.96%

TOTAL EXPENSES 2,734,509 3,899,719 (1,165,210) 70.12% 2,824,232 3,947,254 71.55%

LGIP General Acct. Interest Rate Nov-19 1.71%

LGIP Tax Acct. Interest Rate Nov-19 1.71%

Park Bank Tax Acct. Interest Rate Nov-19 2.17%



 

Page 1 of 7 
 

VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES 

Monday, November 18, 2019 
 

1.  Call to Order- Village President David Benforado called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm. 

2.  Roll Call- Members of the Board present were Mr. Benforado and Trustees Shabnam Lotfi, 

Cokie Albrecht, Tracy Bailey, John Imes, Mark Lederer, Scott Friedman, and Village Treasurer 

Sean Cote.  Also in attendance were Police Chief Aaron Chapin, DPW Chief John Mitmoen, 

Administrative Services Manager/ Deputy Clerk David Sykes, Village Administrator Karl Frantz 

and Village Clerk Karla Endres. 

3.  Statement of Public Notice- Karl Frantz stated the meeting has been properly noticed. 

4.  Procedures Orientation- None. 

5.  Appearances and Communications  

Lamees Elhassan, 1110 Shorewood Blvd., would like to pursue allowing miniature goats to be 

permitted in the village.  The goats have sustainability benefits as well as health benefits and 

make great pets. 

6.  Board Matters 

E.  New Business Resolutions and Motions 

iii)  Resolution R-2019-15 Adopting Village of Shorewood Hills Sustainability Plan 

(recommended by Ad hoc Sustainability Committee)  

iv)  Recognize Village green team as a Village resident group/club that can use Village 

facilities 

Anne Readel came to discuss the initiative to create the Green Team and explain the 

sustainability plan that has been created by the Ad hoc Sustainability Committee.   She is asking 

for approval of the plan, adoption of the resolution; dissolve the ad hoc committee and forming a 

Green Team as an organized Village user group. 

Mr. Imes moved and Ms. Bailey seconded the motion to approve the Shorewood Hills 

sustainability plan, adopt resolution R-2019-15, dissolve the Ad hoc Committee and approve the 

formation of the Green Team that would be considered a Village user group, packaging III and 

IV together. 

Motion passed 7-0. 

 

 



 

Page 2 of 7 
 

vi)  Consider authorizing Village Engineer to develop specifications and obtain quotes for 

speed hump installation on Edgehill Drive (recommended by Public Works Committee) 

vii)  Authorize Strand Inc.to measure speed and traffic volumes on Edgehill Drive and Oak 

Way, Shorewood Boulevard before and after speed hump installation (recommended by 

Public Works Committee) 

Ms. Bailey gave a brief summary of the proposal from the Public Works Committee for the 

installation of speed humps as a pilot study to see how effective they are for future use in the 

village.  The committee also studied the five busiest streets in the Village in an effort to find a 

create safer roads for pedestrians and bikers.  She mentioned the pilot program would be 

restricted to Edgehill Drive until the complete study was finished before any other streets in the 

Village would be considered for speed hump installation.   

Ms. Bailey moved and Mr. Imes seconded a motion to consider installation of speed humps on 

Edgehill Drive and authorize Strand Inc. to measure speed and traffic volumes on Edgehill 

Drive, Shorewood Blvd and Wood Lane. 

Mr. Lederer indicated he has concerns with the policy and what the target of the policy is that 

does not provide any speed data and is solely based on speculation.   

Ms. Lotfi asked if sidewalks were an option. 

Ms. Bailey indicated it is a philosophical approach and that she will not feel safe on the roads as 

a pedestrian until there are speed humps installed.  The committee would rather leave speed out 

of the policy and the purpose is primarily to allow for all users of the street to feel safe at all 

times. 

Nancy Lindroth, 1015 Edgehill Drive, gave a brief background on the history of speed slowing 

measures.  She said there are many young families on Edgehill Drive and to bring things back to 

where the dynamics changed when speed humps were placed on Shorewood Blvd. 

Joanne Thomson, 1120 Edgehill Drive, is concerned for her safety on Edgehill Drive as a 

resident.   

Karthik Anantharaman, 1112 Edgehill Drive, explained that google maps directs people to take 

Edgehill Drive and people who are not from the Village don’t go by the 20 MPH speed limit.  

The leaves, snow and construction vehicles force them to walk in the center of the road. 

Scott Cooper, 3611 Sunset Drive, is concerned that this is a one-dimensional plan if we only 

consider Edgehill Drive for speed humps.  He feels there is a systemic issue and this is not just 

one street and will open Pandora’s box for requests to install humps throughout the village.  He 

feels it is important to have a system, measure what works, and be prepared to roll it out 

throughout the Village.   

Laura Valderama, 4600 University Ave, explained her support of the pilot program.  She does 

not feel safe walking in the village in general due to lack of sidewalks. 



 

Page 3 of 7 
 

Ron Campo, 1133 Edgehill Drive, agrees with what other residents have said tonight and that the 

walkways are often obstructed with leaves and brush.  He feels the speeding is prevalent more at 

night than during the day.   

Mr. Benforado would prefer to have a rubric in place before the Board starts spending money on 

speed humps on one street and spending money on Strand to do a study.  He would like the 

Public Works committee to do a study on what streets that would need speed humps and which 

ones would not.  He feels the Village needs a policy and can obtain a policy that would be 

effective for the Village.  

Tabled 8:01 pm to go to MSA topic on the agenda 

v)  Consider consulting agreement with MSA for Comprehensive Plan Update 

(recommended by Plan Commission) –  

Mr. Benforado briefly summarized the plan to update the Comprehensive Plan at a cost of 

$31,500.  

Jason Valerius, Matt Frater of MSA will be the project managers.  Matt will be the Village’s 

initial contact for the project.   Jason was at the meeting and introduced himself. 

Mr. Imes moved and Mr. Friedman seconded a motion to approve consulting with MSA for the 

Comprehensive plan update in an amount not to exceed $32,000. 

Motion passed 7-0. 

Returned to agenda item on speed humps at 8:08pm. 

Ms. Albrecht feels there is a consensus that there are concerns regarding safety but is also 

concerned that there should be a common plan in the future for the Village regarding traffic 

calming measures.  She feels the money for evaluating speed before and after should be spent 

now to hire an expert traffic consultant to develop a plan and then move forward in the spring 

once these steps have been taken.  

Mr. Friedman is in support of moving forward with the speed humps tonight but also feels there 

is a need for a plan or rubric to be in place in the future. 

Ms. Bailey feels that there may be many other streets in the village that want speed humps and 

will show that the Village has a larger problem on hand that needs to be dealt with.  She feels 

that speed humps are not a solution to the problem for the entire village but could help on certain 

streets with less options for traffic calming measures.  She feels there is a Village wide issue that 

needs to be considered in the future with a traffic engineer. 

Mr. Imes feels that this is a pilot and that it shows the Village as being responsive to what they 

have heard from their committees and residents.  The committee was responsive and provided a 

plan with a pilot program with Edgehill Drive. 

Ms. Albrecht mentioned she agrees with the comments but is still questioning the timing of this 

pilot.  She would like to see the plan worked on first and respond in the spring with action. 



 

Page 4 of 7 
 

Mr. Benforado would like to see a rubric from the Public Works Committee with a plan in place 

but he will support this action tonight. 

Authorizing the Village Engineer to create specs and obtain quotes on installing speed humps on 

Edgehill Drive as well as authorizing Strand Inc. to measure speed and traffic volume on 

Edgehill Drive, Oak Way and Shorewood Blvd.  

Motion passed 5-2. Ms. Albrecht and Mr. Lederer opposed. 

A.  Payment of Bills  

Mr. Cote reviewed the October prepaids and regular November board bills.  He authorized the 

Board ratify the October prepaids in the amount of $23,787.19 and the November board bills in 

the amount of $1,043010.92 for a total of $1,066,798.11. 

Mr. Lederer moved and Ms. Bailey seconded approval of the October prepaids and November 

board bills totaling $1,066,798.11. 

Motion passed 7-0.  

B.  Consent Agenda 

i)  October 21 regular and November 4 special meeting minutes 

Mr. Lederer moved and Mr. Friedman seconded a motion that the Board approve the revised 

minutes with minor edits for October 21, 2019 and November 4, 2019. 

Motion passed 7-0. 

C.  Ordinances 

i)  Ordinance L-2019-6 Second and third reading of an ordinance amending Section 7.08 of 

the Village code regulating parking on Catafalque Drive (recommended by Public Works 

Committee) 

Ms. Bailey gave a brief background on the ordinance. 

Ms. Bailey moved Mr. Lederer seconded a motion to approve the second and third reading of an 

ordinance amending Section 7.08 of the Village code regulating parking on Catafalque Drive. 

Motion passed 7-0. 

D.  Public Hearings 

i)  Public Hearing on Village 2020 Budget 

a)  Open Public Hearing- 8:34 pm opened the public hearing 

b)  Public invited to speak –There was no public comment. 

c)  Close Public Hearing- 8:35 pm closed the public hearing. 

 



 

Page 5 of 7 
 

i)  Resolution R-2019-13 Approving 2020 Village budgets and setting property tax levy 

(recommended by Finance Committee) 

Mr. Lederer moved and Mr. Imes seconded a motion for the Board to approve Resolution R-

2019-13 approving the 2020 Village budgets and setting the 2020 General Fund Budget of the 

Village in the amount of $4,055,619, the tax levy for 2019 payable 2020 in the amount of 

$2,961,319, the 2020 budgets of the debt service ($1,006,873), water ($555,774), sewer 

($328,366), stormwater ($221,459), TIF district 3 ($899,487), TIF district 4 ($277,327), TIF 

district 5 ($144,778), capital ($542,854), pool ($552,642), and waterfront ($67,485) funds. 

Mr. Frantz gave a brief explanation of the expenditure restraint program that the Village 

qualified for with the mill rate exceeding five mills and reducing the general fund increase to 

under 2%.  The Village took the capital items in the budget that were considered assets to the 

Village and moved them from the general fund to the capital fund.  Then the $50,000 borrowing 

would be moved to the capital fund to take that expense off the levy, which would be paid off in 

February 2020.  The Department of Revenue stated the Village would have to levy the remaining 

flood expenses this year and that it could not be levied in future years when the village obtains 

the actual costs for repairs.     

Mr. Lederer confirmed that originally there were $7,000 in unreimbursed expenses which was in 

the levy.  There are an additional $16,000 maximum unreimbursed expenses from FEMA that 

could be included in the levy. 

Mr. Benforado feels the Board should levy for the additional flood expenses, which would bring 

the total levy to $2,977,507.00 in the resolution which would be an amendment to the motion 

made by Mr. Lederer.  He also feels the Board should also borrow the $50,000 note in total. 

There was agreement to amend the initial motion to correct the total levy amount to 

$2,977,507.00. 

Motion passed 7-0. 

ii)  Resolution R-2019-14 Authorizing the issuance and sale of a $50,000 general obligation 

note (recommended by Finance Committee) 

Mr. Lederer moved and Ms. Albrecht seconded a motion to authorize issuance and sale of a 

$50,000 general obligation note. 

Motion passed 7-0. 

viii)  Consider purchase of Erskine Snow Thrower 

John Mitmoen feels this piece of equipment would be essential with the new portion of the bike 

path for snow removal.  The curves on the path make the skid steer unusable due to the width of 

the path, the existing snow thrower is also beyond its useful life and is subject to breakdown.   

Ms. Lotfi moved and Mr. Lederer seconded a motion to authorize the purchase of the Erskine 

Snow Thrower in an amount not to exceed $50,000. 



 

Page 6 of 7 
 

Motion passed 7-0. 

F.  Appointments 

i)  Public Works - Tracy Koziol (fill Farah Kaiksow’s position) 

ii)  Recreation Committee - Peter Wickman (fill vacant position) 

Mr. Friedman moved and Ms. Bailey seconded a motion to appoint Tracy Koziol to Public 

Works Committee and Peter Wickman to Recreation Committee. 

Motion passed 7-0. 

 

7.  Reports of Officials and Committees 

A.  Village President 

i) Need for additional Poll Workers- Will be advertised in the bulletin and asked Trustees to 

spread the word. 

ii) Ask staff to develop list of 2020 meeting dates- Will have a list for the December Board 

meeting. 

iii) Plans for January 2020 Village caucus - January 21, 2020 

B. Village Administrator- Nothing to report. 

C. Personnel Committee- Did not meet. 

D. Finance Committee- Did not meet. 

E. Plan Commission - Mr. Benforado briefly explained the changes being proposed to the 

zoning code ordinance with regards to the height, floor area and lake setback line.  They will also 

be working on short term rentals in the Village (aka Air B&B’s.) 

Dave Benforado recused himself at 9:24 pm and sat in the audience. 

Mr. Frantz gave a brief update on the Garden Homes development.  Tom Degen applied for the 

building permits for the remaining lots in Garden Homes that he owns.   

Mr. Imes mentioned their meeting with Scott Harrington from Vandewalle and Associates about 

the Garden Homes Neighborhood Plan and what the Village’s options were.  The Plan 

Commission agreed that they would like to see the process through and finish out the process 

with Vandewalle.   He also mentioned that if Mr. Degen’s development could create enough 

monies, it is possible to create a tax increment district to pay for public improvements. 

Mr. Benforado rejoined the Board at the table at 9:51 pm. 

F. Public Works Committee 



 

Page 7 of 7 
 

i) Update on BRT meeting with the City of Madison-Met with David Trowbridge and his 

assistant to talk about the location of the Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) stations. 

G. Services Committee- Nothing to report. 

H. Public Health & Safety Committee- Did not meet. 

I. Recreation Committee- Nothing to report 

J. Ad hoc Sustainability Committee- Previously updated 

K. Ad hoc Disaster Preparedness Committee- Met and viewed two notification systems.  

L. Ad hoc Stormwater Committee- The high expenses associated with the tunnel and the 

amount of federal assistance that could be diverted from the University Ave project indicate that 

it is not feasible to combine those projects.   

In the interim it appears the best short-term option is to extend a 96 inch pipe on University Ave, 

although this will only improve things in small storms and will not have much impact on the 

larger ones that cause massive flooding.  The Village will also be working with the City of 

Madison on efforts to also contain water upstream. 

M. Ad hoc Heiden Haus Committee- Nothing to report. 

N. Parks Committee- Discussed long-term goals, memorial benches. 

O. Blackhawk Liaison Committee- Did not meet. 

P. Pool Committee- Did not meet. 

Q. Waterfront Committee- Did not meet. 

R. Joint Campus Committee – Discussed the Kohl Center addition.  Moving the inner-city bus 

station that will be located near Lake Street.  

8. Next Meeting date: December 16 

9. Adjourn-  

Meeting was adjourned at 10:12 pm. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Karla Endres 

Village Clerk 



Grade Job Title Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 Step 7 Step 8 Step 9 Step 10 Step 11 OFF

22 36.10 37.13 38.16 39.19 40.23 41.26 42.29 43.33 44.36 45.39 46.41 0.00

21 34.72 35.70 36.70 37.69 38.68 39.67 40.67 41.65 42.64 43.64 44.62 0.00

20 Police Chief, Fire Chief/EMS 33.22 34.17 35.12 36.07 37.01 37.96 38.92 39.87 40.82 41.76 42.71 0.00

19 31.91 32.81 33.73 34.63 35.55 36.47 37.37 38.29 39.19 40.11 41.02 0.00

18 Public Works Director 30.39 31.25 32.12 32.99 33.86 34.73 35.59 36.46 37.33 38.20 39.07 0.00

Mitmoen

17 28.95 29.77 30.60 31.42 32.26 33.08 33.90 34.73 35.56 36.39 37.21 0.00

16 Lieutenant 27.56 28.35 29.13 29.92 30.71 31.50 32.29 33.07 33.86 34.65 35.44 36.48

Village Clerk Endres Martens

Admin Services Mgr / Deputy Clerk Sykes

15 Police Sergeant 26.22 26.97 27.72 28.47 29.22 29.97 30.71 31.47 32.21 32.96 33.71 33.71

Weitzel

14 Police Officers 24.98 25.69 26.41 27.12 27.84 28.54 29.26 29.97 30.69 31.40 32.12 0.00

13 23.79 24.47 25.14 25.83 26.50 27.19 27.87 28.54 29.23 29.90 30.59 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

12 Horticulturist 22.65 23.30 23.94 24.59 25.24 25.89 26.54 27.17 27.82 28.47 29.12 29.71

George

11 DPW Mechanic Specialist 21.57 22.18 22.80 23.41 24.04 24.66 25.27 25.89 26.50 27.12 27.73 0.00

10 Public Works Crew Old 20.57 21.16 21.76 22.34 22.93 23.52 24.10 24.69 25.28 25.86 26.45 29.32

Handschke Moyer

9 Admin Assistant/Municipal Court Clerk 19.61 20.17 20.72 21.29 21.85 22.41 22.97 23.53 24.09 24.64 25.21 26.99

Public Works Crew New Bennett Steinle Davis

8 18.83 19.37 19.90 20.44 20.98 21.51 22.06 22.59 23.12 23.67 24.20 0.00

7 CSO/Police Admin 18.10 18.62 19.13 19.66 20.17 20.69 21.21 21.72 22.24 22.75 23.28 0.00

Account Clerk Bybee Kolberg

6 Records Clerk/Administrative 17.37 17.86 18.36 18.85 19.35 19.85 20.34 20.84 21.34 21.84 22.32 0.00

5 Forestry Assistant 16.55 17.02 17.50 17.97 18.44 18.91 19.39 19.86 20.33 20.80 21.28 0.00

4 15.73 16.17 16.63 17.08 17.53 17.97 18.43 18.88 19.33 19.77 20.22 0.00

Lorhmann

3 Police Clerk 14.96 15.39 15.80 16.23 16.66 17.09 17.52 17.95 18.37 18.80 19.23 0.00

2 data entry and maintenance 14.21 14.62 15.03 15.43 15.84 16.24 16.65 17.06 17.46 17.88 18.29 18.64
Kramer/

Carbon

2017 2018 2019 2020

Administrator 53.89 55.24 57.17 58.31

Frantz

Police Chief

44.71 45.83 47.43 48.38

Chapin

2020 step and 2%, off grid 2.0%



2020

ERIK JOHNSON'S SALARY AS POOL MANAGER

EMPLOYEE # 61051

PAY CODE 1

Pay      Total $24,583.98

Period Pay Date $ Amount Per hr Hours

$ 27.02

1 01/09/20 $945.70 35

2 01/23/20 $945.70 35

3 02/06/20 $945.70 35

4 02/20/20 $945.70 35

5 03/05/20 $945.70 35

6 03/19/20 $945.70 35

7 04/02/20 $945.70 35

8 04/16/20 $945.70 35

9 04/30/20 $945.70 35

10 05/14/20 $945.70 35

11 05/28/20 $945.70 35

12 06/11/20 $945.70 35

13 06/25/20 $945.70 35

14 07/09/20 $945.70 35

15 07/23/20 $945.70 35

16 08/06/20 $945.70 35

17 08/20/20 $945.70 35

18 09/03/20 $945.70 35

19 09/17/20 $945.70 35

20 10/01/20 $945.70 35

21 10/15/20 $945.70 35

22 10/29/20 $945.70 35

23 11/12/20 $945.70 35

24 11/26/20 $945.70 35

25 12/10/20 $945.70 35

26 12/24/20 $941.48 35

TOTAL $24,583.98 910

Pool recommended 2% increase on 

12/11/2019

Z:\EMPLOYEE\Seasonal\2020\Pool\EJ's proposed 2020 wage.xlsx



2020

CHRIS CARBON'S SALARY AS POOL CONSULTANT

EMPLOYEE # 60310

PAY CODE 1

Pay      Total $8,129.89

Period Pay Date $ Amount Per hr Hours

$ 15.63

1 01/09/20 $312.60 20

2 01/23/20 $312.60 20

3 02/06/20 $312.60 20

4 02/20/20 $312.60 20

5 03/05/20 $312.60 20

6 03/19/20 $312.60 20

7 04/02/20 $312.60 20

8 04/16/20 $312.60 20

9 04/30/20 $312.60 20

10 05/14/20 $312.60 20

11 05/28/20 $312.60 20

12 06/11/20 $312.60 20

13 06/25/20 $312.60 20

14 07/09/20 $312.60 20

15 07/23/20 $312.60 20

16 08/06/20 $312.60 20

17 08/20/20 $312.60 20

18 09/03/20 $312.60 20

19 09/17/20 $312.60 20

20 10/01/20 $312.60 20

21 10/15/20 $312.60 20

22 10/29/20 $312.60 20

23 11/12/20 $312.60 20

24 11/26/20 $312.60 20

25 12/10/20 $312.60 20

26 12/24/20 $314.89 20

TOTAL $8,129.89 520

Pool recommended 2% increase on 

12/11/2019

Z:\EMPLOYEE\Seasonal\2020\Pool\Chris's proposed 2020 wage.xlsx



Shorewood Hills Police Department 

Chief Aaron P. Chapin 

810 Shorewood Boulevard 

Madison, WI 53705-2115 

Phone: 608-267-1110 / Fax: 608-267-1155 

www.shorewood-hills.org 

 
 

 

TO:  VILLAGE TRUSTEES 

 

FROM:    AARON P. CHAPIN, CHIEF OF POLICE 

 

RE:     PART TIME OFFICE AND CROSSING GUARD WAGES 

 

DATE: DECEMBER 12, 2019 

 

 

At the most recent personnel meeting, the personnel committee recommended increasing the 

part-time officer wage to $20.50/hr and to compensate current crossing guards with a wage of 

$13.00/hr for 2021 with an annual increase of $1.00/hr capping the wage at $15.00/hr similar to 

other seasonal employees.  Newly hired crossing guards would start at $12.00/hr and would 

receive an increase based on consecutive years of service.    

 

The Village of Shorewood Hills Police Department has several part-time staff members 

including six police officers and three crossing guards.  The wages for these positions have not 

increased in several years and I would recommend a wage increase for both positions.  The 

current rate for part-time police officers is $20.00/hr.  I would recommend increasing the wage 

for part-time police officers to $20.50/hr in 2020 and then re-evaluate the wage in subsequent 

years.   

 

Crossing guards are currently paid $12.05/hr.  All of the other seasonal employees in the village 

start at $12.00/hr with annual rate increases of $1.00/hr for each subsequent year the employees 

return to the village for employment.  All three of the crossing guards have worked for the 

village for several years and by the way other seasonal employees are treated should be making 

$15.00/hr.  In order to maintain the approved 2020 budget, I recommend increasing the crossing 

guard wage to $13.00/hr in 2020, $14.00/hr in 2021 and $15.00/hr in 2022 if the current crossing 

guards return.  This will require an increase in the budget request for 2021 and 2022 to cover the 

increases.   

 

Thank you.  

 

### 

 

http://www.shorewood-hills.org/


 

6510 Grand Teton Plaza, Suite 402, Madison, WI 53719 
Phone 1.855.458.4966 | Fax 608.841.1200 

HealthyMinds, LLC 
6510 Grand Teton Plaza, Suite 402 
Madison, WI  53562 
 
10/22/2019 
 
Aaron Chapin 
Chief of Police 
Village of Shorewood Hills 

 
HealthyMinds Employee Assistance Program proposal 
 
Dear Aaron, 
HealthyMinds is pleased to submit the following proposal for an Employee Assistance Program for 
the Village of Shorewood Hills for your review.  We look forward to working with the village in 
implementing an Employee Assistance Program that fits your specific needs! 
 

Why choose HealthyMinds EAP Services? 

What we offer 

HealthyMinds offers employers tailored Employee Assistance Programs which 
include individual counseling sessions for employees and family members to 
address a broad range of stressors and maintain balance.  Our Employee 
Assistance Programs also include services to the organization at times of crisis 
due to critical incidents and organizational change management.  Finally, we 
also offer a full range of trainings and presentations on general and specific 
topics that enhance individual and workplace wellness and function.   

Personalized Care 

HealthyMinds staff of counselors base their success on our client’s long-term 
good health.  We believe in personalized care based on individual needs and 
one’s own unique circumstances.  Each counselor values continuing education 
to learn and practice cutting edge therapies that improve symptom 
management and recovery.   

Service Experience 
HealthyMinds assists many local/regional community governmental 
organizations providing employee assistance programs specific to their unique 
needs.   

Staff Experience 

All of HealthyMinds’ counseling staff have at least a master’s degree in a 
behavioral health field, applicable state licensure, and counseling experience.  
Collectively, our counseling staff have over 115 years of combined experience 
in the behavioral health field. 

24 Hour Accessibility Your employees and their family members can reach us anytime by calling toll 
free (855) 458-4966. 



 

6510 Grand Teton Plaza, Suite 402, Madison, WI 53719 
Phone 1.855.458.4966 | Fax 608.841.1200 

Why choose HealthyMinds EAP Services? 

Continuity of Care 

HealthyMinds is an in-network provider for most of the larger health plans 
offering coverage in southern Wisconsin.  For example, we are a contracted 
provider for:  

 Quartz 
 Dean Health Plan 
 Group Health Cooperative of South Central Wisconsin 
 WEA Trust 
 The Alliance 
 UMR 

These relationships allow your staff, if they so choose, to continue care beyond 
their EAP services with our therapists. 

Substance Abuse 
Expertise 

HealthyMinds has Certified Substance Abuse Counselors who have specific 
knowledge, training and experience in the assessment and treatment of 
chemical abuse and dependency.  

 
Our standard Employee Assistance Program includes the following features: 
 

EAP Feature Description 
Fee per 

hour 
Face-to-face/phone 

sessions 
Up to 5 sessions of assessment, consultation and referral, per 
presenting problem, per individual, per year. Included 

Face-to-face/phone 
sessions (beyond 
initial 5 sessions) 

Additional counseling sessions beyond initial 5 sessions 
(employee and family member) 

$90.00 

Referral service 
standards 

 Life-threatening emergencies will have appropriate care 
coordinated upon initial contact 

 Urgent appointments are scheduled within 24 hours 
 Routine appointments are scheduled within 2 business days 

Included 

Call center and more 
24/7/365 support from master’s-degreed counselors that 
provide immediate assessment using motivational interviewing 
techniques. All calls are answered in Madison, WI. 

Included 

Program access  Dedicated toll-free number 
 24-hour access to counselor 

Included 

Case management Coordinated telephone intake, case management and follow-up 
by one licensed counselor ensures continuity in service delivery Included 

Qualified provider 
network 

 Guaranteed provider availability  
 Open panel policy (no closed networks) 

Included 

EAP clinical provider 
credentialing 

standards 

 Minimum of a master’s degree 
 State licensure 
 EAP experience is preferred 

Included 

Legal Services 
 Free telephone advice and consultation 
 Access to local, top rated attorneys 
 25% discount off attorneys hourly and scheduled rates 

Included 



 

6510 Grand Teton Plaza, Suite 402, Madison, WI 53719 
Phone 1.855.458.4966 | Fax 608.841.1200 

EAP Feature Description 
Fee per 

hour 

Financial Services 

Access to counselors with a broad range of experience in 
financial services, including licensed CPA's and experienced 
financial advisors.  Consultation topics include, but are not 
limited to: 
 Bankruptcy counseling and education 
 College funding counseling 
 Medical debt assistance and counseling 
 Mortgages 
 Social Security benefits 
 Tax issues 

Included 

Management 
consultation services 

 Unlimited management consultations 
 Mandatory/voluntary management referrals, with follow-

up 
 Unlimited policy development consultations and regulation 

consultations (Drug Free Workplace, etc.) 

Included 

Utilization reports Quarterly utilization reporting Included 

Coordination with 
health plans 

The EAP counselor works with the employee and the medical 
plan administrator to obtain authorization for treatment 
resources.  The counselor coordinates with covered providers 
to ensure proper experience and availability that best fits the 
individual’s needs.  

Included 

Eligibility 
Employees, their spouse and/or domestic partner, married or 
unmarried dependent children to age 26, and all other 
household members are eligible for services. 

Included 

Health/benefit fairs 
representation 

EAP counselor available (minimum of 3 hours per event). 
There is an additional $50/hour travel for this onsite service. $150.00 

Employee 
orientation meetings 

EAP counselor available (maximum of 3 hours per event). 
There is an additional $50/hour travel for this onsite service. Included 

Supervisor 
orientation and 

training 

EAP counselor available (minimum of 3 hours per event). 
There is an additional $50/hour travel for this onsite service. $150.00 

Wellness seminars  
EAP counselor available (minimum of 1 hours per event). 
There is an additional $50/hour travel for this onsite service. $150.00 

Annual Wellness 
Checks 

 

Includes offsite, confidential individual consultation “check -in” 
with staff on an annual basis.  Guided by the mental health 
professional, wellness checks provide staff the opportunity to 
jointly assess work-life balance.   Individual Life Management 
Skills are promoted to aid in the staff wellness and healthy 
adjustment to their career.   

$125.00 



 

6510 Grand Teton Plaza, Suite 402, Madison, WI 53719 
Phone 1.855.458.4966 | Fax 608.841.1200 

EAP Feature Description 
Fee per 

hour 

Trauma Response 
Services 

 Critical Incident Defusings – On/off scene response to staff 
immediately following a critical incident including but not 
limited to employee death, active shooter, natural disaster, 
etc.  

 Critical Incident Debriefings – Group debriefings held within 
48-72 hours post incident 

 Grief Counseling - Confidential onsite group or individual 
counseling sessions 

There is an additional $50/hour travel for this onsite service 

$150.00 

Organizational 
Change Services 

Confidential onsite group or individual counseling sessions. 
There is an additional $50/hour travel for this onsite service. $125.00 

Mediation services 

 One-on-one workplace mediation services to address co-
worker or supervisor/employee conflict 

 Assessment and intervention services for dysfunctional 
work groups 

 Training and consultation to address workplace conflict 
There is an additional $50/hour travel for this onsite service. 

$175.00 

Local travel Local to Madison, WI office site. Included 
Non-local Travel Greater than 20 miles from Madison, WI office site. $50.00 
EAP Promotional 

Materials 
Brochures, wallet cards, posters. Included 

 
Your pricing, based upon an estimated 35 employees (subject to change per exact employee 
count), is per below: 

Employee Assistance Program 
Offering 

Employee 
population 

Per employee 
per month 

Per employee 
per year 

Yearly cost 

Standard 35 $1.75 $21.00 $735.00 
 
Once again, we are very pleased to submit this proposal for an Employee Assistance Program to the 
Village of Shorewood Hills and we look forward to hearing from you.  Please let us know if you need 
any additional information! 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Robert Einer-Peterson 
Vice President and Chief Operating Officer 
rob.einer@healthymindsllc.com 
608.669.2588 



 

6510 Grand Teton Plaza, Suite 402, Madison, WI 53719 
Phone 1.855.458.4966 | Fax 608.841.1200 

Statement of Work 

Prepared for: 
Aaron Chapin, Chief of Police 
Village of Shorewood Hills, WI Police Department 
810 Shorewood Boulevard 
Madison, WI 53705 
 
Prepared by: 
Robert Einer 
Vice President, Operations 
HealthyMinds, LLC 

 
No. [1] 

This STATEMENT OF WORK (“SOW”) is entered into by and between Village of Shorewood Hills, 
WI Police Department (“Customer”) and HealthyMinds, LLC (“Service Provider”). 
 

Description of Services and/or Deliverables 
Service Provider will provide Program Roll-Out and Annual Wellness Checks to Customer staff 
(“Work”).  The period of performance for the Work is outlined in the Term/Schedule section 
below. 
 

Term/Schedule 
An Officer Assistance Program (“OAP”) resource will perform Work as outlined below: 

Functional Role Delivery Date Period of Performance 

Program Roll-Out  When Scheduled 1/1/2020 to 3/31/2020 

Annual Wellness Checks Ongoing 1/1/2020 to 12/31/2020 

 
Deliverables 
The OAP resource will provide OAP Program Roll-out which includes group and/or individual 
training of officers, peer support staff, and non-sworn staff in relation to program development 
of the implementation of Annual Wellness Checks.  The OAP resource will also provide Annual 
Wellness Checks which include the offsite, confidential individual consultation “check -in” with 
officers and staff.  

 
Assumptions 



 

6510 Grand Teton Plaza, Suite 402, Madison, WI 53719 
Phone 1.855.458.4966 | Fax 608.841.1200 

 The Customer primary contact will work with the Service Provider Vice President of 
Operations to execute this SOW. 

 Service Provider will invoice for the hours, when scheduled, indicated in the 
Term/Schedule noted above 

 
Price and Payment Schedule 
The fees for the Work are as follows:   

HealthyMinds Officer Assistance Program Service Rate / Hour 
Program Roll-Out  
Includes group and/or individual training of officers, peer support staff, and non-
sworn staff in relation to program development and the implementation of annual 
wellness check-ins $100 
Annual Wellness Checks 
Includes offsite, confidential individual consultation “check -in” with officers and 
staff. Guided by the mental health professional, wellness checks provide law 
enforcement staff the opportunity to jointly assess work-life balance as related 
specifically to the unique nature of the “working personality” and “working identity” 
required in the law enforcement career. Individual Life Management Skills are 
promoted to aid in the officer/staff wellness and healthy adjustment to a career 
involving accumulated vicarious trauma. $125 

 
Invoice Schedule 
Service Provider will invoice Customer after the Work has been completed and on a monthly 
basis.  Customer shall remit payment to Service Provider within 30 days. 
 
AGREED & ACCEPTED: 
 
HealthyMinds, LLC 
 
____________________              ___________ 
Andrew Peterson, MS, LMFT, CCTP-II  DATE 
President  
 
 
Village of Shorewood Hills, WI Police Department 
 
____________________              ___________ 
Aaron Chapin, Chief of Police      DATE 
Village of Shorewood Hills, WI, Police Department 
 









RESOLUTION NO. R-2019-18 

OF THE VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS, 

DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

 

INTERNATIONAL MIGRATORY BIRD DAY 

 
WHEREAS, migratory birds are some of the most beautiful and easily observed wildlife that share 

our communities, and 

WHEREAS, many citizens recognize and welcome migratory songbirds as symbolic harbingers of 

spring, and 

WHEREAS, these migrant species also play an important role in our community, controlling insect 

pests and generating recreational value statewide, and 

WHEREAS, migratory birds and their habitats are declining throughout the Americas, facing a 

growing number of threats on their migration routes and in both their summer and winter homes, and 

WHEREAS, public awareness and concern are crucial components of migratory bird conservation, 

and 

WHEREAS, citizens enthusiastic about birds, informed about the threats they face, and empowered 

to help address those threats can directly contribute to maintaining health bird populations, and 

WHEREAS, since 1993 International Migratory Bird Day (IMBD) has become a primary vehicle for 

focusing public attention on the nearly 350 species that travel between nesting habitats in our communities 

and throughout North America and their wintering grounds in South and Central America, Mexico, the 

Caribbean, and the southern U.S., and 

WHEREAS, hundreds of thousands of people will observe IMBD, gathering in town squares, 

community centers, schools, parks, nature centers, and wildlife refuges to learn about birds, take action to 

conserve them, and simply to have fun, and 

WHEREAS, while IMBD officially is held each year on the second Saturday in May, its observance 

is not limited to a single day, and planners are encouraged to schedule activities on the dates best suited to 

the presence of both migrants and celebrants, and 

WHEREAS, IMBD is not only a day to foster appreciation for wild birds and to celebrate and 

support migratory bird conservation, but also a call to action, 

 

NOW THEREFORE I, David J. Benforado as Village President of the Village of Shorewood 

Hills, Wisconsin, do hereby proclaim February 13, 2020 as 
 

International Migratory Bird Day 
 

in the Village of Shorewood Hills, and I urge all citizens to celebrate this observance and to support 

efforts to protect and conserve migratory birds and their habitats in our community and the world at 

large. 

 

 Passed and approved by the Shorewood Hills Board of Trustees this _____ day of 

_______________, 20____. 

 

 

APPROVED:        

  David J. Benforado, President 

 

 

Attest:        

  Karla Endres, Village Clerk 























Date: ID 5992-10-03 Page 1 of 2 
 

 

THREE PARTY DESIGN ENGINEERING SERVICES CONTRACT 
 

BETWEEN THE WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (DEPARTMENT),  
 

VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS (MUNICIPALITY) 
 

AND KL ENGINEERING, INC. (CONSULTANT) FOR 
 

Project ID 5992-10-03 
Village of Shorewood Hills, Lake Mendota Drive 

Multi-Use Trail, P-13-0994 
Dane County 

 
This CONTRACT made and entered into by and between the DEPARTMENT, MUNICIPALITY 
and the CONSULTANT provides for those SERVICES described in the Scope of Services and 
Special Provisions and is generally for the purpose of providing the SERVICES solicited by the 
MUNICIPALITY in January 2019 and includes the design of the replacement bridge and 
necessary approaches.  This Qualification Based Selection was made based on the 
CONSULTANT’S Notice of Interest response and any interviews conducted. 
 
The DEPARTMENT and MUNICIPALITY deem it advisable to engage the CONSULTANT to 
provide certain engineering SERVICES and has authority to contract for these SERVICES under 
sec. 84.01(13), Wis. Stats. 
 
The DEPARTMENT REPRESENTATIVE is: Mark Westerveld; Local Program Project Manager; 
2101 Wright St, Madison, WI 53704; mark.westerveld@dot.wi.gov; and 608.246.5355. 
 
The MUNICIPALITY REPRESENTATIVE is: Karl Frantz; Village Administrator; 810 Shorewood 
Boulevard, Madison, WI 53705; kfrantz@shorewood-hills.org; and 608.267.2680. 
 
The CONSULTANT REPRESENTATIVE is: Chad Halverson; Project Manager; 5400 King James 
Way, Suite 200, Madison, WI 53719; chalverson@klengineering.com; and 608.663.1218. 
 
The CONSULTANT SERVICES will be performed for the DEPARTMENT'S Southwest Region 
office located in Madison, WI and will be completed by May 1, 2023.  Deliver PROJECT 
DOCUMENTS to 2101 Wright St, Madison, WI 53704, unless other directions are given by the 
DEPARTMENT. 
 
Compensation for all SERVICES provided by the CONSULTANT under the terms of the 
CONTRACT will be from the: 
 

 DEPARTMENT   MUNICIPALITY  
 
BASIS OF PAYMENT 
 
For Road Plans, Structure Plans, and Right of Way Plats and Descriptions, a lump sum of 
$93,913.23. 
 
For Subsurface Investigations subcontracted to CGC, Inc., the CONSULTANT'S actual cost not 
to exceed $11,205.00 based on CGC, Inc.’s estimated cost proposal. 
 
 

mailto:mark.westerveld@dot.wi.gov
mailto:kfrantz@shorewood-hills.org
mailto:chalverson@klengineering.com


Date: ID 5992-10-03 Page 2 of 2 
 

 

For Historical Surveys subcontracted to Commonwealth Heritage Group, the CONSULTANT'S 
actual cost not to exceed $5,305.13 based on Commonwealth Heritage Group’s estimated cost 
proposal. 
 
For Bridge Aesthetic Design subcontracted to Saiki Design, the CONSULTANT'S actual cost not 
to exceed $5,554.50 based on Saiki Design’s estimated cost proposal. 
 
Compensation for all SERVICES provided by the CONSULTANT under the terms of the 
CONTRACT shall be for an amount not to exceed $115,977.86.  
 
The CONSULTANT does and will comply with the laws and regulations relating to the profession 
of engineering and will provide the desired engineering SERVICES. 
 
This CONTRACT incorporates and the parties agree to all of the standard provisions of the Three 
Party Design Engineering Services Contract, dated July 1, 2015 and referenced in Procedure 8-
15-1 of the State of Wisconsin Department of Transportation Facilities Development Manual.  
CONSULTANT acknowledges receipt of a copy of these standard provisions. 
 
This CONTRACT incorporates all of the MANUALS defined in the CONTRACT. 
 
The parties also agree to all of the Special Provisions which are annexed and made a part of this 
CONTRACT, consisting of 10 pages. 
 
Nothing in this CONTRACT accords any third part beneficiary rights whatsoever on any non-party 
that may be enforced by any non-party to this contract. 
 
 
For the CONSULTANT     For the DEPARTMENT 
 
By: _________________________________ By: _________________________________ 
 
Title: ________________________________ Contract Manager, WisDOT 
 
Date: _______________________________ Date: _______________________________ 
 
For the MUNICIPALITY Approved 
 
By: _________________________________ By: _________________________________ 
 
Title: ________________________________ Governor, State of Wisconsin 
 
Date: _______________________________ Date: _______________________________ 
 



 

ID 5991-10-03 Page 1 of 10 November 18, 2019 

VI. SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

A. DESIGN REPORTS 
  

(1) Request for Exceptions to Design Standards: Not Applicable 
 

(2) Encroachment Report:  
 

 Prepare an encroachment report as directed by the MUNICIPALITY. Submit an 
electronic copy to the DEPARTMENT/MUNICIPALITY for approval. 

 
(3) Other Reports: 

 
 Prepare the following engineering reports/analyses as directed by the 

MUNICIPALITY: 
 

(a) Design Study Report: 
 

Complete the Local Program Bridge Design Study Report (DSR) located at: 
http://wisconsindot.gov/Pages/doing-bus/local-gov/lpm/proced-tools.aspx   

 
(b) Traffic Management Plan: 

 
 Prepare a Type 2 Traffic Management Plan and include with the DSR. 
 
(c) Pavement Report: 
   

The CONSULTANT shall prepare the flexible pavement design 
calculations and incorporate them with comment into the Design Study 
Report. A formal pavement report is not required. 

B. ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTATION  
 
 Prepare a Programmatic Categorical Exclusion (PCE) Environmental document for the 

PROJECT as specified in the MANUAL and Chapter TRANS 400, Wisconsin 
Administrative Code. Furnish the required number to the DEPARTMENT and 
MUNICIPALITY for approval. 

 
 Prepare an environmental document that evaluates reasonable alternatives to the 

PROJECT and consider other reasonable actions or activities that may achieve the same 
or similar goals of the proposed highway PROJECT, including other or additional 
transportation alternatives and intermodal opportunities and the alternative of taking no 
action. Evaluate alternative courses of action based upon a balanced consideration of the 
environment, public comments, and the need for safe and efficient transportation consistent 
with local, state, and national environmental goals. Prepare environmental documents that 
are concise and emphasize significant environmental issues and plausible alternatives. 
Comply with requirements specified in the MANUAL and TRANS 400, Wisconsin 
Administrative Code. In the event of a conflict between the MANUAL and TRANS 400, 
Wisconsin Administrative Code, the administrative rule supersedes. 

http://wisconsindot.gov/Pages/doing-bus/local-gov/lpm/proced-tools.aspx


 

ID 5991-10-03 Page 2 of 10 November 18, 2019 

 
(1) Environmental Assessments: Not Applicable 

 
(2) Environmental Impact Statements: Not Applicable 

 
(3) Agricultural Impact Notice: Not Applicable 

 
(4) Section 4(f) Evaluation:  

 
  Describe the impact of this PROJECT upon lands protected under Section 4(f) of 

the Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1968, as amended, and the findings to the 
MUNICIPALITY for evaluation by the DEPARTMENT and the FHWA. Prepare a 
Section 4(f) programmatic evaluation in accordance with the MANUAL. 

 
(5) Section 6(f) Evaluation: Not Applicable 

 
(6) Historical and Archaeological Surveys and Studies: 

 
(a) The DEPARTMENT has included this PROJECT on the Screening List for 

archaeology only based on the review of the Concept Definition Report. 
The PROJECT does not require an archaeological survey as defined in 
the MANUAL. 

 
(b) The DEPARTMENT will provide notification to the Native American tribes 

as provided in the MANUAL. Provide a draft letter and map and identify 
the appropriate tribes for the DEPARTMENT’S use. Follow the 
procedures as set forth in the MANUAL to notify other interested parties 
of this PROJECT. 

 
(c) Identify the Area of Potential Effect for the PROJECT. Conduct a 

reconnaissance survey as specified in the MANUAL. Submit the results of 
the historical reconnaissance and evaluation studies to the region project 
manager. Obtain recommendations from SHPO, the historian and the 
Project Manager regarding historical/architectural reconnaissance surveys.  

 
(d) Prepare documentation for the determination of effects (No Effect, No 

Adverse Effects, Adverse Effects) as appropriate.  
  

(7) Noise Analysis: Not Applicable 
 

(8) Air Quality: Not Applicable 
 

(9) Hazardous Materials/Contamination Assessments: 
 
  Prepare the necessary Phase 1 Hazardous Materials Assessment Site Summaries 

for the PROJECT in accordance with the MANUAL and submit along with the 
environmental document. 

  
(10) Wetland Investigations: 

 
Identify wetland impacts in conjunction with the Department of Natural Resources 
and provide for compensation of wetland loss, if necessary, following the 



 

ID 5991-10-03 Page 3 of 10 November 18, 2019 

procedures in the MANUAL and the “Wisconsin Department of Transportation 
Wetland Mitigation Banking Technical Guideline dated March 2002”. Wetland 
Mitigation Plans for the PROJECT shall be considered "Extra Services". 

C. AGENCY COORDINATION 
 
 (1) Section 401 and 402 Certifications: 
 
  Evaluate the effects of the PROJECT on water quality, in accordance with the 

provisions of the Clean Water Act and Chapter TRANS 400, Wisconsin 
Administrative Code and the MANUAL; and prepare the necessary application. 

 
 (2) Section 404 Permits: 
 

(a) Evaluate the potential for discharge of fill materials into the waters of the 
United States, in accordance with the provisions of the Clean Water Act and 
Chapter TRANS 400, Wisconsin Administrative Code and the MANUAL; 
and prepare the necessary permit application. 

 
(b) Preparation of an individual Section 404 permit application for submittal to 

the United States Army Corp of Engineers shall be considered "Extra 
Services". 

 
 (3) Section 9 and 10 Permits: Not Applicable 
 
 (4) Stormwater Permits: 
 
  Prepare the on-line storm water permit application for the PROJECT. 

D. RAILROAD/ UTILITY INVOLVEMENTS 
 

(1) Railroad Negotiations/Agreements: Not Applicable 
 

(2) Utility Coordination: 
 
  Perform all utility coordination in accordance with: 
 
  a) The MANUAL 
  b) The WisDOT “Guide to Utility Coordination for Non-TRANS 220 projects” 
  c) The “Local Project Utility Coordination Task List”  
   

(3) The DEPARTMENT/MUNICIPALITY will provide the CONSULTANT with a list of 
known utilities on the PROJECT and a list of contact personnel for utility 
coordination. This list is not warranted to be complete but is furnished to assist the 
CONSULTANT. Verify and update the list. 

 
(4) Confer on an ongoing basis with all utility facility owners in the PROJECT vicinity to 

establish mutual understanding on design features of the PROJECT affecting utility 
facilities and shall keep the MUNICIPALITY informed of all such coordination 
activities. Provide the MUNICIPALITY with plans and information that will allow it to 
meet its planned utility coordination schedule. 



 

ID 5991-10-03 Page 4 of 10 November 18, 2019 

  
(5) Utility Negotiations/Agreements: Not Applicable 

E. PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT 
 

(1) Public Involvement Meetings: 
 

(a) Prepare a Public Involvement Plan for the PROJECT. 
 

  (b) Conduct or assist the MUNICIPALITY in holding three (3) public 
involvement meetings and explain to the public concepts and probable 
impacts of this PROJECT.  Collect input from the public during the first 
meeting.  Provide up to three alternatives during the second meeting.  
Present the preferred alternative with construction impacts during the third 
meeting. 

 
  (c) Prepare all exhibits and supplementary handout material and provide the 

equipment necessary to conduct the public involvement meetings. 
 
  (d) Prepare a summary report after the public involvement meetings. 
 
  (e) Discuss with the MUNICIPALITY the comments received and recommend 

the possible disposition of these comments and suggestions after the public 
involvement meetings. 

 
  (f) Make all the necessary arrangements for scheduling the public involvement 

meetings and provide notices and press releases for the MUNICIPALITY’S 
use. Notify all adjacent and affected property owners. The MUNICIPALITY 
will provide the CONSULTANT a mailing list for the public involvement 
meeting. 

 
  (g) Provide the MUNICIPALITY with copies of all public involvement 

correspondence and file notes. 
 
  (h) Coordinate meeting schedules with the MUNICIPALITY'S representative. 
 
  (i) Provide the MUNICIPALITY with up to three (3) exhibits for their use on the 

MUNICIPALITY’S website.   
   

(2) Formal Public Hearing: Not Applicable 
 

(3) Open Forum Public Hearing: Not Applicable 
 

(4) Project Mailings, Newsletters: Not Applicable 
 

F. MEETINGS 
 

(1) Hold an Operational Planning Meeting to discuss the organization and processing 
of the Services under this CONTRACT. 



 

ID 5991-10-03 Page 5 of 10 November 18, 2019 

(2) Three (3) meetings shall be held with MUNICIPALITY officials approximately one 
week prior to the public involvement meetings for the purpose of reviewing exhibits, 
handouts and presentation. 

 
(3) A 60% Plan Review Meeting with the MUNICIPALITY shall be held. 
 
(4) A Final Plan Review Meeting with the MUNICIPALITY shall be held approximately 

45 - 60 days ahead of the PS&E submittal date. 
 
(5) Attend the pre-construction conference as scheduled by the DEPARTMENT.  
 
(6) Two (2) meetings shall be held to plan, review, and coordinate the PROJECT with 

the MUNICIPALITY'S staff.  
 

(7) Coordinate all meeting schedules with the MUNICIPALITY and the DEPARTMENT. 

G. LOCATING  
 
 Not Applicable  

H. SURVEYS 
 
 (1) Temporarily mark existing right-of-way for coordination with affected utilities and 

property owners. This CONTRACT includes one (1) deployment to temporarily 
mark up to two (2) individual easements. Staking activities shall be coordinated with 
the MUNICIPALITY to provide at least two weeks lead time for the MUNICIPALITY 
to notify property owners. 

 
 (2) The surveys shall provide information necessary for the preparation of plats and 

acquisition of rights of way and property.  
  
 (3) Tie surveys into the Wisconsin County Coordinate System, Dane County, 

Horizontal Datum and Adjustment: NAD 83 (2011), Vertical Datum and Adjustment: 
NAVD 88 (2012). 

I. SOILS AND SUBSURFACE INVESTIGATIONS 
 
 (1) Conduct soils and subsurface investigations per normal DEPARTMENT practices 

as described in the Geotechnical Manual dated March 31, 2017 or as directed by 
the DEPARTMENT. 

 
 (2) Investigations of subsurface soil conditions for foundations at the sites of proposed 

bridges or other structures are required. They shall consist of not less than one 
machine powered boring within the approximate limits of each substructure unit. 
Provide borings for up to four (4) substructure units. 

 
  Foundation borings shall be performed to yield sufficient detailed data to enable an 

engineering design of the structure and its foundation per DEPARTMENT 
standards. 

 



 

ID 5991-10-03 Page 6 of 10 November 18, 2019 

  Foundation investigations shall be coordinated with the MUNICIPALITY, with a 
minimum of three working days prior notice, to enable the MUNICIPALITY to make 
provisions for on-site observations and to evaluate conditions during drilling. 

 
  When borings have reached the depth of sixty (60) feet without providing necessary 

data, the driller is authorized to continue drilling until depths reach 120 percent of 
the planned depths. When necessary data is obtained for any individual boring, 
prior to borings reaching the planned depth, the drilling for that individual boring 
shall be terminated. 

 
  When completion of drilling to 120 percent of the depth of any individual boring as 

set forth above is not sufficient to adequately assess subsurface conditions, or 
otherwise determine all the required foundation information, the CONSULTANT 
shall recommend revised boring depths or a revised boring program for verbal 
authorization by the MUNICIPALITY. The extent of all subsurface foundation 
investigations performed shall be fully justified in the Soils Report for the PROJECT. 

 
  All boreholes and monitoring wells shall be backfilled as per the April 20, 1992 

guidelines titled "Wisconsin Department of Transportation Geotechnical Unit -Drilled 
Borehole and Monitoring Well Abandonment Procedures". 

 
  Record final borehole location; station and referenced offset and elevation. 

CONSULTANT shall provide final boring location GPS coordinates and provide a 
Google Earth image of PROJECT site showing coordinate correct as-drilled boring 
locations. 

 
 (3) Perform subsurface investigations to analyze PROJECT geotechnical concerns and 

provide full detailed recommendations. The soils shall be classified by pedological 
means to provide pavement design parameters. 

 
 (4) Transmit to the DEPARTMENT all soils laboratory testing summary and testing 

data sheets for tests performed on the soil and rock samples collected during the 
investigation. In addition, transmit the results of any field tests including vane shear 
tests, pressure meter tests and cone penetrometer tests. Send this in a .pdf format 
that references the DEPARTMENT’S design project I.D. and send them to the 
following email location at the time of PS&E submittal: 
DOTDTSDGeotechnicalSirLab@dot.wi.gov. 

 
 (5) Transmit to the DEPARTMENT all Soil Reports relating to structures, roadways, 

pavements and environment. Send this in a .pdf format that references the 
DEPARTMENT’S design project I.D., and send them to the following email location 
at the time of PS&E submittal: DOTDTSDGeotechnicalSirLab@dot.wi.gov 

J. ROAD PLANS 
 

(1) Section II C (9) in the Standard Provision of the CONTRACT is amended to include 
the following plans with the number of anticipated sheets denoted in parenthesis: 

 
  a) Title Sheet (1 sheet) 
  b) General Notes and List of Utility Contacts (1 sheet) 
  c) Existing and Proposed Typical Sections (1 sheet) 
  d)  Construction Details (2 sheets) 



 

ID 5991-10-03 Page 7 of 10 November 18, 2019 

  e) Intersection Details (1 sheet) 
  f) Permanent Signing Plan and Pavement Marking (1 sheet @ 50 scale) 
  g) Alignment and Control Point Details (1 sheet) 
  h) Miscellaneous Quantities (2 sheets) 
  i) Plan and Profile Sheet including Erosion Control (1 sheet @ 50 scale) 
  j) Computer Earthwork Data Sheet (1 sheet) 
  k) Cross Sections (4 sheets) 
    

(2) It is anticipated that the PROJECT length will not exceed 200 feet.  
 

(3) Plan and Profile Sheets and Cross Sections for the Edgehill Drive intersection are 
not included. 

K. STRUCTURE PLANS 
 

(1) In the design and development of the structure plans the CONSULTANT shall work 
with the MUNICIPALITY to develop up to three (3) alternative conceptual bridge 
types including concept level cost estimates that will be presented at the second 
Public Involvement Meeting.  The MUNICIPALITY will select the preferred bridge 
alternative. 

 
(2) Once the preferred bridge alternative is chosen, the CONSULTANT shall work with 

the MUNICIPALITY to develop up to two (2) aesthetic treatments options including 
cost estimates and presentation appropriate renderings depicting the aesthetic 
treatments for the MUNICIPALITY’S review.  The MUNICIPALITY will select the 
preferred aesthetic treatment.    

    
(3) Prepare a Grade Separation Structure Survey Report, which includes a discussion 

of structure sizing, in accordance with the MANUAL. The completed preliminary 
plan shall show the structure plan, elevation, and typical cross section, and all 
pertinent data shall appear on the first sheet(s) of the completed structure plans. 
The Grade Separation Structure Survey Report shall be e-submitted to the 
DEPARTMENT for review. The DEPARTMENT will review this preliminary plan and 
the Grade Separation Structure Survey Report and return an electronic copy to the 
CONSULTANT showing requested revisions, if any.  

 
(4) Plans for Structures shall be fully dimensioned besides showing controlling 

elevations. The plans shall be prepared with such precision and detail to allow for 
the convenient layout in the field with customary degree of accuracy, and to allow 
for the production of an accurate estimate of quantities for all pertinent items of work 
to be performed in the PROJECT. 

 
(5) Plans for Structures shall include schedules for bar steel reinforcement. Such 

schedules shall provide all of the necessary detail required for the fabrication of the 
reinforcement without the necessity of making separate shop drawings for that 
purpose. 

 
(6) When the plans for a structure have been completed the CONSULTANT shall 

furnish the DEPARTMENT with electronic copies of such plans for review and 
examination. Provide a copy of the final plans to the MUNICIPALITY.  

 



 

ID 5991-10-03 Page 8 of 10 November 18, 2019 

(7) E-submit copies for review and examination of all specifications for items of work in 
the Structure Plans which are not covered by the STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS 
and such amendments to or revisions of the STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS as 
may be required to properly cover the work contemplated by the plans. 

 
(8) Plans will be subject to review and examination by the DEPARTMENT and 

MUNICIPALITY. Such review and examination may be made on the site of the 
PROJECT. 

 
(9) Along with the plans for structures e-submit one copy or reproduction of the design 

computations for the DEPARTMENT’S review and permanent file. 
 

(10) Furnish such other pertinent information and data with respect to the plans and 
design as the MUNICIPALITY or DEPARTMENT may request. 
 

(11) In the design and development of the Structure Plans, develop up to three (3) 
alternative structure types or other geometric configurations to enable selection of 
the design that provides a balance between practical construction considerations, 
right of way requirements, aesthetics and blending with the topography, and costs. 
Investigate the following structure types: single span prestressed girder, multi-span 
concrete slab bridge, and a multi-span timber bridge. 

L. PLATS 
 
 (1) Prepare Right of Way Plats in accordance with the MANUAL. The Right of Way Plat 

shall be prepared on 11-inch by 17-inch reproducible sheets.  Prepare a Traditional 
Right of Way Plat or include the Right of Way Plat information on the Plan and Profile 
Sheet.  Easements are estimated for up to two (2) parcels. 

 
 (2) The CONSULTANT shall use the most current tax records to determine ownership 

of properties and premises through over which a temporary Right of Way for the 
PROJECT is to be acquired. 

 
 (3) The CONSULTANT shall prepare Right of Way Descriptions for all individual parcels 

of land to be acquired as Right of Way for the PROJECT. Descriptions shall be by 
metes and bounds in accordance with the provisions as set forth in the MANUAL, or 
in the case of platted property by suitable reference to the platted data. The 
Descriptions shall be tied to the PROJECT. The CONSULTANT shall prepare the 
descriptions on conveyance documents. 

 
 (4) The CONSULTANT shall submit the Right of Way Plat and Descriptions to the 

MUNICIPALITY for review and examination prior to acceptance by the 
MUNICIPALITY. 

 
 (4) Field locate and temporarily mark the temporary boundaries in a manner which will 

facilitate the appraisal of all affected parcels one (1) time as noted in Section H. 
SURVEYS (1).  

 
 (5) Supply the MUNICIPALITY with electronic or full size sets of plan/profile and cross 

sections, including Right of Way Plat if developed as part of this CONTRACT, for 
the MUNICIPALITY’S use in real estate acquisition at the time required in the 



 

ID 5991-10-03 Page 9 of 10 November 18, 2019 

PROJECT schedule. Revised full size sheets shall be supplied to the 
MUNICIPALITY as such revisions are made throughout the acquisition process. 

M. HIGHWAY SYSTEM CHANGES 
 
 Not Applicable 

N. TRAFFIC 
 

Prepare traffic forecasting based on the MUNICIPALITY’S historical traffic count data.  
Forecasts and growth rates will be based on historical growth rates. Traffic counts are not 
included. No formal traffic forecast report or memo will be prepared. 

O. COMMUNITY SENSITIVE SOLUTIONS 

Not Applicable  

P. CHANGE MANAGEMENT 
 

The CONSULTANT shall complete and submit Change Management Request(s), if 
necessary, at 60% and 90% stages of plan development. 

Q. SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE DEPARTMENT OR MUNICIPALITY  
 
 The MUNICIPALITY or DEPARTMENT will provide to the CONSULTANT the following for 

the PROJECT: 
 
  1. Historical traffic counts 
  2.  As-built plans, as may be available 
  3.  Known utility names and contacts 
  4. Names and address of property owners 
 5. Meeting site for the Operational Planning Meeting (OPM)  
 6. Meeting site for the Public Involvement Meeting (PIM) 
  7. Publishing of the PIM advertisement 
  8. Environmental screening list for archaeology 
  9. Asbestos inspection report for the bridge 
   

R. PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS 
 
 (1) The CONSULTANT proposes to sublet these services to: 
 

(a) Subsurface investigations to CGC, Inc. 
 

(b) Historical Surveys to Commonwealth Heritage Group 
 

(c) Bridge Aesthetic Design to Saiki Design 
 
 (2) The following items of work will be completed and submitted to the DEPARTMENT 

or MUNICIPALITY by the indicated dates, if CONSULTANT has received the Notice 
to Proceed by January 1, 2020.  



 

ID 5991-10-03 Page 10 of 10 November 18, 2019 

    
 

Report Title Date 

Soils Report November 2020 

Preliminary Structure Plan & SSR December 2020 

Preliminary Road Plan January 2021 

Environmental Document February 2021 

Slope Intercepts & Preliminary Plat February 2021 

Design Study Report March 2021 

Right-Of-Way Plat(s) June 2021 

Final Road Plans June 1, 2022 

Final Structure Plans June 1, 2022 

Final PS&E August 1, 2022 

LET December 13, 2022 

 



Consultant Weighted Direct Labor Rates

Project: 5992-10-03

Village of Shorewood Hills

Lake Mendota Drive
 BR P-13-715
Local Road

Dane County

Classification: Project Manager

Employee Number Current Rate(c)
Percent 

Contribution(c)
(b*c)

1714 $50.50 100.00% $50.50

TOTAL 100.00% $50.50

Classification: Project Engineer

Employee Number Current Rate(c)
Percent 

Contribution(c)
(b*c)

1092 $36.25 50.00% $18.13

9415 $51.50 20.00% $10.30

1714 $50.50 30.00% $15.15

TOTAL 100.00% $43.58

Classification: Engineer

Employee Number Current Rate(c)
Percent 

Contribution(c)
(b*c)

1517 $29.00 70.00% $20.30

1823 $29.00 30.00% $8.70

TOTAL 100.00% $29.00

Classification: Technician

Employee Number Current Rate(c)
Percent 

Contribution(c)
(b*c)

0043 $34.25 100.00% $34.25

100.00% $34.25

Classification: Survey

Employee Number Current Rate(c)
Percent 

Contribution(c)
(b*c)

0153 $40.25 35.00% $14.09

1611 $31.00 30.00% $9.30

1834 $23.50 35.00% $8.23

TOTAL 100.00% $31.62

Classification: Clerical

Employee Number Current Rate(c)
Percent 

Contribution(c)
(b*c)

0050 $30.00 100.00% $30.00

TOTAL 100.00% $30.00

FDM Chapter 8, Procedure 10-30, Attachment 30.1
K:\Contracts\WisDOT\Local Program\Shorewood Hills V\19xxx_Lake Mendota Dr Bridge\3_Contract\59921003_fee exhibits 111819

Page 1 of 6



Consultant Individual Direct Labor Rates - KL Engineering, Inc.

Project: 5992-10-03

Village of Shorewood Hills

Lake Mendota Drive
 BR P-13-715
Local Road

Dane County

Employee Number(a) Classification(b)
Current 

Rate(c)

 % Pay 

Increase(d)

New Pay 

Rate(e)

Date of 

Increase (f)

% Work at 

Current 

Rate(g)

% Work at 

Increased 

Rate(h)

Weighted 

Average 

Hourly Rate(i)

1714 Project Manager $50.50 3.10% $52.07 1/1/2020 0.00% 40.00% $20.83

Average Select Individuals Project Engineer $43.58 3.10% $44.93 1/1/2020 0.00% 40.00% $17.97

Average Select Individuals Engineer $29.00 3.10% $29.90 1/1/2020 0.00% 40.00% $11.96

0043 Technician $34.25 3.10% $35.31 1/1/2020 0.00% 40.00% $14.12

Average Select Individuals Survey $31.62 3.10% $32.60 1/1/2020 0.00% 100.00% $32.60

0050 Clerical $30.00 3.10% $30.93 1/1/2020 0.00% 40.00% $12.37

1714 Project Manager $52.07 3.10% $53.68 1/1/2021 0.00% 30.00% $16.10

Average Select Individuals Project Engineer $44.93 3.10% $46.32 1/1/2021 0.00% 30.00% $13.90

Average Select Individuals Engineer $29.90 3.10% $30.83 1/1/2021 0.00% 30.00% $9.25

0043 Technician $35.31 3.10% $36.40 1/1/2021 0.00% 30.00% $10.92

Average Select Individuals Survey $32.60 3.10% $33.61 1/1/2021 0.00% 0.00% $0.00

0050 Clerical $30.93 3.10% $31.89 1/1/2021 0.00% 30.00% $9.57

1714 Project Manager $53.68 3.10% $55.34 1/1/2022 0.00% 28.00% $15.50

Average Select Individuals Project Engineer $46.32 3.10% $47.76 1/1/2022 0.00% 28.00% $13.37

Average Select Individuals Engineer $30.83 3.10% $31.79 1/1/2022 0.00% 28.00% $8.90

0043 Technician $36.40 3.10% $37.53 1/1/2022 0.00% 28.00% $10.51

Average Select Individuals Survey $33.61 3.10% $34.65 1/1/2022 0.00% 0.00% $0.00

0050 Clerical $31.89 3.10% $32.88 1/1/2022 0.00% 28.00% $9.21

FDM Chapter 8, Procedure 10-30, Attachment 30.1
K:\Contracts\WisDOT\Local Program\Shorewood Hills V\19xxx_Lake Mendota Dr Bridge\3_Contract\59921003_fee exhibits 111819

Page 2 of 6



Consultant Individual Direct Labor Rates - KL Engineering, Inc.

Project: 5992-10-03

Village of Shorewood Hills

Lake Mendota Drive
 BR P-13-715
Local Road

Dane County

Employee Number(a) Classification(b)
Current 

Rate(c)

 % Pay 

Increase(d)

New Pay 

Rate(e)

Date of 

Increase (f)

% Work at 

Current 

Rate(g)

% Work at 

Increased 

Rate(h)

Weighted 

Average 

Hourly Rate(i)

1714 Project Manager $55.34 3.10% $57.06 1/1/2023 0.00% 2.00% $1.14

Average Select Individuals Project Engineer $47.76 3.10% $49.24 1/1/2023 0.00% 2.00% $0.98

Average Select Individuals Engineer $31.79 3.10% $32.78 1/1/2023 0.00% 2.00% $0.66

0043 Technician $37.53 3.10% $38.69 1/1/2023 0.00% 2.00% $0.77

Average Select Individuals Survey $34.65 3.10% $35.72 1/1/2023 0.00% 0.00% $0.00

0050 Clerical $32.88 3.10% $33.90 1/1/2023 0.00% 2.00% $0.68

SUMMATION

1714 Project Manager $53.57

Average Select Individuals Project Engineer $46.22

Average Select Individuals Engineer $30.77

0043 Technician $36.32

Average Select Individuals Survey $32.60

0050 Clerical $31.83

Contract Completetion Date:   May 31, 2023

FDM Chapter 8, Procedure 10-30, Attachment 30.1
K:\Contracts\WisDOT\Local Program\Shorewood Hills V\19xxx_Lake Mendota Dr Bridge\3_Contract\59921003_fee exhibits 111819

Page 3 of 6



Summary of Staff Hours and Direct Labor Costs - KL Engineering, Inc.

PROJECT TOTAL

Project:

Village of Shorewood Hills

Lake Mendota Drive
 BR P-13-715
Local Road

Dane County

$32.60 Total Direct Labor

Outline Task
Activity 

Code
Hours Dollars Hours Dollars Hours Dollars Hours Dollars Hours Dollars Hours Dollars Hours Dollars

1.1.2 Manage Project Scope and Schedule 887 16 $857.12 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 16 $509.28 32 $1,366.40

1.1.3 Manage Change 884 6 $321.42 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 6 $321.42

1.4.1 Manage Project Stakeholders 743 35 $1,874.95 51 $2,357.22 0 $0.00 4 $145.28 0 $0.00 9 $286.47 99 $4,663.92

2.2.4 Design Geometrics and Details 776 6 $321.42 20 $924.40 56 $1,723.12 12 $435.84 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 94 $3,404.78

2.2.5 Develop Quantities and Estimates 786 2 $107.14 7 $323.54 18 $553.86 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 27 $984.54

2.2.6 Develop PSE Documents 856 2 $107.14 11 $508.42 7 $215.39 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 6 $190.98 26 $1,021.93

2.3.19 Survey Existing and Proposed Right-of-Way 726 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 90 $2,934.00 0 $0.00 90 $2,934.00

2.3.21 Develop Transportation Project Plat (TPP) 745 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 16 $581.12 32 $1,043.20 0 $0.00 48 $1,624.32

2.4.4 Analyze Natural Environment Impact 766 0 $0.00 2 $92.44 8 $246.16 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 10 $338.60

2.4.5
Environmental Documentation and Agency 

Coordination
769 1 $53.57 12 $554.64 11 $338.47 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 24 $946.68

2.5.1 Develop Structure Survey Report 647 0 $0.00 6 $277.32 20 $615.40 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 26 $892.72

2.5.4 Design Structure 656 6 $321.42 82 $3,790.04 132 $4,061.64 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 220 $8,173.10

2.5.5 Draft Structure Plan 657 2 $107.14 4 $184.88 40 $1,230.80 120 $4,358.40 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 166 $5,881.22

2.7.6 Coordinate Utilities 746 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 10 $307.70 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 3 $95.49 13 $403.19

3.2.1 Manage Construction Start 791 2 $107.14 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 2 $107.14

78 $4,178.46 195 $9,012.90 302 $9,292.54 152 $5,520.64 122 $3,977.20 34 $1,082.22 883 $33,063.96

$31.83

TOTAL:

Avg. Hourly Wage

Classification Survey Clerical

5992-10-03

Technician

$53.57 $46.22 $30.77 $36.32

Project Manager Project Engineer Engineer

FDM Chapter 8, Procedure 10-30, Attachment 1.1
K:\Contracts\WisDOT\Local Program\Shorewood Hills V\19xxx_Lake Mendota Dr Bridge\3_Contract\59921003_fee exhibits 111819

Page 4 of 6



Fee Computation Summary by Engineering Task - KL Engineering, Inc.

PROJECT TOTAL

Project: 5992-10-03

Village of Shorewood Hills

Lake Mendota Drive
 BR P-13-715
Local Road

Dane County

Outline Task Activity Code Direct Labor Costs Overhead Costs Fixed Fee/Profit* Direct Expenses Total

1.1.2 Manage Project Scope and Schedule 887 $1,366.40 $2,266.99 $247.66 $0.00 $3,881.05

1.1.3 Manage Change 884 $321.42 $533.27 $58.26 $0.00 $912.95

1.4.1 Manage Project Stakeholders 743 $4,663.92 $7,737.91 $845.34 $0.00 $13,247.17

2.2.4 Design Geometrics and Details 776 $3,404.78 $5,648.87 $617.12 $0.00 $9,670.77

2.2.5 Develop Quantities and Estimates 786 $984.54 $1,633.45 $178.45 $0.00 $2,796.44

2.2.6 Develop PSE Documents 856 $1,021.93 $1,695.48 $185.22 $0.00 $2,902.63

2.3.19 Survey Existing and Proposed Right-of-Way 726 $2,934.00 $4,867.80 $531.79 $0.00 $8,333.59

2.3.21 Develop Transportation Project Plat (TPP) 745 $1,624.32 $2,694.91 $294.41 $0.00 $4,613.64

2.4.4 Analyze Natural Environment Impact 766 $338.60 $561.77 $61.37 $0.00 $961.74

2.4.5 Environmental Documentation and Agency Coordination 769 $946.68 $1,570.64 $171.59 $0.00 $2,688.91

2.5.1 Develop Structure Survey Report 647 $892.72 $1,481.11 $161.81 $0.00 $2,535.64

2.5.4 Design Structure 656 $8,173.10 $13,559.99 $1,481.37 $0.00 $23,214.46

2.5.5 Draft Structure Plan 657 $5,881.22 $9,757.53 $1,065.97 $0.00 $16,704.72

2.7.6 Coordinate Utilities 746 $403.19 $668.93 $73.08 $0.00 $1,145.20

3.2.1 Manage Construction Start 791 $107.14 $177.76 $19.42 $0.00 $304.32

$33,063.96 $54,856.41 $5,992.86 $0.00 $93,913.23

Home Office Overhead Rate: 1.6591 Fixed Fee: 7.25%

*Fixed Fee calculated using 1.5 multiplier

TOTAL:

FDM Chapter 8, Procedure 10-30, Attachment 30.2
K:\Contracts\WisDOT\Local Program\Shorewood Hills V\19xxx_Lake Mendota Dr Bridge\3_Contract\59921003_fee exhibits 111819 Page 5 of 6



Consultant Contract Total Fee Computation - KL Engineering, Inc.

Project ID 5992-10-03 Total for Contract

Number of Staff Hours 883 883

Total Direct Labor $33,063.96 $33,063.96

Total Overhead Costs $54,856.41 $54,856.41

Fixed Fee/Profit $5,992.86 $5,992.86

Direct Expenses $0.00 $0.00

Subtotal $93,913.23 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $93,913.23

CGC, Inc. $11,205.00 $11,205.00

Commonwealth Heritage 

Group
$5,305.13 $5,305.13

Saiki Design $5,554.50 $5,554.50

TOTAL COST (Rows 5-8, 

Subs):
$115,977.86 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $115,977.86

Home Office Overhead Rate: 1.6591 Fixed Fee: 7.25%

5992-10-03

Village of Shorewood Hills

Local Road

Dane County

Lake Mendota Drive
 BR P-13-715

FDM Chapter 8, Procedure 10-30, Attachment 30.4
K:\Contracts\WisDOT\Local Program\Shorewood Hills V\19xxx_Lake Mendota Dr Bridge\3_Contract\59921003_fee exhibits 111819 Page 6 of 6









Wisconsin Office – 8669 N. Deerwood Drive / Milwaukee, WI 53209 / 414.446.4121 
 

 
 

 

 
This proposal contains pricing and other information confidential and proprietary to 
Commonwealth Heritage Group, Inc. Disclosure of this proposal’s contents to persons or 
organizations outside KL Engineering, Inc., the Village of Shorewood Hills, and the 
Wisconsin Department of Transportation is not authorized without specific written 
permission of Commonwealth Heritage Group, Inc.  All technical specifications in this 
proposal are valid for 90 days. 

 

 
 
Date:  May 10, 2019                    W-1466 

 

To:  Mike Bakalars, PE 

  KL Engineering, Inc. 

   

From:    Greg Rainka 

 

Subject: Proposal –Architecture/History Investigations 

  WisDOT Project ID 5992-10-03 

Lake Mendota Drive Bridge (P-13-715) Replacement 

Village of Shorewood Hills 

Dane County 

 

Commonwealth Heritage Group, Inc. (Commonwealth) is pleased to present the following proposal to KL 

Engineering, Inc. (KL) for cultural resources services for the subject bridge replacement project in 

Shorewood Hills.  It is our understanding that architecture/history investigations are needed pursuant to 

Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act and its implementing regulations.  Commonwealth 

has completed numerous compliance surveys in WisDOT’s Southwest Region, including for bridge 

replacement projects, and you can expect our familiarity with the project area and projects of this type will 

facilitate all phases of the Section 106 process.   

 

ARCHITECTURE/HISTORY SURVEY 

 

Background Research and Reconnaissance-Level Fieldwork 

 

Commonwealth will conduct background and archival research and review the WHPD to determine if any 

properties in the project area were previously surveyed.  Commonwealth will then complete an 

architecture/history survey of properties that may be directly or indirectly affected by the project in 

accordance with the Wisconsin Historical Society’s Survey Manual.  We will identify, photograph, and 

assess the National Register eligibility of individual buildings, structures, and objects, as well as any 

districts that are present. Additional photographs depicting streetscapes and view sheds will be provided 

as needed to document the project’s APE, which we assume will include the bridge and immediately 

adjacent properties.  Verbal notification of our survey results will be provided to KL within five working 

days of completion of the fieldwork.   

 



 
 

 

 
Page 2 

Based on a preliminary review of the WHPD, the bridge proposed for replacement has not been 

previously surveyed. However, it does appear to be located within the National Register-listed Shorewood 

Historic District.  In addition, the residential property immediately southwest of the bridge at 3401 Lake 

Mendota Drive is previously surveyed (AHI #123581) and contributes to the district.  The only other 

property in the assumed APE with buildings or structures is McKenna Park, which is located underneath 

the existing bridge. 

 

For the purposes of this proposal, Commonwealth assumes that few other properties will require survey 

and no additional above-ground historic properties will be identified outside of the historic district.  As a 

result, Commonwealth will prepare a letter report in lieu of a full Architecture/History Survey Report 

(AHSR). 

 

Documentation for Determination of No Adverse Effects 

 

Effects to the National Register-listed Shorewood Historic District will need to be assessed and 

considered in accordance with Section 106.  Commonwealth will work with KL to avoid adverse effects, 

and assuming adverse effects can be avoided, Commonwealth will prepare a Determination of No 

Adverse Effects (DNAE).   

 

For the purposes of this proposal, we assume that a DNAE will be prepared. 

 

OTHER SERVICES INCLUDED 

 

In addition to the architecture/history investigations, Commonwealth will assist KL with completing the 

Section 106 form and will notify local historical societies and other local interested parties to solicit 

comments about the project and its potential to affect historic properties.   

 

SERVICES NOT INCLUDED 

 

This proposal does not include archaeological investigations or the preparation of Determinations of 

Eligibility (DOEs).  In addition, if adverse effects to historic properties cannot be avoided, Documentation 

for Consultation (D for C) and drafting of a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) are not included as part of 

this proposal.  Further, Commonwealth will not be providing services related to Section 4(f) and/or 6(f). 

 

DELIVERABLES 

 

Electronic drafts of the architecture/history survey letter report and DNAE will be submitted to KL for 

review and comment.  Following receipt of comments, hard copies of the final reports and Section 106 

review form will be submitted to KL for your files and distribution.   

 

PERSONNEL QUALIFICATIONS 

 

Commonwealth will dedicate the following key personnel to this project:   

 

Project Manager and Architectural Historian 

 

Greg Rainka (M.S., The School of the Art Institute of Chicago) is currently Assistant Regional Director for 

Commonwealth’s Wisconsin office.  He has ten years of experience as an architectural historian, cultural 

resources specialist, preservation planner, and project manager, and exceeds the Secretary of the 



 
 

 

 
Page 3 

Interior’s Professional Qualification Standards for History and Architectural History. His job 

responsibilities have primarily included documenting and facilitating project compliance with federal 

and state historic preservation and environmental laws and regulations. He has completed numerous 

historic and cultural resource studies for transportation, energy, telecommunication, and other 

infrastructure projects, and has surveyed and evaluated residential, commercial, industrial, agricultural, 

military, and tribal property types, as well as engineering resources such as power generation 

facilities, water control structures, roads, railroads, and bridges.  Mr. Rainka has also completed 

National Register of Historic Places nominations and HABS/HAER reports; participated in statewide 

contextual studies and historic bridge and road inventories; and prepared historic structures reports, 

historic property maintenance plans, and agreement documents. From 2012 to 2015, Mr. Rainka was a 

contract staff historian for the Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WisDOT). In that role, he 

reviewed compliance documentation for WisDOT projects and worked directly with the State Historic 

Preservation Office (SHPO) to complete the compliance process. He was also responsible for planning 

WisDOT’s annual training for architecture/history consultants and regional environmental coordinators. 

 

SCHEDULE  

 

Weather permitting, the architecture/history survey will begin within 10 business days of receiving 

authorization to proceed. Commonwealth proposes to prepare a draft architecture/history survey letter 

report within 5 business days after the completion of the fieldwork.  Commonwealth will prepare a DNAE 

within 10 business days of receiving detailed project plans.  All final reports will be submitted within 5 

business days of receiving comments from KL.  Should this schedule not meet the needs of KL, 

Commonwealth will negotiate a modified schedule.   

 

COST  

 

Based on our assumptions, Commonwealth proposes to complete an architecture/history survey and 

associated reporting for the proposed bridge replacement project, as well as a DNAE, for a total cost not 

to exceed $5,305.13.  Billing will be on a cost reimbursable, plus fixed fee basis.  Attached is a 

breakdown of costs. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 
Page 4 

Architecture/History Survey and DNAE 
WisDOT Project ID 5992-10-03 

Lake Mendota Drive Bridge (P-13-715) Replacement 
Village of Shorewood Hills, Dane County 

Salary & Wages   Prefield Field  Report TOTAL TOTAL 
Rainka, Greg/Project Manager  $32.00  4 40 44 $1,408.00 
Winterhalter, Shannon/Architectural Historian  $20.00  4 10 12 26 $520.00 
Hulit, Elissa/GIS-Graphics  $25.73  2 4 6 $154.38 
Subtotal 10 10 56 76 $2,082.38 
    
General and Administrative   
Provisional Rate = 123.72   
Labor x 123.72 $2,576.32   
Subtotal $2,576.32 
    
Fixed Fee   
Labor x 2.5 x 7.25% $377.43   
Subtotal $377.43 
    
Out of Pockets   
    
Transportation Miles Cost   
Mileage @$0.58/mile 200 $116.00 $116.00 
  $116.00 
Travel Days Cost   
Per Diem @$38.00 day 1 $38.00 $38.00 
Lodging @90.00/day 1 $90.00 $90.00 
  $128.00 
    
Additional Expenses Qty Cost   
Reproduction and Printing 1 $15.00 $15.00 
Postage and Delivery 1 $10.00 $10.00 
  $25.00 
    
    
    
    

Out of Pockets Subtotal $269.00 
    
    

 Total Estimated Cost           $5,305.13 
 



 
 

 
      

 
November 18, 2019 
 
Mr. Mike Bakalars 
KL Engineering 
5950 Seminole Centre Ct., Suite 200 
Madison, WI  53711 
 
RE: Proposal for Design Services // Lake Mendota Drive Bridge Replacement 

Village of Shorewood Hills, WI 
 
Dear Mike: 
 

We look forward to working with you on the Shorewood Hills-Lake Mendota Drive bridge 
replacement project CSD/CSS for the bridge structure.  Please find our attached proposal for 
conceptual structure aesthetics design services. 
 

Our scope of services includes the following: 
 Preparation for and attendance at the following meetings: 

o 1 kick-off or in-person design meeting at KL Engineering’s Madison office 
o Up to 2 local officials’ meetings at the Village of Shorewood Hills 

 Develop and provide exhibits for up to two (2) aesthetic treatment options for the preferred 
bridge alternate, including a presentation board with a rendered elevation, photographic 
examples or detail insets; 

 Review of final plans and specials (by others) for structure and pavements for aesthetic 
intent and consistency with selected aesthetic alternates for bridge and adjacent areas. 

 Invoicing and administration via WisDOT’s CARS platform 
 

Our fee for the proposed services will be completed as an hourly, not to exceed basis with a 
maximum fee of $5,554.50.  The summary of hours and expenses and computation of fees are 
attached to this proposal. 
 

We are excited by the chance to work with you on this project.  Please contact me at (608) 220-1370 
if you have any questions or need additional information. 
 

Sincerely, 
 

 
Rebecca de Boer, Landscape Architect 
Saiki Design 
 

Enclosure:  Fee Proposal 

the bridge.
Review of final plans and specials (by others) for structure aesthetic intent and consistency
with selected aesthetic alternatives for the bridge.

We look forward to working with you on the Shorewood Hills-Lake Mendota Drive bridge
replacement project plan development and CSD/CSS for the bridge structure. Please find our
attached proposal for conceptual structure aesthetics design services.



Lake Mendota Drive Bridge Replacement, Village of Shorewood Hills
Saiki Design, Inc.-Landscape Architects 11-18-2019

Principal Land. Arch. Landscape

Task Description Land. Arch. Project Mgr. Designer

MEETINGS
Kick-Off or Design Meeting 0 1.5 0 1 Meeting at KL Engineering at 1.5 Hours, Incl. Travel Time

Local Officials Meetings 0 5 0 2 Meetings at 2 Hours Each, Incl. Travel Time

Subtotal Hours 0 6.5 0

Direct Labor Cost/Hr. $35.92 $28.85 $23.56

Subtotal Direct Labor $0.00 $187.53 $0.00 $187.53

Subtotal Indirect Costs @ 123.96% $0.00 $232.46 $0.00 $232.46

Subtotal Direct and Indirect Cost $0.00 $419.99 $0.00 $419.99

Subtotal Fixed Fee $33.99

SUBTOTAL MEETINGS $453.98

CONCEPTUAL DESIGN AND EXHIBITS

Structure Aesthetics, Research and Graphic 
Representation 9 22 24

Development of up to two (2) aesthetic treatment options for 
the preferred bridge alternative; would only include a single 
presentation board (one for each alternative) to include a 
rendered elevation, photos and possibly inset details to convey 
aesthetics.

Project Management and Administration 4 8 0

Subtotal Hours 13 30 24

Direct Labor Cost/Hr. $35.92 $28.85 $23.56

Subtotal Direct Labor $466.96 $865.50 $565.44 $1,897.90

Subtotal Indirect Costs @ 123.96% $578.84 $1,072.87 $700.92 $2,352.63

Subtotal Direct and Indirect Cost $1,045.80 $1,938.37 $1,266.36 $4,250.53

Subtotal Fixed Fee $343.99

SUBTOTAL CONCEPTUAL DESIGN $4,594.52

PRELIMINARY DESIGN

Review of Structures Plans for Aesthetic Intent 0 4 0

Project Management and Administration 1 2 0 Includes Metadata/Final File Distribution and Close-out

Subtotal Hours 1 6 0

Direct Labor Cost/Hr. $35.92 $28.85 $23.56

Subtotal Direct Labor $35.92 $173.10 $0.00 $209.02

Subtotal Indirect Costs @ 123.96% $44.53 $214.57 $0.00 $259.10

Subtotal Direct and Indirect Cost $80.45 $387.67 $0.00 $468.12

Subtotal Fixed Fee $37.88

SUBTOTAL PRELIMINARY DESIGN $506.00

*** TOTAL*** $5,554.50



memo 

Village of Shorewood Hills 

Board of Trustees 

Karla Endres 

Karl Frantz 

12/13/2019 

Administration reconfiguration and flooring 

The Administration staff would like to reconfigure the existing cubicle workstations in the 

main office space to create more efficiencies and eliminate the need to replace one 

desktop computer. If the workstations are torn down to be reconfigured, it would be a 

good opportunity to replace the carpet.  

The carpet is 7+ years old and has not held up as well as we would have liked. We have 

attempted to have it cleaned professionally twice and the crew has made several 

attempts to spot clean it. Unfortunately, with the amount of traffic it sees from staff and 

the food stains, it is in need of replacement. 

Staff has obtained quotes from Emmons Business Interiors (EBI) who the Village has 

used in the past for the workstations and carpet install. Our Sales Rep suggested a 

Luxury Vinyl Tile (LVT) as a good option that is durable, will be cost effective and 

require less maintenance than carpet. The cost between carpet replacement and LVT 

are comparable. EBI has a sustainable flooring option called Ecosystem which is a 

comparable product to the LVT. Quotes for both options are included in the Board 

packet. We have not seen a sample of the Ecosystem flooring yet, but are hoping to 

have one by Monday for the Board meeting to present the different options available. 

The Services Committee has recommended proceeding with the cubicle reconfiguration 

and flooring replacement up to an amount not to exceed $21,328.84 out of the capital 

budget. The 2020 budget approved in November included $17,000 out of the capital 

fund for renovations to the Village Hall. The LVT quote is for $13,897.16 and the 

sustainable flooring quote is for $18,647.48. The cubicle reconfiguration is $2,681.36. 

We have included an email below from the supplier of the sustainable flooring. 

 

 

  



2 

---------- Forwarded message --------- 
From: Barb Millan <barbm@ebiweb.com> 
Date: Fri, Nov 8, 2019 at 8:47 AM 
Subject: RE: Sustainable flooring options 
To: Karla Endres <kendres@shorewood-hills.org> 
 
Good morning, 
I consulted with patcraft -- as they are the flooring expert and have the ability to answer the questions 
for us -- please review the below and let me know if you want this sample -- understanding it will have a 
significant cost impact to what I quoted previously… 
  
Hi Barb 
We do have one hard surface option that is Cradle To Cradle. That is our Ecosystem product. It is made 
from renewable oils (Canola, rapeseed, etc.). It has the attributes of our carpet that is Cradle to Cradle, 
we guarantee to take it back at no charge, at the end of it's useful life, and turn it back into the same 
type of flooring. 

It is the most sustainable hard surface flooring option available. It only needs to be damp mopped, so no 
stripping or waxing like linoleum, which is also an issue because of the chemicals in the wastewater that 
is poured down the drain. 

Sustainability in hard surfaces is really difficult to achieve. Bamboo is actually a terrible example of 
a sustainable choice. First of all, it is imported, so there is the carbon footprint of getting it to the US. 
Second, it used to be considered very durable and hard, but the increased use of it means that they are 
now harvesting new growth bamboo, instead of old growth. If the bamboo is young, it is soft. The upside 
to Bamboo is it grows like a weed and is readily renewable. However the Western interest in Bamboo 
has lead to terrible farming practices where they are putting chemicals on the soil to increase the 
growth rate. Cork and linoleum both take hits for maintenance. They have to be sealed, striped, and 
resealed on a regular basis. Moisture is not a friend to either of those surfaces because they are porous 
and absorb water, which is why they have to be sealed. 

So bottom line is if they do a deep dive, and really understand the sustainability issues, nothing will 
compare to Ecosystem. They are correct that Crossover and Timbergrove WPC do not have much going 
for them from a sustainability standpoint. Timbergrove is made in the USA, and has components that 
are sustainable, but any vinyl product is suspect. That is why our ecoworx backing doesn't have PVC in it. 
Really the only benefit to getting a vinyl based product from Patcraft/ Shaw is that our company is doing 
the right thing with so many aspects of flooring, so vinyl is bad, but at least ours comes from a company 
that has high sustainability standards overall. For example, all of our Commercial products are carbon 
neutral in production. We own the largest plastic bottle recycling facility in the world, and are finding 
new uses for the fiber that comes from that facility in an effort to solve the problem of plastic recycling. 
(And this is not a problem we created, we do not make plastic bottles) 

Ecosystem is beautiful, durable, and cradle to cradle. The downside to it is cost, it is more expensive 
than the Crossover or Timber Grove WPC For carpet tile I can offer you a completely sustainable option 
that does not cost more. This is not true of hard surface, but hopefully in 10 years we will get there. I am 
attaching an image, and you should have the binder on your shelf. Let me know if that isn't the case. 

Barb Millan, Sales Manager 
barbm@ebiweb.com 
Cell (608) 712-1360  
www.ebiweb.com 

mailto:barbm@ebiweb.com
mailto:kendres@shorewood-hills.org
mailto:barbm@ebiweb.com
http://www.ebiweb.com/














 

MADISON AREA MUNICIPAL STORMWATER PARTNERSHIP  
2020 ANNUAL INFORMATION AND EDUCATION WORK PLAN  

DISTRIBUTED TO PARTNERSHIP MEMBERS ON NOVEMBER 26TH, 2019 
 

The Madison Area Municipal Stormwater Partnership (MAMSWaP), under the auspices of a 

five-year memorandum of understanding through 2024, currently consists of 22 entities that have 

agreed to jointly implement stormwater outreach to reduce negative stormwater impacts. 

Members include the Cities of Fitchburg, Madison, Monona, Middleton, Stoughton, Sun Prairie 

and Verona; the Villages of Cottage Grove, Cross Plains, DeForest, Maple Bluff, McFarland, 

Shorewood Hills, Waunakee and Windsor; the Towns of Burke, Blooming Grove, Madison, 

Middleton, Westport; Dane County and the University of Wisconsin–Madison.  

 

The MAMSWaP Information and Education (I&E) Committee assists the Dane County 

Stormwater Education Coordinator (SWEC) with development and implementation of projects 

and plans. Regular participation on the I&E Committee has included representatives from the 

Cities of Fitchburg, Madison, and Stoughton, Village of DeForest, Town of Westport, Dane 

County, Madison Metropolitan Sewerage District (MMSD), Wisconsin Department of Natural 

Resources (WDNR), AECOM,  the University of Wisconsin Extension and UW Madison.  

 
The MAMSWaP Annual I&E Work Plan seeks to meet or exceed the minimum requirements 
and elements outlined in the current WPDES Permit Number WI-S058416-4 (effective July 
1, 2019 – June 30, 2024 and continuing until permit re-issuance);  and, WPDES Permit 
Number WI-S050075-03 for the Village of Cross Plains, by developing and implementing a 
coordinated, regional outreach effort using consistent messages among and between 
communities to reduce the quantity and improve the quality of urban stormwater runoff 
and identify and eliminate illicit discharges. Numbered items are the specific elements from 
the permit language. Proposed programs and activities addressing the following required 
permit elements for 2020 are listed in Table 1.1. 
 
3.1.4.1  Promote detection and elimination of illicit discharges and water quality impacts 

associated with such discharges from municipal separate storm sewer systems.  

3.1.4.2 Inform and educate the public about the proper management of materials that may 

cause stormwater pollution from sources including: automobiles, pet waste, 

household hazardous waste and household practices. 

3.1.4.3 Promote beneficial onsite reuse of leaves and grass clippings and proper use of 

lawn and garden fertilizers and pesticides. 

3.1.4.4  Promote the management of streambanks and shorelines by riparian 
landowners to minimize erosion and restore and enhance the ecological 
value of waterways. 

3.1.4.5 Promote infiltration of residential stormwater runoff from rooftop downspouts, 

driveways and sidewalks. 

3.1.4.6 Inform and educate those responsible for the design, installation and maintenance 

of construction site erosion control practices and stormwater management 

facilities on how to design, install and maintain the practices. 



 

3.1.4.7 Identify businesses and activities that may pose a stormwater contamination 

concern and educate those specific audiences on methods of stormwater pollution 

prevention. 

3.1.4.8 Promote environmentally sensitive land development designs by developers and 

designers, including green infrastructure  and low impact development. 

 
Municipal Responsibilities 

It is not enough for municipalities to merely be an actively paying contributor to the 

Partnership. There are specific actions each municipality must do. For example, while 

MAMSWaP has created a useful website, each municipality needs to link to www.ripple-

effects.com. Other examples include: 

• using provided articles and other information in municipal newsletters or utility bill 

inserts, 

• promoting MAMSWaP campaigns, events and trainings, 

• providing information on municipal web sites, 

• issuing press releases to local newspapers, and 

• implementing storm drain marking programs. 

 

Municipalities must document in their reports to DNR how they have implemented outreach 

campaigns and used the materials developed by the I&E Committee. 
 

Additional Activities and Ongoing Tasks 
There are some administrative tasks and ongoing programs that must be performed every 

year that are essential to the program and need to be accounted for in the annual work plan. 

Following is a partial list of those tasks. 

1. Quarterly reporting to member municipalities 
2. Annual reporting to DNR. 
3. Billing municipalities and track payments. 
4. Developing annual work plans. 
5. Updating and maintaining the www.ripple-effects.com website. 
6. Continuing to be an active partner of WI Salt Wise 

7. Continuing to promote North American Stormwater and Erosion Control Association 

Wisconsin Chapter events. 

8. Developing and distributing outreach tools and articles to municipalities, friends 

groups, community groups and neighborhood association newsletters. 

9. Developing and providing presentations (PowerPoint, demonstrations, etc.) 

focused on audience interests/concerns. 

10. Continuing to maintain and use existing list serves and distribution lists to disseminate info. 
11. Continuing to provide organizations and community groups assistance and 

partnering with projects (presentations, displays etc. for communities). 

12. Continuing to promote and support storm drain marking programs with supplies and 

other materials. 

13. Promoting the stormwater curriculum developed for MAMSWaP. 
14. Publicizing training for building inspectors, contractors and staff. 
15. Publicizing the availability of the Dane County Erosion Control and Stormwater 

http://www.myfairlakes.com/
http://www.myfairlakes.com/
http://www.ripple-effects.com/


 

Management Manual. 

16. Promoting use of the Enviroscape model and Rainfall Simulator. 

17. Continuing to coordinate outreach with partners such as the Rock River Stormwater Group, 
Madison Metropolitan Sewerage District and others. 

18. Continuing to actively participate in the Statewide Stormwater Collaborative group to learn 

from other stormwater groups across the state and discover possible projects to partner on. 

 

19. Continuing to actively participate in the Statewide Stormwater Collaborative group to learn 

from other stormwater groups across the state and discover possible projects to partner on. 

 
Acknowledgments   
The Madison Area Municipal Stormwater Partnership’s 2020 Annual Information and 
Education Work Plan was developed by the MAMSWaP I&E Committee. Committee 
member expertise, input and municipal cooperation was crucial for plan development and 
will continue to play an integral role in addressing stormwater runoff in Dane County. 
Thank you to everyone who helped. 
 
I&E Committee Members Contributing to the 2020 Annual I&E Work Plan  
 
Jeremy Balousek, Dane County Land and Water Resources Department 
Kelli Bialkowski, Village of DeForest 
Christal Campbell, Dane County Land and Water Resources Department 
Chris Egger, UW–Madison 
Rick Eilertson, AECOM 
Gail Epping Overholt- UW Arboretum 
Phil Gaebler, City of Madison 
Claudia Guy, City of Fitchburg 
Mindy Habecker, Dane County – UW Extension 
Kathy Lake, Madison Metropolitan Sewerage District 
Hannah Mohelnitzky, City of Madison 
Rodney Scheel, City of Stoughton 
Tom Wilson, Town of Westport 

For more information, visit www.ripple-effects.com or contact Christal Campbell at 608-
224-3746 or campbell.christal@countyofdane.com.   
 

http://www.ripple-effects.com/
mailto:or
mailto:campbell.christal@countyofdane.com


 
Table 1.1 – 2020 MAMSWaP Information and Education Programs and Activities 
 

Program/Activity Audience Responsible 
Parties/Partners 

Timing Actions/Deliverables Permit Topic(s) Addressed 

Storm Drain Mural 
Program 
 

Residential  
Educational 

SWEC, Dane Arts 
Mural Arts (DAMA), 
MAMSWaP 
Communities, Schools, 
Community Groups 

1. Nov 2019 
2. Dec 2019-Jan 2020 
3. Feb 2020 
4. Mar-Aug 2020 
5. Jun-Aug 2020 
6. Jun-Aug 2020 

1. Update and post Storm Drain Mural Grant on Ripple 
Effects web site 

2. Promote Storm Drain Mural Grants  
3. Rank and select up to 10 applications for new or 

repainted murals 
4. Work with municipalities, partner groups and DAMA to 

design and paint storm drain murals 
5. Provide partner groups with articles to promote new 

murals locally. 
6. Add new storm drain murals to Storm Drain Mural 

Project map 

1. Illicit Discharge Detection 
and Elimination 

Illicit Discharge Reporting 
Program 
  

Residential 
Public Sector 
Private Sector 

SWEC, MAMSWaP 
Communities 

1. Oct-Jan 2020 
2. Feb-Aug 2020 
3. Feb -May 2020  
4. April-May 2020 

1. Develop county-wide Illicit Discharge Ordinance 
2. Develop outreach campaign 
3. Develop single point of contact reporting system 

protocol 
4. Hold at least one Illicit Discharge training for public staff 

 

1. Illicit Discharge Detection 
and Elimination 

Stormwater 
Pollution/Prevention 
Education Tools (Rainfall 
Simulator, Enviroscape, 
Stormwater Curriculum , 
Stormwater Animation 
and Storm Drain Marking) 
 

Residential 
Educational 

SWEC, MAMSWaP 
Communities, Schools, 
Community Groups  

1. Jan-Dec 2020 
2. Jan-Dec 2020 
3. Jan-Dec 2020 

1. Promote stormwater ed. tools to partners, groups and 
educators. 

2. Use stormwater ed. tools in at least 5 presentations. 
3. Check out stormwater ed. tools to at least 5 

educators/groups. 

1. Illicit Discharge Detection 
and Elimination 

2. Household Hazardous 
Waste Disposal/Pet Waste 
Management/Vehicle 
Washing 

3. Yard Waste 
Management/Pesticide and 
Fertilizer Application 

4. Stream and Shoreline 
Management 

5. Residential Infiltration 
 

Leaf-free Streets for Clean 
Waters 
 

Residential 
Educational 
Private Sector 

SWEC, MAMSWaP 
Communities, 
Community Groups 

1. Sept 2020 
2. Oct-Nov 2020 
3. Oct-Nov 2020 

1. Update and distribute Leaf-free Streets for Clean 
Waters Toolkit to municipalities and groups 

2. Promote actions and rain alert system through 
social media, flyers, newsletter articles, signs, 

3. Yard Waste 
Management/Pesticide and 
Fertilizer Application 



 
presentations, newspaper and online advertising. 

3. Issue email/text rain alerts. 
Plant Dane Native Plant 
Program and  
Free Native Plants for 
School and Community 
Projects (FNPSCP) Program 
 

Residential 
Educational 
Private Sector 
 

SWEC, MAMSWaP 
Communities, Schools, 
Community Groups 

1. Dec 2019-Jan 2020 
2. Nov 2019 
3. Dec 2019-Jan 2020 
4. Feb 2020 
5. Feb-Mar 2020 
6. Feb-Mar 2020 
7. Feb-Mar 2020 
8. Feb-Mar 2020 
9. June 2020 

1. Work with Agrecol to update plant list and order 
system. 

2. Update and post FNPSCP  Grant Application 
3. Promote FNPSCP Grants 
4. Launch Plant Dane online order site  
5. Solicit and collect donations for at least 10 FNPSCPs 
6. Update and distribute Plant Dane Toolkit to 

municipalities and groups 
7. Hold rain garden workshop with at least 15 

participants. 
8. Sell at least 10,000 native plants through Plant 

Dane  
9. Distribute native plant orders/donations 

4. Stream and Shoreline 
Management 

5. Residential Infiltration 
7. Pollution Prevention 
8. Green Infrastructure/Low 

Impact Development 
 

NASECA Trainings 
 

Construction 
Professionals 
Public Sector 

SWEC, MAMSWaP 
Communities 

1. July-Nov 2020 
2. July-Nov 2020 

1. Promote NASECA Trainings 
2. Provide discounts to attend trainings for 

MAMSWaP communities 

6. Construction Sites and 
Post-Construction Storm 
Water Management 

WI Salt Wise Program and 
Salt Certification Trainings 
 

Residential 
Private Sector 
Public Sector 
 

SWEC, WI Salt Wise 
Partners, MAMSWaP 
Communities 

1. Jan-Mar 2020, 
Sept-Dec 2020 

2. Jan-Mar 2020, 
Sept-Dec 2020 

3. Oct-Dec 2020 
4. Oct-Nov 2020 
5. Oct-Nov 2020 

1. Participate on WI Salt Wise Team and attend 
meetings 

2. Collaborate with WI Salt Wise partners to promote, 
develop and distribute resources to reduce winter 
salt use. 

3. Update and distribute WI Salt Wise Toolkit to 
municipalities and groups. 

4. Hold at least two salt certification trainings with at 
least 20 participants. 

5. Hold at least one salt calibration training with at 
least 10 participants. 

2. Household Hazardous 
Waste Disposal/Pet Waste 
Management/Vehicle 
Washing 

7. Pollution Prevention 

Stormwater and Erosion 
Control Plan Review and  
Inspections 

Construction 
Professionals 
Residential 

MAMSWaP 
Communities 

1. Jan-Dec 2020 
2. Jan-Dec 2020 

1. Review erosion control and stormwater 
management plans 

2. Conduct inspections of erosion control and 
stormwater practices. 

6. Construction Sites and 
Post-Construction Storm 
Water Management 

 

 



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT TO FUND A POSITION RESPONSIBLE FOR 
STORM WATER INFORMATION, EDUCATION AND OUTREACH COORDINATION 

FOR THE MADISON AREA MUNICIPAL STORM WATER PARTNERSHIP (MAMSWaP) 
 
THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT, hereinafter referred to as this “Agreement,” 
made and entered into by, between and among the Cities of Fitchburg, Madison, 
Middleton, Monona, Stoughton, Sun Prairie and Verona; the Villages of Cottage Grove, 
Cross Plains, DeForest, Maple Bluff, McFarland, Shorewood Hills, Waunakee and 
Windsor; the Towns of Blooming Grove, Burke, Madison, Middleton and Westport; Dane 
County; and the University of Wisconsin–Madison, hereinafter referred to individually as 
“Party” and collectively as the “Parties,” which will include other municipalities that may join 
after this Agreement has been signed by the Parties listed. 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, many of the Parties entered into a Cooperative Agreement to jointly apply for 
a storm water discharge permit, hereinafter referred to as the “Permit”, under Chapter NR 
216 of the Wisconsin Administrative Code in April, 2000; and  
 
WHEREAS, this group intends to work cooperatively on storm water information, education 
and outreach, notwithstanding the fact that there may not be a continuing group Permit; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, one of the required work elements of each Party’s NR 216 permit is the 
operation of an information, education and outreach program; and 
 
WHEREAS, many of the Parties previously signed an agreement to jointly develop, 
coordinate and implement an information, education and outreach program from May 2004 
through April 2009 and May 2009 through December 2013 and January 2014 through 
December 2018 (extended to December 2019); and 
 
WHEREAS, the materials and products that result from this joint effort are expressly 
developed for the Parties to partially fulfill their information and education permit 
obligations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties agree, pursuant to sec. 66.0301, and Ch. 36, Wis. Stats. to obtain 
the services of a sixty percent employee of Dane County to provide information, education 
and outreach services to partially meet the requirements and components of each Party’s 
NR 216 Stormwater Discharge Permit as detailed in the Madison Area Municipal Storm 
Water Partnership 2020-2024 Storm Water Information, Education and Outreach Plan. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises and the covenants of the 
Parties hereinafter set forth, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged 
by each Party for itself, the Parties agree to the following: 
 
  1. Dane County shall maintain a 60% position (1,248 hours annually or as many hours 

as funding allows), hereinafter referred to as the “Position,” in its Land & Water 
Resources Department’s (LWRD) and limited term employees to provide 
information, education and outreach services in furtherance of the storm water 



 2 

management programs conducted under each Party’s permit. If any party fails to 
make their respective contribution by the due date as required by Exhibit A, the 
Party may be suspended from receiving services under this agreement and may be 
subjected to a breach of contract claim by Dane County or any other Party.  
 
The Position shall be funded by the Parties as set forth in Exhibit A. Fees are based 
on 2010 Census population data. When a municipality wishes to join the 
information, education and outreach plan effort, it shall pay the amount set forth in 
Exhibit A based on its population from 2010 Census data. If a municipality joins mid-
year, its amount will not be prorated. Additional municipalities’ contributions shall 
not lessen the amount of the Parties’ contributions set forth in Exhibit A, but shall be 
utilized for salary, benefits, and programmatic expenses directly related to the 
MAMSWaP. The municipality wishing to join the effort shall sign onto this 
Agreement and be afforded the benefits of the information, education and outreach 
program that are made available to all Parties. 

 
Dane County shall provide annual documentation of direct and indirect expenses 
incurred with staffing the I&E position. Costs would include direct salary and 
benefits of staff and supervisors as well as indirect costs such as work space and 
support. This report for prior year shall be presented to agreement signatories on or 
before March 31 annually.  
 
Should the Position become vacant, Dane County shall take all reasonable 
measures to assure that it is filled or its duties reassigned. During the time the 
Position is vacant, the LWRD Water Resource Engineering Division Manager shall 
assign other equivalent staff to complete the duties of the Position and shall notify 
all Parties in writing. 

 
  2. The Parties shall continue to operate and maintain the Information and Education 

Committee, hereinafter referred to as I&E Committee, previously created under the 
Madison Area Municipal Storm Water Partnership. The I&E Committee shall provide 
guidance and oversight to the Position, which is directly supervised by the LWRD 
Water Resource Engineering Division Manager. The five-year outreach plan 
developed by the I&E Committee will direct the Position’s activities. 

 
 The materials and products that result from this joint effort are expressly developed 

for the Parties to partially fulfill their Information and Education permit obligations. 
 

The I&E Committee shall meet a minimum of four (4) times per year. The I&E 
Committee shall consist of representatives of the Parties to this Agreement. The 
Position shall staff the I&E Committee. There is no maximum number of members 
for the I&E Committee. Any representative of a Party to this Agreement may be a 
member of the I&E Committee. At a minimum, the I&E Committee shall be 
comprised of one representative from Dane County, one representative from UW-
Madison, one representative from City of Madison, one representative from 
remaining Party cities, one representative from villages, and one representative 
from towns (for a total of six (6)). The I&E Committee shall continue to solicit the 
advice and consultation of the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources and the 
University of Wisconsin Cooperative Extension.  



 3 

 
  3. The entire agreement of the Parties is contained herein and this Agreement 

supersedes any and all oral agreements and negotiations between the Parties 
relating to the subject matter hereof. The Parties expressly agree that this 
Agreement shall not be amended in any fashion except in writing, executed by all 
Parties.  

 
  4. Upon execution by all Parties, this Agreement shall become effective, superseding 

the previous agreement that was in place through December 2018, and shall end 
December 31, 2024 unless the Parties agree to a longer period. This Agreement 
may be amended and extended at any time upon the mutual agreement of all of the 
Parties.  

 
  5 Dane County shall invoice each of the Parties the amount set forth in Exhibit A 

commencing January 1, 2020 and every January 1 for years 2021, 2022, 2023 and 
2024. Invoices are payable in 30 days.  

 
  6. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 

In the event that any Party determines that it is in its best interest to terminate 
participation in this cooperative agreement with Dane County and all other Parties 
to this Agreement for storm water information, education and outreach, the Party 
may do so at any time by taking the following action: 

 
A)  The Party shall send written correspondence to the Dane County 

LWRD Water Resource Engineering Division Manager and the 
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources indicating its desire to 
terminate participation in this Agreement.  

 
 This correspondence shall include an official resolution or documented 

action indicating that the requested termination has been authorized 
by a governmental body possessing the legal authority required to 
terminate this Agreement, and that the signatories to this 
correspondence are duly authorized to sign a correspondence 
terminating their participation in this Agreement. 

 
B) Upon receipt of this correspondence, the Dane County LWRD Water 

Resource Engineering Division Manager shall deem the requesting 
party removed from the information and education joint agreement at 
the end of the year in which the request is made. 

 
  7. In the event that a Party withdraws and terminates its participation in this 

Agreement, the withdrawing Party shall be responsible for its financial contribution 
with regard to this Agreement until December 31 of the year the Party withdraws. 
No partial refund based on the date of withdrawal by the Party shall be given. 

 
When a withdrawing Party is no longer financially responsible under this paragraph, 
the cost shall be re-apportioned among the remaining Parties based upon each 
Party’s respective proportional contribution as set forth in Exhibit A if the termination 
results in the funding contribution total to be less than $25,000 for programmatic 



 4 

expenses plus the amount needed to fund the Position’s salary and benefits for the 
year following the time of termination. 

 
  8. NON DISCRIMINATION 

In performance of services under this Agreement, the parties agree not to 
discriminate against any employee or applicant because of race, religion, marital 
status, age, color, sex, handicap, national origin or ancestry, income level or source 
of income, arrest record or conviction record, less than honorable discharge, 
physical appearance, sexual orientation, political beliefs, or student status. 

 
  9. PERFORMANCE 

Each Party to this Agreement hereby certifies that it possesses the legal authority 
required to enter into this Agreement, and that the signatories to this Agreement are 
duly authorized to sign and that its designated representatives are authorized to act 
in matters pertaining to this Agreement and to provide required reports and file data 
as may be required. 

 
10. THIRD PARTY RIGHTS 

This agreement is intended to be solely between the parties hereto. No part of this 
Agreement shall be construed to add, supplement, amend, or repeal existing rights, 
benefits or privileges of any third party or parties. Nothing contained herein is 
intended as a waiver by any party of the defenses and immunities contained within 
the Wisconsin Statutes, including Sec. 893.80. 

 
11. EXECUTION IN COUNTERPART 

Each Party to this Agreement acknowledges that this Agreement may be executed 
in counterparts by duly authorized signatories and that the final contract and the 
cumulative counterpart signature pages shall be considered an original document 
with the full force and effect as if one copy of the contract was circulated to all 
parties for signature. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Cities of Fitchburg, Madison, Middleton, Monona, 
Stoughton, Sun Prairie and Verona; the Villages of Cottage Grove, Cross Plains, 
DeForest, Maple Bluff, McFarland, Shorewood Hills, Waunakee and Windsor; the Towns 
of Blooming Grove, Burke, Madison, Middleton, and Westport; Dane County; and the 
University of Wisconsin–Madison, hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by 
their proper officers. 
 
 



 5 

EXHIBIT A 
FINANCIAL CONTRIBUTIONS TOWARD POSITIONS RESPONSIBLE FOR 

STORM WATER INFORMATION, EDUCATION AND OUTREACH 
 

The contributions per Party listed below for 2020 assume a 60% (1,248 hours annually) 
annual salary and benefits package of approximately $50,000 based on the 2019  rate of 
pay for the Position, a 50% LTE (1,040 hours annually) annual salary of approximately 
$25,000 and a base annual programmatic budget of $25,000 for information, education 
and outreach materials and supplies. Any funds received that are not used for salary and 
benefits package will be carried forward and available for programmatic expenses in the 
following year. 
 

The Salary and Benefits paid for the positions  in the 2nd and subsequent years shall be 
based upon a 5% annual increase as shown in the following example (rounded to next 
highest dollar): year one (1) contribution $1000, year two (2) $1000 + $1000*(0.05) = 
$1050.00, year three (3) = $1050 + $1050*(0.05) = $1103.  
 

The programmatic budget for implementing the information and education plan is $25,000 
annually. The programmatic budget shall be increased at 5% per year using the same 
process described above for the Salary and Benefits portion of this EXHIBIT A. 
 

Billing invoice amounts reflecting salary and benefits and programmatic funds shall be 
reviewed by the I&E Committee. If the accumulated programmatic balance exceeds 
$25,000 in any given year, the I&E Committee has discretion to credit member 
municipalities with written notice sent to all Parties in the Agreement. 
 

Additional increases to the Position salary (in the case of a reclassification of Position 
incumbent) or programmatic budgets are allowed provided the budget amendment is 
approved by the I&E Committee and written notice sent to all Parties in this Agreement.  
 

Any proposed changes shall be sent by July 1 of the year preceding the proposed change 
so that municipalities have adequate time to budget for the additional costs. Additional 
costs shall be apportioned among the Parties based upon their respective proportional 
contribution as set forth herein. 
 

The Position shall pursue grant opportunities wherever possible to supplement the 
programmatic budget and shall be responsible for submittal of those grant requests on 
behalf of the Parties to this Agreement. 
 

MUNICIPALITY 2010 Population 
January-December 2020 

Fee 
Category 

Dane County*, ** N/A NA  

UW-Madison* N/A $4,184  5 

City of Madison 233,209 $16,742  1 

City of Sun Prairie 29,364 $9,366  2 

City of Fitchburg 25,260 $9,366  2 

City of Middleton 17,442 $6,278  3 

City of Stoughton 12,611 $5,212  4 

Village of Waunakee 12,097 $5,212  4 

City of Verona 10,619 $5,212  4 



 6 

Village of DeForest 8,936 $4,184  5 

City of Monona 7,533 $4,184  5 

Village of McFarland 7,808 $4,184  5 

Town of Windsor 6,345 $4,184  5 

Town of Madison 6,279 $4,184  5 

Village of Cottage Grove 6,192 $4,185  5 

Town of Middleton 5,877 $4,185  5 

Village of Westport 3,950 $2,093  6 

Village of Cross Plains  3,538 $2,093  6 

Town of Burke 3,284 $2,093  6 

Town of Blooming Grove 1,815 $2,093  6 

Village of Shorewood Hills 1,565 $2,093  6 

Village of Maple Bluff 1,313 $2,093  6 

TOTAL  $103,421  

* Contribution not based on population. 

** The Parties agree that Dane County does not invoice itself, but rather contributes in-kind with office space; phone, 

computer, printer and other equipment; internet access; Information Management and other staff support; access to 

vehicles; supervision; and other overhead.  

MUNICIPALITY 
2020 

Contribution 
2021 

Contribution 
2022 

Contribution 
2023 

Contribution 
2024 

Contribution 
Cate-
gory 

2010 
popul-
ation 

Dane County NA NA NA NA NA 5 N/A 

UW-Madison $4,184  $4,393  $4,613  $4,844  $5,086  5 N/A 

City of Madison $16,742  $17,579  $18,458  $19,381  $20,350  1 233,209 

City of Sun Prairie $9,366  $9,834  $10,326  $10,842  $11,384  2 29,364 

City of Fitchburg $9,366  $9,834  $10,326  $10,842  $11,384  2 25,260 

City of Middleton $6,278  $6,592  $6,921  $7,268  $7,631  3 17,442 

City of Stoughton $5,212  $5,473  $5,746  $6,034  $6,335  4 12,611 

Village of 
Waunakee 

$5,212  $5,473  $5,746  $6,034  $6,335  4 12,097 

City of Verona $5,212  $5,473  $5,746  $6,034  $6,335  4 10,619 

Village of 
DeForest 

$4,184  $4,393  $4,613  $4,844  $5,086  5 8,936 

City of Monona $4,184  $4,393  $4,613  $4,844  $5,086  5 7,533 

Village of 
McFarland 

$4,184  $4,393  $4,613  $4,844  $5,086  5 7,808 

Town of Windsor $4,184  $4,393  $4,613  $4,844  $5,086  5 6,345 

Town of Madison $4,184  $4,393  $4,613  $4,844  $5,086  5 6,279 

Village of Cottage 
Grove 

$4,185  $4,395  $4,614  $4,845  $5,087  5 6,192 

Town of Middleton $4,185  $4,395  $4,614  $4,845  $5,087  5 5,877 

Town of Westport $2,093  $2,197  $2,307  $2,423  $2,544  6 3,950 

Village of Cross 
Plains 

$2,093  $2,197  $2,307  $2,423  $2,544  6 3,538 

Town of Burke $2,093  $2,197  $2,307  $2,423  $2,544  6 3,284 

Town of Blooming 
Grove 

$2,093  $2,197  $2,307  $2,423  $2,544  6 1,815 

Village of 
Shorewood Hills 

$2,093  $2,197  $2,307  $2,423  $2,544  6 1,565 

Village of Maple 
Bluff 

$2,093  $2,197  $2,307  $2,423  $2,544  6 1,313 

Total: $103,421  $108,592  $114,021  $119,723  $125,709      



 7 

Category 
2010 Census 
Population 

1 >50,000 

2 20,000-49,999 

3 15,000-19,999 

4 10,000-14,999 

5 5,000-9,999 

6 <5,000 

  

 
 



 9 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands at Madison, Wisconsin. 

  CONTRACTOR 

  
Dane County 

  (Type or Print Name of Contracting Entity) 

  By:  

   Joseph T.  Parisi, County Executive 

     

    

   Date:       

   

   

   CITY OF MADISON, WISCONSIN 

a municipal corporation 

    

   By:  

    Satya Rhodes-Conway, Mayor 

     

  Date:  

Approved:   

     

  By:  

David P. Schmiedicke, Finance Director   Maribeth Witzel-Behl, City Clerk 

     

Date:   Date:  

  Approved as to Form: 

   

Eric T. Veum, Risk Manager  Michael P. May, City Attorney 

Date:   Date:  

 

 

 



 20 

FOR THE VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS 

 

__________________________________________  __________________________ 

David J. Benforado, Village President    Date 

 

 

__________________________________________  __________________________ 

Karla Endres, Village Clerk     Date 

  



2020 BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE 

 

The Village Board typically holds its regular monthly meeting on the third Monday of each month 

at the Village Hall at 7:00 pm with the occasional exception to avoid holidays or other conflicts: 

 In January, the Board will meet on Tuesday, January 21, 2020 following the Martin Luther 

King, Jr. holiday. 

 In April, newly elected Trustees take office 14 days after the spring election. The Board 

meeting may be postponed one day to Tuesday, April 21, 2020 to avoid a possible “Lame Duck” 

Board meeting. 

 There will also be a special Board meeting on Monday, November 2, 2020 to present the 

preliminary 2021 Budget before the official public hearing at the regular November Board 

meeting. 

 

 

Board Meeting Dates in 2020 

Tuesday, January 21 

Monday, February 17 

Monday, March 16 

Tuesday, April 21 

Monday, May 18 

Monday, June 15 

Monday, July 20 

Monday, August 17 

Monday, September 21 

Monday, October 19 

Monday, November 2 

Monday, November 16 

Monday, December 21 

 

 

 

VILLAGE CAUCUS 

 

Tuesday, January 21, 2020 at 7:00 pm at the Village Hall before the monthly Board of Trustees 

meeting to. At the Caucus, residents will select candidates for Municipal Judge and three Trustees 

that have terms expiring in April. 



M E M O 
 

To: Board of Trustees 

From: Karla Endres, Clerk 

Re:  Appointment of Poll Workers 

Date: Friday, December 13, 2019 

              

 

Rose Fahien, Chief Election Inspector for the Village of Shorewood Hills, nominates the 

following people to serve as election workers for the Village of Shorewood Hills for a two-year 

term commencing January 1, 2020 and ending December 31, 2021: 

  

1. Rose Fahien   3212 Topping Road 

2.    Joy Bjorklund   309 W Johnson Street #712, Madison, WI 

3. Ann Gordon-Walker  1230 University Bay Drive 

4. Ann Pollock   1218 Sweetbriar Road 

5. Lois Polenz   2803 Columbia Road 

6. Hannah Pinkerton  1212 Shorewood Boulevard 

7. Mary Gulbrandsen  1506 Wood Lane 

8. Lynn Johnson   3010 Harvard Drive 

9. Jane Pizer   3539 Topping Road 

10. Jody Lampe   3121 Oxford Road 

11. Erica Moeser   3448 Lake Mendota Drive 

12. Sarah Harari   1116 Oak Way 

13. Janet Frenz   1116 Wellesley Road 

14. Maggie Andres  4600 University Avenue, Apt 411, Madison, WI  

 

 

 

 
          



VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS 

 

A PROCLAMATION RELATING TO 2020 OBSERVANCE OF ARBOR DAY 

 

 

Whereas, in 1872 J. Sterling Morton proposed to the Nebraska Board of Agriculture 

that a special day be set aside for the planting of trees, and 

 

Whereas, this holiday, called Arbor Day, was first observed with the planting of 

more than a million trees in Nebraska, and 

 

Whereas, 2020 is the 148th anniversary of the holiday and Arbor Day is now 

observed throughout the nation and the world, and 

 

Whereas, trees can reduce the erosion of our precious topsoil by wind and water, cut 

heating and cooling costs, moderate the temperature, clean the air, 

replenish atmospheric oxygen, and provide habitat for wildlife, and 

 

Whereas, trees are a renewable resource giving us paper, wood for our homes, fuel 

for our fires, and beauty to our community, and 

 

Whereas, trees, wherever they are planted, are a source of joy and spiritual renewal. 

 

Now, Therefore, I, David Benforado, Village President, do hereby proclaim April 24th, 

2020 as 

 

ARBOR DAY 

  

in the Village of Shorewood Hills, and I urge all citizens to celebrate Arbor Day and 

support efforts to protect our trees and woodlands, and  

 

Further I urge all citizens to plant trees to gladden the heart and promote the well-

being of this and future generations. 

 

Dated this _____ day of _______________, 20____. 

 

           

           

   Village President       

              David J. Benforado 



 

 1 

Minutes of the Ad Hoc Recognition Committee 

Village of Shorewood Hills 
Mon., Dec. 9, 2019 

(scheduled for review at next Ad Hoc Recognition Committee meeting) 

 

1) Called to Order: Chair Benforado called the meeting to order at 7:11 p.m. 

a) Committee members present: Chair/Village President Dave Benforado, Trustee Cokie 

Albrecht, Peggy Scallon, and Kat Hurley; Committee Member Lucy Richards arrived at 

7:36 PM; Committee Members Nadeem Afghan and Mark Sundquist were excused. 

 

2) Compliance with WI Open Meeting Law: D. Benforado noted that he had inquired with 

Village Administrator Karl Frantz earlier that day and that Frantz had indicated the meeting 

had been properly noticed. 

 

3) WI Open Meeting law: Committee discussed the importance of the law, discussing a Q&A 

document and article from the League of Wisconsin Municipalities on the WI open meeting 

law that were included with Committee materials. 

 

4) Self-Introductions: Committee members self-introduced themselves. 

 

5) Committee’s Mission, Term, Awards and Process: Committee members reviewed the 

Committee’s mission, term (through 2021), list of awards the Committee may consider each 

year and its process. On the latter point, the Committee reviewed and discussed a two-page 

document that Committee members Albrecht and Benforado drafted; that document 

discussing the various considerations the Committee may want to apply when making Award 

decisions each year. 

 

6) Resident Award Nominations: Committee members carefully reviewed the 15 nominations 

received by the November 22, 2019, deadline, some nominating the same person. The 

Committee expressed its appreciation for the high quality and detailed nominations that were 

submitted. The Committee decided to hold the nominations of Chris Carbon, and Erick and 

Jacob Johnson in reserve until the Committee had reviewed and approved a Village 

employee recognition program in 2020. Based on the remaining nominations, the Committee 

agreed to seven 2020 Village Recognition Awards that will be presented at the 2020 Village 

Recognition Dinner (Sat., Feb. 1, 2020, at Blackhawk Country Club): 

a) Gary Johnson: Distinguished Service Award; 

b) Georgene Stratman: Distinguished Service Award; 

c) Tom Brock: Tom Brock Heritage Award; 

d) Tracy Bailey/Aleasha Anderson/Marilyn Krichko: Good Samaritan Award; 

e) Janet McClain: Teamwork Award; 

f) Tracy Koziol: Heavy Lifter Award; and 

g) Jessica DeVito: Community Builder Award. 

D. Benforado will work with Village staff to make arrangements for notification letters to be 

sent to all Award recipients, the letters inviting the recipients to the 2020 Village Recognition 

Dinner, order the plaques, write an article for the February 2020 Village Bulletin, and 

prepare text summarizing each Award when they are awarded at the Recognition Dinner. 



 

 2 

 

7) Discussed Future 2020 Meeting Dates: Committee agreed to meet as needed in 2020 to 

review and discuss Village employee recognition program, further discuss the suggestion of 

there being a large perpetual plaque at Village Hall that would list each year’s Award 

recipients, and that Village staff will Doodle Committee members at that time to select the 

best date that works. 

 

8) Adjourned: at 8:31 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted on December 12, 2019, by Dave Benforado, Chair. 



1 

Village of Shorewood Hills (VoSH) 

PUBLIC WORKS Committee MONDAY October 14, 2019 - 7PM 

  APPROVED MINUTES     

 

Date / Time October 14, 2019  Place Village Hall 

 

Member P A  E Member P A  E  

 

P=Present 

 A=Absent 

E=Excused 

Tracy Bailey (Chair) x   Farah Kaiksow   x 

Rick Chappell   MINUTE TAKER x   Shabnam Lofti x   

Cara Coburn Faris    x   Laura Cristina Valderrama x   

OPEN SEAT   x     

Others in attendance:  Karl Frantz, Brian Berquist, and John Mitmoen 

 

Time Item Notes 

7pm Call to Order 7:05 pm 

 Note compliance with open meeting law Noted 

7:05 Approve previous meeting minutes Document:  Draft 9.9.19 Minutes   Approved 4-0-1 

Document:  Draft 8.12.19 Minutes  Approved 5-0 

7:10 Discussion: 

What makes data robust?  

What constitutes a call to action?  

Document:  “Top 5” table (Brian) 

7:12 Edgehill Speedhumps 

● Update from Sept. Board Meeting 

● Complete streets/evolving mindset 

● Prototype to inform policy 

Document:  Traffic Count/Speed estimates (Karl) 

Document:  Smart Growth America handout 

 

Extensive discussion ensued concerning justification of safety 

measures installed on Edgehill Drive.   The consensus was that - 

in lieu of sidewalks as the superior safety solution - the lack of 

areas for pedestrians to flee in the face of oncoming traffic and 

the political will for safety measures on Edgehill justify their 

installation. 

 Motion:  “After consideration of the Board's relayed 

opinions on this measure, and thorough discussion, the 

Committee recommends that the Village install speed humps on 

Edgehill as previously recommended.  This is posed as a pilot 

project with studies of traffic speed and volume both immediately 

before and after on Edgehill, Shorewood Boulevard, and Oak 

Way" (moved, RC; seconded, SL; approved unanimously). 

 Catafalque Drive Parking & Signage Document:  Draft Parking Ordinance (Karl) 

 



2 

8:15 Catafalque Drive Parking & Signage 

 Presentation by BB giving needs and future parking 

plans for Catafalque Drive.  The ordinance is summarized as no 

parking along the entire street except for four 15-minute and one 

pickup/delivery space on the west side of the Drive's west arm.  

With that exception, curbs on each side will be painted yellow to 

reflect the no-parking restriction. 

 Motion:   endorsing the ordinance as described 

immediately above (moved CCF; seconded LCV; approved 

unanimously). 

 Relief Sewer Project - MMSD 

(Madison Metropolitan Sewerage District) 

Document:  West Interceptor Presentation (MMSD) 

 

8:50 Discussion of relief sewer project postponed to the next 

meeting. 

 Flooding Infrastructure Review 

● Update on FEMA 

● Recommendation on levy increase 

Document:  Damage and Costs (Karl) 

 

8:28 Flooding Infrastructure Review 

 Document: "Damage and Costs", described by KF. 

 Presentation by TB discussing rationale for action by the 

Committee and by KF describing projects on "Damage and 

Costs" document, with clarification given by BB.  He emphasized 

that the repairs listed in the document are meant to replace rather 

than improve upon the damaged facilities and areas. 

 Motion:   to recommend that the Board consider 

increasing the property tax levy to cover the cost of the FEMA 

local share of expenses under consideration at their 2020 meeting 

if the WI Department of Revenue allows an extension or 2019 

otherwise (moved TB, seconded CCF, unanimously approved). 

 Updates John Mitmoen Retirement 

Garden Homes Development 

Stormwater Committee 

Lake Mendota Drive Bridge Project 

 

  -  Announcement of John Mitmoen's Retirement reluctantly 

accepted (TB). 

  -  Developer and resident Tom Degen submitted a plan to build 

11 nearly identical single-family homes on the sites of those 

destroyed by last year's floods. 

9pm Close  

 



Village of Shorewood Hills (VoSH) 

PUBLIC WORKS Committee – Monday, November 11, 2019 - 7PM 

APPROVED MINUTES 

 

Date / Time November 11, 2019 / 7pm  Place Village Hall 

 

Member P A  E Member P A  E  
 

P=Present 
 A=Absent 
E=Excused 

Tracy Bailey (Chair) X   Farah Kaiksow   X 

Rick Chappell  X   Shabnam Lotfi (Minute Taker) X   

Cara Coburn Faris   X Laura Cristina Valderrama X   

Dave DeVito   X     

Others in attendance: 

 

Time Item Notes Vote 

7pm Call to Order 7:08 pm  

 Note compliance with open meeting law ⃞ yes  

 Minute taker:  Shabnam   

7:05 Approve previous meeting minutes ⃞  Document:  Draft 10.14.19 Approved 
 

4-0 

7:15 Topic 1:  Post Farm Park path Topic 1 
There are concerns about the condition of this 
fairly narrow, well-travelled path. It is not 
smooth and is steep near Harvard.  There has 
been at least 1 injury.  Should we consider 
reconstruction, how to address drainage, should 
it stay narrow?    We may need to coordinate 
with Parks Committee. Currently the path is 
about 398 ft long and 4 ft wide. Looking at 
around $30,000 for either a replacement path or 
the construction of an 8ft wide path.  
 
A resident suggested closing the path in winter if 
it isn’t maintained.  For now, the village will keep 
the path open and will monitor it. PWC will 
consider repaving and/or improvements in the 
Spring.   

 

7:40 Topic 2:  Crosswalks/striping/painting Due to weather conditions, we cannot do any 
painting of crosswalks right now. The bike path 
crossing will also not get the green paint this 
year. All painting is put on hold until the spring.  
 

 



It would be helpful to have a map of the village 
with all the crosswalks identified. We can revisit 
this topic again in the future to see how we can 
use color on crosswalks  to improve safety. 

 Topic 3:  Pilot study / outline for Edgehill 
Speedhumps 

Tracy read through the “Edgehill Speed Hump 
Pilot” study to be shared with the Board.   

 

8:20 Topic 4:  School drop-off/pick-up safety We will follow up with the Chief and SHES 
Principal and invite them to discuss this issue 
with us and how we can improve it. 

 

 Topic 5:  Community Survey Questions Shabnam – as chair of Services Committee - gave 
a brief overview about this project. The idea is 
just to get some feedback from village residents 
on how we are doing as a municipality and to 
identify any issues that need to be addressed. 
Each committee is asked to submit 1-2 
questions. Possible PWC question/statement to 
include: 

● I feel safe walking, biking, and driving 
through the entire village.  

● Do you take alternative routes in order 
to feel safe traveling through the village?  

● I would like street lights installed.  
Shabnam will work with Rick on the wording of 
each question. 

 

 Decision and Action Item Summary Brief Updates:  Karl provided an update on the 
bridge project with KLM engineering.  
 
MMSD has identified 3 routes, each of which will  
affect Shorewood Hills with a 30 ft trench. We 
do not know their decision criteria, but they are 
obligated to replace what they wreck.  If we see 
blue ribbons on trees, it is an inventory. 

 

 Identify Items for Next Agenda Committee members can always submit 
questions/topics to be included on agendas.  

 

9pm Close   

 

Future Meeting Dates:   Minute Taker: 

November 11, 2019 Shabnam Lotfi 

December 9, 2019 Open 

January 13, 2020 Laura Cristina Valderrama 

February 10, 2020 Farah Kaiksow 

March 9, 2020 Cara Farris 

 



 

1 

 

Minutes of the Ad Hoc Stormwater Committee 

Village of Shorewood Hills 
Wed., Dec. 4, 2019 

(scheduled for review at next Ad Hoc Stormwater Committee meeting) 

 

1) Called to Order: Chair Benforado called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 

a) Committee members present: Chair/Village President Dave Benforado, Carolyn 

Benforado, Eric Riedner, Greg Brauer, Mark Mandel (M.Mandel left at 8:19 PM). 

Committee member Peter Hans excused; Gloria Beach absent. 

b) Others present: Village Administrator Karl Frantz, Village Engineer Brian Berquist 

(Town and Country Engineering), Village resident Bill Thomas.  

 

2) Compliance with WI Open Meeting Law: D.Benforado inquired with K.Frantz who said 

the meeting had been properly noticed. 

 

3) Review draft meeting minutes from Nov. 6, 2019, meeting: Motion to approve by 

E.Riedner, second by M.Mandel, motion approved 5-0. 

 

4) Proposed 96” University Avenue Stormwater Pipe (Shorewood Blvd./Grand Ave.): 

 

a) Committee discussed the proposed 96” stormwater pipe along the University Ave. 

corridor between Shorewood Blvd. and Grand Ave. as part of the scheduled University 

Ave. reconstruction project (2021/2022).  K.Frantz and B.Berquist provided an update. 

Project is now at the 30% completion mark, behind schedule for a 2021 construction 

start, more likely will be a 2022 construction start. Handed out a half-page financial 

snapshot summary of the proposed 96” stormwater pipe (Option “D” from AE2S’s 

Amber Lefers presentation at the 11/6/19 Stormwater meeting, it assumes the 96” new 

pipe and remediating two known choke points in the existing underground stormwater 

conveyance system at Shorewood Blvd. and Grand Ave.), with a low-end estimate of 

$15.6M and a high-end estimate of $23.1M (the Village share being $1.3M and $2.3M 

respectively, project stormwater costs being shared 85 City/15 Village). The precise route 

for the 96” pipe has not yet been determined. Unknowns include: wild card costs of 

boring through the University Ave hill (between Bagels Forever and Village Pool), will 

MMSD coordinate tunneling/share tunneling costs, unknown cost increases in 

construction costs which are volatile right now. B.Berquist advised that the Village 

assume the high-end estimate now until more is known; the differential will narrow as we 

approach the 60 and 95% completion marks for the project. Discussion about whether 

this was a wise investment of Village capital funds; while it will provide an outlet for 

stormwater in the Columbia/Purdue/ Swathmore/Pool area of the Village, it is a second 

best overall approach for stormwater flash flooding in the University Ave corridor to the 

proposed stormwater tunnel under Blackhawk Country Club that was previously jointly 

studied by the City and Village (City deciding the BCC tunnel being too costly). 

Discussion of the estimated life of the 96” pipe project; B.Berquist opined that it will be a 

concrete pipe project and concrete has an estimated life of between 50-80 years. 

 



 

2 

 

 

b) Motion by C.Benforado, second by E.Riedner, to recommend that the Village Board 

support the proposed new 96” stormwater pipe between Shorewood Blvd. and 

Grand Ave. as part of the scheduled University Ave. reconstruction in 2021 or 2022; 

motion passed 4-1 (M.Mandel voting no). 

 

5) Potential MOU (Memorandum of Understanding) between City and Village regarding 

Joint Approach to Willow Creek Watershed and University Ave. Flash Flooding. 
 

a) D.Benforado introduced the concept of a City of Madison/Village of Shorewood Hills 

MOU regarding a joint approach to Willow Creek Watershed stormwater management 

and flash flooding in the University Ave. corridor. Elements could include, e.g., 

agreement to continue exploring the concept of a stormwater relief tunnel under the 

Blackhawk Country Club, continued coordination/communication in understanding and 

measuring flash flooding events, the City’s planned 2020 Willow Creek Drainage Basin 

study, Village agreeing to special stormwater rules (or fees in lieu) for new commercial 

construction in the Village portion of that corridor, City agreeing to stormwater detention 

measures upstream in the basin, etc. B.Berquist showed a comparison of applicable 

State/County/City/Village stormwater regulations. General agreement amongst 

Committee members that this would be a good idea to pursue; K.Frantz/B.Berquist to 

raise and discuss with City of Madison, and report back to Committee. 

 

6) Discussed future 2020 meeting dates (typically on first Wednesday of each month): 

 

a) Wed., Jan. 8, 2020 (P.Hans not available, E.Riedner perhaps available; need to canvas 

Committee members and confirm meeting in late December). 

b) Wed., Feb. 5, 2020. 

c) Wed., March 4, 2020. 

 

7) Adjourned: at 8:43 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted on December 13, 2019, by Dave Benforado, Chair. 



Parks Committee Minutes 

Village of Shorewood Hills 

Monday, November 18, 2019 

Village Hall – 810 Shorewood Boulevard 

1. Meeting called to order at 5:37. 

A.  Roll call.  Members present: Mark Lederer, Dave Boutwell, Roma Lenehan, Nancy 

Heiden and Kathy Brock. Others present: Village Forester Corey George and 

Garden Club Rep. Mary Janet Wellensiek.  

B. Compliance with Open-Meeting Law. The meeting was properly posted. 

C. Approval of Minutes. Motion made by Roma Lenehan and seconded by Nancy 

Heiden to approve the minutes of the meeting of October 14, 2019. The motion was 

carried 5-0.  

 

2. Community Survey – The Committee discussed the resident satisfaction survey 

proposed by the Services Committee and its request that every committee submit a 

question to be included in the survey. Members found it difficult to devise a single 

question and asked whether multiple questions might be submitted – at a minimum two 

(1 for Parks and 1 for Forestry). Questions were raised about the design/format of the 

survey of which nothing was known at the time of the meeting. The members expressed 

the difficulties of framing the question(s) without further information and guidance. Mark 

stated he would follow up with the Village to find out the status of the survey.   

Georgene Stratman joined the meeting at 6:10 pm. 

3. Four Corners Path – Corey reported that the construction of the approximately 6’ path 

would begin shortly. The path leading from Sunset to the pavilion would be constructed 

in a similar manner to the remediated area at the entrance to the park from Edgehill 

Drive.   

 

4. Park Goals – Corey agreed to review previous minutes and forward to Roma the 

tentative goals that had been previously identified. Roma agreed to review her notes and 

the minutes provided by Corey to bring back to the Committee her suggestion(s) as to 

how we might move forward with arriving at a definitive list. 

The Committee discussed the need to begin planning of the renovation of McKenna Park 

in conjunction with the future replacement of the Lake Mendota Bridge. Members 

inquired as to the degree the design of the bridge would be regulated as a historic feature. 

Mark volunteered to make inquires with the Village as to the timing and process for the 

design of the bridge.           

5. Memorial Requests – Corey reported on an inquiry he received about a new memorial 

bench in Post Farm Park on the slope facing the tennis courts. Concern was expressed 



regarding placing a bench on the slope and the need to minimize disturbance to the area. 

The possibility of multiple benches was raised.  

A memorial tree has been planted in Four Corners Park for a cost of about $120, but no 

plaque has been placed as yet. The members discussed the cost of various plaques 

ranging from $750 for etched metal along with cheaper alternatives. The members 

discussed a range of cheaper alternatives for plaques as well as whether the Village 

should move away from installing plaques in the future. The Committee also discussed 

whether a map with the names of the memorial trees/locations should be created and 

posted to the Village website.   

6. Future Agenda Items – Potential future agenda items included Park Goals and 

preparations for February 19th Bird City commemoration.  

  

Meeting Adjourned at 7 p.m. 

 

  

 



VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS 

FORESTER/HORTICULTURIST 
Report for November, 2019: Corey George, Forester  

 

Budget Planning – Worked with contractors and Admin staff regarding 2019-2020 budget estimates. 

 

Budget Presentation – Village Board meeting. 

 

Adopt-an-Ash Program – Resident consults and requests for donations. 

 

Volunteers (WE Badger)  

11/6 – Weather Cancelation, Students wrote an article for the Village Bulletin 

11/20 – Raingarden Maintenance, School/Columbia Road 

11/20 – Reese Woods, small tree removal to promote oak health 

 

Park and Landscape Maintenance 

Bradley Park – brush/stump cutting and treating 

Four Corners – shelter construction started 

Four Corners – path construction completed 

Four Corners – brush/stump cutting and treating 

Koval Woods –brush/stump cutting and treating 

Post Farm Park – brush/stump cutting and treating 

Shorewood/Topping Raingarden – fall cleanup 

Columbia/Yale Raingarden – fall cleanup 

Columbia/Dartmouth Raingarden – fall cleanup 

Columbia/School Raingarden – fall cleanup 

Amherst/School Raingarden – fall cleanup 

Bike Path (Purdue to Marshall) – clearance pruning 

 

Tree Pruning 

Bradley Park (2910 Columbia) – remove hanging, broken limbs near private property 

Oxford Road (1210 Bowdoin) – (10) Arborvitae, sidewalk clearance 

1242 Dartmouth Road – (1) Flowering Pear, clearance pruning 

 

Brush Chipping – Assisted DPW Crew (5 days) 

 

Leaf Pickup – Assisted DPW Crew (3 days) 

 

Resident Consults 
1101 Dartmouth Road – Tree assessments and maintenance questions. 

1210 Bowdoin Road – Private trees over sidewalk and Adopt-an-Ash program. 

3002 Harvard Drive – Resident request and discussion of public tree pruning. 

 

 

 
















	6D3 b Bridge Contract (2019-11-18).pdf
	AND KL ENGINEERING, INC. (CONSULTANT) FOR
	59921003_3des-spec 111819.pdf
	SCOPE OF SERVICES
	A. DESIGN REPORTS
	B. ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTATION
	C. AGENCY COORDINATION
	D. RAILROAD/ UTILITY INVOLVEMENTS
	E. PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT
	F. MEETINGS
	G. LOCATING
	H. SURVEYS
	I. SOILS AND SUBSURFACE INVESTIGATIONS
	J. ROAD PLANS
	K. STRUCTURE PLANS
	L. PLATS
	M. HIGHWAY SYSTEM CHANGES
	N. TRAFFIC
	O. COMMUNITY SENSITIVE SOLUTIONS
	Not Applicable
	P. CHANGE MANAGEMENT
	Q. SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE DEPARTMENT OR MUNICIPALITY
	R. PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS


	59921003_fee exhibits 111819.pdf
	Wgt.Wages
	Ind.Wages
	Hours&Labor
	FeeTask
	Contract Fee


	6D5 a 2020 IE Workplan with Table.pdf
	2020 MAMSWaP IE Workplan
	MADISON AREA MUNICIPAL STORMWATER PARTNERSHIP
	2020 ANNUAL INFORMATION AND EDUCATION WORK PLAN
	Distributed to Partnership Members on November 26th, 2019
	Additional Activities and Ongoing Tasks


	2020 IE Workplan Table

	6D5 b 2020-2024 MAMSWaP Intergovernmental Agreement.pdf
	WITNESSETH:
	EXHIBIT A

	MUNICIPALITY




